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Kemper at a glance

Kemper Corporation (NYSE: KMPR) is a leading multi-line insurance holding company providing
an array of home, auto, life and health products to serve the individual and business markets
in the United States. Kemper markets to its customers through a network of independent
agents, brokers and career agents.

Our heritage

With a history of providing insurance for more than a century, Kemper remains committed to
serving its customers. The holding company was initially part of Teledyne, Inc., where it grew
through a series of acquisitions. In 1990 the company spun off as Unitrin, Inc., and in 2011 it
rebranded itself as Kemper Corporation. Today Kemper’s 6,000 associates provide innovative
solutions for policyholders and agents.

Financial highlights
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On the cover: As the Presenting Sponsor, Kemper celebrated Open House Chicago. This Chicago Architecture Foundation event
hosted 75,000 guests from every state and 91 countries and featured The Kemper Building’s penthouse views.



Donald G. Southwell

To our shareholders,

Every day we deliver insurance solutions to serve our
customers’ unique needs. Partnering with our vast network of
agents, we help our policyholders when they need us most.
Our customer value proposition is simple: fulfill our promises.
And we take this commitment seriously.

Likewise with our shareholders, we offer a balanced strategy
focused on the future while leveraging the many strengths of
our diversified business model. We designed our three-pronged
approach to enhance shareholder value:

e Provide solutions to serve our customers’ evolving needs
e Maximize profitability in our businesses and investments
e Manage capital to benefit both near- and long-term goals

In 2014 we progressed on all three fronts and remain
committed to continue.

A look at 2014

Our Property & Casualty businesses delivered improved
underwriting performance for the second consecutive year.
Our Life & Health businesses remained stable and continued
to be a strong source of capital. And once again, our
investment portfolio performed well.

Underwriting improvements are a key component of
improving our overall profitability. With our rate and
underwriting actions, we took a greater hit on the top line
than we would have liked, so we have a number of actions
planned to stabilize and then improve the revenue trend.

These actions include our planned 2015 acquisition of Alliance
United Group. While we have not acquired any businesses
since the global financial crisis, acquisitions were always a part
of our growth strategy. We think Alliance United will be a
great fit in the Kemper family of companies.

Our strong capital position affords us good flexibility for
funding growth, acquisitions and returning capital to
shareholders.

Serving our customers’ evolving needs

At Kemper, we like to think of ourselves as an agent company.
We remain committed to partnering with our agents who are
passionate about taking good care of customers by evaluating
each situation and offering the right Kemper products to fulfill
their unique needs.

We deliver the excellent experience our policyholders
deserve, yet we’re never done improving. We strive to
innovate on all fronts—claims, product design, customer
service, agent support and beyond.

We continue to invest in technology, with a new auto and
home claims system, a new administration system in our life
business and a new Kemper auto claims app that makes it
easier for our customers to file claims and to receive
payments faster. Yet we’re making tough calls too, with a
policy administration system write-off on the property and
casualty side that caused us to step back and evaluate the
best technology options going forward.

Our people are perhaps our greatest asset. With 6,000 Kemper
associates committed to doing the right thing every day, we
are poised to win in the marketplace.

Agent engagement, innovation, technology and our talented
team comprise the key components to delivering the excellent
Kemper customer experience we strive to provide.

Maximizing business and investment profitability

In our Property & Casualty segment we made further progress
by improving our underlying performance and will continue
this focus in 2015. Improving profitability involves tough
decisions and trade-offs, which we are addressing head-on
since our pricing actions and run-off of the Direct business
impacted our top line. Our efforts to increase key agent
engagement, coupled with our planned acquisition of Alliance



United, will help us to address revenue and retention even as
we continue efforts to improve profitability.

With regard to catastrophes, our priority is to protect our
balance sheet. To do so, we reduced exposures in catastrophe
prone areas and took advantage of competitive reinsurance
prices to deepen coverage and lower total costs.

In our Life & Health segment, our Kemper Home Service
Companies once again delivered stable performance. We
achieve this stability because our business model is one where
our dedicated agents deliver personalized customer support
to an otherwise underserved market.

Our health businesses advanced our strategy to diversify
beyond products affected by national healthcare reform. Our
traditional Reserve National business also continued to
perform well. While it is still early, we like the trends we are
seeing as we expand into serving the worksite benefits and
senior markets through independent agents.

Across each of our business and corporate functions we
continue to find ways to implement shared services,
streamline our processes and deliver overall cost savings. We
reinvest some of these savings into key initiatives, yet most of
the savings go directly to reducing expenses, which is
especially important given the recent premium trends.

Once again, our investment portfolio performance is a
highlight for the year, delivering a pre-tax yield of 5.5 percent,
which is fabulous given the current environment.

We continued to optimize our portfolio’s after-tax investment
income, total return and risk. The portfolio delivered $323
million of pre-tax equivalent investment income, and total
return was 9.5% which comfortably exceeded our benchmark.

Our core portfolio is a well-diversified mix of fixed maturity
securities that on average are rated “A.” Around this core
portfolio, we maintain a broad mix of equity securities, limited
partnership investments and directly-owned real estate.

Looking ahead, we strive to balance our return and risk
considerations in what we expect to be a somewhat more
volatile economic environment than in the recent past.

Managing capital to deliver shareholder value

Kemper ended 2014 with $2.1 billion of shareholders’ equity,
up modestly from 2013. The combination of disciplined risk

Kemper:
$7.8 billion total assets
$2.1 billion shareholders’ equity

26% debt-to-capitalization ratio

management and effective capital strategies positions us well
for the future.

Our long-term capital deployment priorities continue to
encompass three key areas:

e Profitable organic growth
e Opportunistic acquisitions that enhance our businesses

e Returning capital to our shareholders through dividends
and share repurchases

We repurchased 3.2 million shares of common stock in 2014
and maintained a competitive common stock quarterly
dividend of $0.24 per share. In total, with dividends and
common stock repurchases, Kemper returned $167 million, or
8 percent of our shareholders’ equity, to shareholders in
2014. Looking ahead, we remain focused on returning capital
to shareholders and putting capital to work to improve our
return on equity over time.

Honoring our past and building our future

As we publish this letter, we are celebrating the 25
anniversary of our incorporation. While we’ve been writing
insurance policies for more than a century, we continue to
refine our business model as Kemper.

Our associates remain dedicated to our millions of
policyholders and to our thousands of agents who partner
with us to serve our customers every day. | am pleased to be
surrounded by a strong leadership team committed to
delivering on our goals.

Given market opportunities and the dedicated associates who
make us Kemper, we are optimistic about the future. We look
forward to improving the world of insurance for our
policyholders, our agents and you, our shareholders.

February 12, 2015

Sl A JttS

Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Kemper Corporation

92% of fixed maturity portfolio rated investment grade
Conservative balance sheet; strong capital and liquidity
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Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “2014 Annual Report”), including, but not limited to, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of Kemper Corporation (“Kemper”) and its subsidiaries (individually and collectively referred
to herein as the “Company”) and the notes thereto appearing in Item 8 herein (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”), the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations appearing in Item 7 herein (the
“MD&A”) and the other Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules filed as a part hereof or incorporated by reference herein,
may contain or incorporate by reference information that includes or is based on forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the safe-harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Forward-looking statements give expectations or forecasts of future events. The reader can identify these statements by the
fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. They use words such as “believe(s),” “goal(s),” “target(s),”
“estimate(s),” “anticipate(s),” “forecast(s),” “project(s),” “plan(s),” “intend(s),” “expect(s),” “might,” “may” and other words
and terms of similar meaning in connection with a discussion of future operating, financial performance or financial condition.
Forward-looking statements, in particular, include statements relating to future actions, prospective services or products, future
performance or results of current and anticipated services or products, sales efforts, expenses, the outcome of contingencies
such as legal proceedings, trends in operations and financial results.

EENTS

EENT3 EENT3 99 ¢ EENT3

Any or all forward-looking statements may turn out to be wrong, and, accordingly, Kemper cautions readers not to place undue
reliance on such statements, which speak only as of the date of this 2014 Annual Report. Kemper bases these statements on
current expectations and the current economic environment. They involve a number of risks and uncertainties that are difficult
to predict. These statements are not guarantees of future performance; actual results could differ materially from those
expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements can be affected by inaccurate assumptions
or by known or unknown risks and uncertainties. Many such factors will be important in determining the Company’s actual
future results and financial condition. The reader should consider the following list of general factors that could affect the
Company’s future results and financial condition, as well as those discussed below under Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” in this 2014
Annual Report.

Among the general factors that could cause actual results and financial condition to differ materially from estimated results and
financial condition are:

Factors related to the legal and regulatory environment in which Kemper and its subsidiaries operate

*  Developments in, and outcomes of, initiatives by state officials that could result in significant changes to unclaimed
property laws, or significant changes to the interpretations of existing laws, and significant changes in claims handling
practices with respect to life insurance policies, especially to the extent that such initiatives result in retroactive
application of new requirements to existing life insurance policy contracts;

*  Adverse outcomes in litigation or other legal or regulatory proceedings involving Kemper or its subsidiaries or
affiliates;

*  Governmental actions, including, but not limited to, implementation of the provisions of the Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (collectively, the “Health Care
Acts”), the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “DFA”), the Risk Management and
Own Risk and Solvency Assessment Model Act (“RMORSA”) and other new laws, regulations or court decisions
interpreting existing laws and regulations or policy provisions;

»  Uncertainties related to regulatory approval of insurance rates, policy forms, license applications and similar matters;

*  Uncertainties related to regulatory approval of dividends from insurance subsidiaries, acquisitions of businesses and
similar matters;

Factors relating to insurance claims and related reserves in the Company’s insurance businesses
« The incidence, frequency and severity of catastrophes occurring in any particular reporting period or geographic area,
including natural disasters, pandemics and terrorist attacks or other man-made events;

¢ The number and severity of insurance claims (including those associated with catastrophe losses) and their impact on
the adequacy of loss reserves;

*  Changes in facts and circumstances affecting assumptions used in determining loss and loss adjustment expenses
(“LAE”) reserves;



*  The impact of inflation on insurance claims, including, but not limited to, the effects attributed to scarcity of resources
available to rebuild damaged structures, including labor and materials and the amount of salvage value recovered for
damaged property;

»  Developments related to insurance policy claims and coverage issues, including, but not limited to, interpretations or
decisions by courts or regulators that may govern or influence losses incurred in connection with hurricanes and other
catastrophes;

*  Orders, interpretations or other actions by regulators that impact the reporting, adjustment and payment of claims;

*  Changes in the pricing or availability of reinsurance, or in the financial condition of reinsurers and amounts
recoverable therefrom;

Factors related to the Company’s ability to compete

»  Changes in the ratings by rating agencies of Kemper and/or its insurance company subsidiaries with regard to credit,
financial strength, claims paying ability and other areas on which the Company is rated;

»  The level of success and costs incurred in realizing economies of scale, implementing significant business
consolidations, reorganizations and technology initiatives and integrating acquired businesses;

*  Absolute and relative performance of the Company’s products or services;

+  Heightened competition, including, with respect to pricing, entry of new competitors and alternate distribution
channels, introduction of new technologies, the emergence of telematics, refinements of existing products and the
development of new products by new and existing competitors;

Factors relating to the business environment in which Kemper and its subsidiaries operate

*  Changes in general economic conditions, including, but not limited to, performance of financial markets, interest rates,
inflation, unemployment rates and fluctuating values of particular investments held by the Company;

*  Absolute and relative performance of investments held by the Company;
*  Changes in industry trends and significant industry developments;
»  Changes in capital requirements, including the calculations thereof, used by regulators and rating agencies;

*  Regulatory, accounting or tax changes that may affect the cost of, or demand for, the Company’s products or services
or after-tax returns from the Company’s investments;

*  The impact of required participation in windpools and joint underwriting associations, residual market assessments and
assessments for insurance industry insolvencies;

»  Changes in distribution channels, methods or costs resulting from changes in laws or regulations, lawsuits or market
forces; and

» Increased costs and risks related to information technology and data security, including, but not limited to, identity
theft and the prevention of, or occurrence of, disruption of services.

Other risks and uncertainties described from time to time in Kemper’s filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange

Commission (“SEC”).

Kemper cannot provide any assurances that the results contemplated in any forward-looking statements will be achieved or will
be achieved in any particular timetable or that future events or developments will not cause such statements to be inaccurate.
Kemper assumes no obligation to correct or update any forward-looking statements publicly for any changes in events or
developments or in the Company’s expectations or results subsequent to the date of this 2014 Annual Report. Kemper advises
the reader, however, to consult any further disclosures Kemper makes on related subjects in its filings with the SEC.




PART I
Item 1. Business.

Kemper is a diversified insurance holding company, with subsidiaries that provide automobile, homeowners, life, health, and
other insurance products to individuals and businesses. Kemper’s annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-
Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments thereto are accessible free of charge through Kemper’s website, kemper.com,
and as soon as reasonably practicable after such materials are filed with, or furnished to, the SEC.

(a) GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS
Issuance of Subordinated Debt

On February 27, 2014, Kemper issued $150.0 million of its 7.375% subordinated debentures due February 27, 2054 (the “2054
Subordinated Debentures”). The 2054 Subordinated Debentures are unsecured and are subordinated and junior to the senior
indebtedness of Kemper. Interest on the 2054 Subordinated Debentures is payable quarterly. As long as no event of default has
occurred, Kemper may defer interest payments on the 2054 Subordinated Debentures for up to five consecutive years without
giving rise to an event of default. During a deferral period, interest will continue to accrue at the stated interest rate
compounded quarterly. Kemper is permitted to redeem some or all of the 2054 Subordinated Debentures on or after February
27,2019, at a redemption price that is equal to their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest. Kemper is permitted to
redeem the 2054 Subordinated Debentures in whole, but not in part, at any time prior to February 27, 2019, within 90 days of
the occurrence of certain tax events or rating agency events, at specified redemption prices.

Kemper Common Stock Repurchases

On August 6, 2014, the Board of Directors approved a new common stock repurchase program (the “2014 Repurchase
Program”) under which Kemper is authorized to repurchase up to $300 million of its common stock and terminated Kemper’s
remaining authorization under a repurchase program previously approved on February 2, 2011 (the “2011 Repurchase
Program”).

Agreement to Acquire Alliance United Group

On December 10, 2014, Kemper entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Alliance United Group and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Alliance United Insurance Company (“AUIC”) and Alliance United Insurance Services (“AUIS”), in a cash
transaction valued at approximately $70 million. Kemper expects to close the transaction in the first half of 2015, subject to
approvals by insurance regulators and the satisfaction of other customary closing conditions. Following the closing of the
transaction, Kemper plans to contribute approximately $75 million of capital to support AUIC’s book of business. AUIC is
amongst the top writers of nonstandard personal automobile insurance in California and had more than $300 million of direct
written premiums in 2014.

(b) BUSINESS SEGMENT FINANCIAL DATA

Financial information about Kemper’s business segments for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 is contained
in the following sections of this 2014 Annual Report and is incorporated herein by reference: (i) Note 17, “Business Segments,”
to the Consolidated Financial Statements and (i) MD&A.

(c) DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Kemper is a diversified insurance holding company, with subsidiaries that provide automobile, homeowners, life, health, and
other insurance products to individuals and businesses. The Company is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property and
casualty insurance and life and health insurance businesses. The Company conducts its operations through two operating
segments: Property & Casualty Insurance and Life & Health Insurance. The Company’s operations are conducted solely in the
United States.

Kemper’s subsidiaries employ approximately 5,350 full-time associates supporting their operations, of which approximately
1,450 are employed in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment, approximately 3,500 are employed in the Life & Health
Insurance segment and the remainder are employed in various corporate and other staff and shared functions.



Property and Casualty Insurance Business
General

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment mostly distributes its products through independent agents and brokers who are
paid commissions for their services. The Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s products are also distributed through
employer-sponsored voluntary benefit programs and other affinity relationships. The Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s
direct-to-consumer operations were placed into run-off in 2012 and accounted for approximately 8% of the Property & Casualty
Insurance segment’s earned premiums in 2014. The Property & Casualty Insurance segment provides automobile, homeowners,
renters, fire, umbrella and other types of property and casualty insurance to individuals and commercial automobile insurance to
businesses. In addition, the Life & Health Insurance segment’s career agents also sell contents coverage for personal property to
1ts customers.

Property insurance indemnifies an insured with an interest in physical property for loss of, or damage to, such property.
Casualty insurance primarily covers liability for damage to property of, or injury to, a person or entity other than the insured. In
most cases, casualty insurance also obligates the insurance company to provide a defense for the insured in litigation arising out
of events covered by the policy.

Earned premiums from automobile insurance accounted for 48%, 50% and 52% of the Company’s consolidated insurance
premiums earned in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Revenues from automobile insurance accounted for 43%, 44% and 47%
of Kemper’s consolidated revenues from continuing operations in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Automobile insurance
products include personal automobile insurance, ranging from preferred and standard risk to nonstandard risks, and commercial
automobile insurance. Nonstandard personal automobile insurance policyholders tend to have difficulty obtaining standard or
preferred risk insurance, usually because of their driving records, claims experience or premium payment history. Homeowners
insurance accounted for 17%, 16% and 15% of the Company’s consolidated insurance premiums earned in 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively. Homeowners insurance accounted for 15%, 14% and 14% of the Company’s consolidated revenues from
continuing operations in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment is headquartered in Chicago, Illinois, and conducts business in 47 states and the
District of Columbia. The segment’s insurance products are offered by approximately 15,300 independent insurance agents and
brokers. As shown in the following table, five states provided 62% of the segment’s premium revenues in 2014.

Percentage

of Total
State Premiums
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Property and Casualty Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves

The Company’s reserves for losses and LAE for property and casualty insurance (“Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves”)
are reported using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability for losses and LAE for claims that occurred prior to the end
of any given accounting period but have not yet been paid.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves by business segment at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013
Business Segments:

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE .........ccueeiiiiiiiiieeie ettt ettt e ena e eeenbe e s e eseenseesseennes $ 6511 § 7426

Life & Health INSUTANCE .....c..oouiiiiiiiiiiiciicsetce ettt sttt 4.5 53
Total BUSINESS SEEMEILS. ..c..eiuiiiitiriieiete ittt sttt ettt sb et e e bt bt et e bbbt et esbesbeebeente st sbeeneenee 655.6 747.9
Discontinued Operations 70.2 83.0
UNAllocated RESETVES .....ccuevuimiiiiiiiiieiietestet ettt ettt sttt ettt sttt enes 8.1 12.6
Total Property and Casualty INSUIrance RESEIVES.......cc.evvivuieieiieriesiieieiecie et $ 7339 §$ 8435

In estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional
judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many variables that are difficult to quantify. Accordingly, the process of
estimating and establishing the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves is inherently uncertain and the actual
ultimate net cost of claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts reserved. The reserving process is particularly
imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, construction defect and other emerging and/or long-tailed
exposures that may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended. Property and Casualty
Insurance Reserves related to the Company’s Discontinued Operations are predominantly long-tailed exposures, of which $28.4
million was related to asbestos, environmental matters and construction defect exposures at December 31, 2014. See MD&A,
“Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment
Expenses” beginning on page 53 for a discussion of the Company’s reserving process and the factors considered by the
Company’s actuaries in estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves.

The Company’s goal is to ensure that its total reserves for property and casualty insurance losses and LAE are adequate to cover
all costs, while minimizing variation from the time reserves for losses and LAE are initially estimated until losses and LAE are
fully developed. Changes in the Company’s estimates of these losses and LAE, also referred to as “development,” will occur
over time and may be material. Favorable development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements
when the Company decreases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in an increase in net income in the
period recognized, whereas adverse development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements when the
Company increases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in a decrease in net income.

Development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE from prior accident years for each of the Company’s
continuing business segments and discontinued operations in 2014, 2013 and 2012 was:

Favorable (Adverse) Development

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Continuing Operations:
Property & Casualty INSUIANCE ........ccecieieriiiiieieie ettt st eaeeneas $ 544 § 580 $ 249
Life & Health INSUTANCE .......oooviiieiieiiieic ettt 0.9 1.8 0.3
Total Favorable Development from Continuing Operations, Net........cccecevevereevienenennens 53.5 59.8 25.2
DiScONtINUEd OPETALIONS .....evvevieiierieieetietieieste et etetesteeteetesseeseeseesesseeseensensessesseensessesseesnens 3.6 4.8 6.3
Total Favorable Development, Net.........oocoviireieieieiiiniririeieieieieetseeeeee et $ 571 § o646 § 315

See MD&A, “Loss and LAE Reserve Development,” “Property & Casualty Insurance,” and “Life & Health Insurance,” for the
impact of development on the results reported by the Company’s business segments. Also see MD&A, “Critical Accounting
Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses” beginning
on page 53 for additional information about the Company’s reserving practices.

See Note 5, “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a tabular reconciliation
of the three most recent annual periods setting forth the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves as of the
beginning of each year, incurred losses and LAE for insured events of the current year, changes in incurred losses and LAE for



insured events of prior years, payments of losses and LAE for insured events of the current year, payments of losses and LAE
for insured events of prior years and the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves at the end of the year and
additional information regarding the nature of adjustments to incurred losses and LAE for insured events of prior years.

Catastrophe Losses

Catastrophes and natural disasters are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events
and natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and
winter storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and are expected to be, a material factor in the results of operations
and financial position of Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of insured losses that
could occur in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses contribute to material year-to-year fluctuations in the
results of operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are more likely to occur at
certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and casualty insurance claims.
The occurrence and severity of catastrophic events cannot be accurately predicted in any year. However, some geographic
locations are more susceptible to these events than others. The Company has endeavored to manage its direct insurance
exposures in certain regions that are prone to naturally occurring catastrophic events through a combination of geographic
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in such regions, and reinsurance. The
Company has adopted the industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events promulgated by Insurance
Services Office, Inc. (“ISO”) to track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when
the event causes $25 million or more in direct insured losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and
insurers. ISO-classified catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The
discussions throughout this 2014 Annual Report utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophe losses is inherently uncertain and the actual ultimate cost of
a claim, net of reinsurance recoveries, may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,”
under the caption “Catastrophe losses could materially and adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity and/
or financial condition, the availability of reinsurance and the ratings of Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries” for a discussion
of catastrophe risk. See Note 19, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the
factors that influence the process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophes.

Reinsurance

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of risks insured in certain regions and reinsurance. To limit its exposures
to catastrophic events, the Company maintains a primary catastrophe reinsurance program for the Property & Casualty
Insurance segment. Coverage for the primary catastrophe reinsurance program is provided in various layers. The Property &
Casualty Insurance segment and the Life & Health Insurance segment also purchase reinsurance from the Florida Hurricane
Catastrophe Fund (the “FHCEF”) for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described below for the
Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program.

Effective January 1, 2015, the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program provides
coverage over the three-year period of January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2017. Coverage provided under the program for
the first year (January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015) is provided in various layers as presented below.

Catastrophe Losses

and LAE Percentage
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
RETAINED ......ovevieiveeietceeteet ettt ettt ettt s e $ — 8 50.0 —%
ISt Layer 0f COVEIAZE ....c.ccveuiieieiiriiieieiteieeieteie ettt 50.0 150.0 95.0
20d Layer Of COVETAZE ....vcveverrieeieierieeieeieetesie sttt eee e sie et sseeseensensesseeseensensesseenes 150.0 350.0 95.0

Under the reinsurance contract, the participation of each reinsurer, decreases by one-third in the second year and another one-
third in the third year. Accordingly, the percentage of coverage in the second and third years is 63.3% and 31.7%, respectively,
and, to maintain the same percentage of coverage as provided in the first year, the Property & Casualty Insurance segment will
need to purchase additional reinsurance for the second and third years. The estimated aggregate annual premium in 2015 for the
program presented in the preceding table is $14.5 million for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s catastrophe
reinsurance program. Premiums due to the reinsurers will decrease proportionately with the decline in their respective
participations in the second and third years. In the event that the Company’s incurred catastrophe losses and LAE covered by its
catastrophe reinsurance program exceed the retention for a particular layer, the program requires one reinstatement of such



coverage. In such an instance, the Company is required to pay a reinstatement premium to the reinsurers to reinstate the full
amount of reinsurance available under such layer. The reinstatement premium is a percentage of the original premium based on
the ratio of the losses in excess of the Company’s retention to the reinsurers’ coverage limit.

The coverage presented in the preceding table differs from the coverage provided in 2014, 2013 and 2012. See Note 19,
“Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information pertaining to the primary catastrophe
reinsurance programs for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment for 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Prior to 2013, companies operating in the Life & Health Insurance segment participated in a catastrophe reinsurance program
separate and apart from the catastrophe reinsurance programs covering the Property & Casualty Insurance segment. Over the
last several years, the Life & Health Insurance segment has been reducing its exposure to catastrophic events through the
intentional run-off of its dwelling insurance business. Accordingly, the Life & Health Insurance segment did not renew its
catastrophe reinsurance program for 2013. See Note 19, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for information pertaining to the Life & Health Insurance segment’s participation in the Company’s catastrophe reinsurance
programs for 2012.

In addition to the catastrophe loss exposures caused by natural events described above, Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies are exposed to losses from catastrophic events that are not the result of acts of nature, such as acts of
terrorism, the nature, occurrence and severity of which in any period cannot be accurately predicted. The companies have
reinsurance coverage to address certain exposures to potential future terrorist attacks. The reinsurance coverage for certified
events, as designated by the federal government, is from the Terrorist Risk Insurance Act and the coverage for non-certified
events is available in the catastrophe reinsurance program for Kemper’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment. However,
certain perils, such as biological, chemical, nuclear pollution or contamination, are excluded from the reinsurance coverage for
non-certified events.

In addition to the catastrophe reinsurance programs described above, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies
utilize other reinsurance arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize
exposures on larger risks.

Under the various reinsurance arrangements, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies are indemnified by
reinsurers for certain losses incurred under insurance policies issued by the reinsurers. As indemnity reinsurance does not
discharge an insurer from its direct obligations to policyholders on risks insured, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance
companies remain directly liable. However, provided that the reinsurers meet their obligations, the net liability for Kemper’s
property and casualty insurance companies is limited to the amount of risk that they retain. Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies purchase their reinsurance only from reinsurers rated “A-" or better by A. M. Best Co., Inc. (“A.M. Best”),
at the time of purchase. A.M. Best is an organization that specializes in rating insurance and reinsurance companies.

For further discussion of the reinsurance programs, see Note 19, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” and Note 20, “Other Reinsurance,”
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Pricing

Pricing levels for property and casualty insurance are influenced by many factors, including the frequency and severity of
claims, state regulation and legislation, competition, general business and economic conditions, including market rates of
interest, inflation, expense levels, and judicial decisions. In addition, many state regulators require consideration of investment
income when approving or setting rates, which could reduce underwriting margins. See MD&A under the caption “Property &
Casualty Insurance.”

Competition

Based on the most recent annual data published by A.M. Best, as of the end of 2013, there were 1,266 property and casualty
insurance groups in the United States. Kemper’s property and casualty group was among the top 10% of property and casualty
insurance groups in the United States as measured by net written premiums, policyholders’ surplus and admitted assets in 2013.
Among all personal lines automobile insurance writers, Kemper’s property and casualty group was the 24th largest writer as
measured by net written premiums in 2013.



Rankings by admitted assets, net premiums written and capital and surplus were:

Ordinal Percentile
Measurement Rank Rank
INEt AQMITEEA ASSELS...eeuieutietietieieiteetieieie et et et e steete et etesseeteestessesseeseesseseeseesaensenseeseessensensesseensensesseenes 121 90%
INEt WITHEN PTMIUIMIS ....outiiiiieiieie ittt ettt ettt eae et et e sbe bt ennebesbeenes 64 94
Capital ANA SUIPIUS....cviitieiiiticieeete ettt ettt ettt et et e et et e beete e s esbeeseessessesseeseessesesseessessesseeseas 125 90

In 2013, the property and casualty insurance industry’s estimated net premiums written were $487 billion, of which nearly 60%
were accounted for by the top 50 groups of property and casualty insurance companies. Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies wrote less than 1% of the industry’s 2013 premium volume.

The property and casualty insurance industry is highly competitive, particularly with respect to personal automobile insurance.
Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies compete on the basis of, among other measures, (i) using suitable pricing
segmentation, (ii) maintaining underwriting discipline, (iii) offering products in selected markets or geographies, (iv) utilizing
technological innovations for the marketing and sale of insurance, (v) controlling expenses, (vi) maintaining adequate ratings
from A.M. Best and other ratings agencies and (vii) providing quality services to independent agents and policyholders. See
Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “The insurance industry is highly competitive.”

Life and Health Insurance Business

The Company’s Life & Health Insurance segment consists of Kemper’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, United Insurance Company
of America (“United Insurance”), The Reliable Life Insurance Company (“Reliable”), Union National Life Insurance Company
(“Union National Life”), Mutual Savings Life Insurance Company (“Mutual Savings Life”), United Casualty Insurance
Company of America (“United Casualty”), Union National Fire Insurance Company (“Union National Fire”’), Mutual Savings
Fire Insurance Company (“Mutual Savings Fire”’) and Reserve National Insurance Company (“Reserve National”). As
discussed below, United Insurance, Reliable, Union National Life, Mutual Savings Life, United Casualty, Union National Fire
and Mutual Savings Fire (the “Kemper Home Service Companies”) distribute their products through a network of employee, or
“career,” agents. Reserve National distributes its products through a network of independent agents and brokers. These career
agents, independent agents and brokers are paid commissions for their services.

Earned premiums from life insurance accounted for 21%, 19% and 19% of the Company’s consolidated insurance premiums
earned in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Revenues from life insurance accounted for 27%, 24% and 24% of the Company’s
consolidated revenues from continuing operations in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. As shown in the following table, five
states provided 51% of the premium revenues in this segment in 2014.

Percentage
of Total

State Premiums
[ 1S TSRO 21%
LLOUISTANA ...ttt ettt ettt e et et e e aeeeae e eteeeteeeeseeaseesseeaseeaseenseeassenssesseessesaseesseenseeaseenseenneenrean 12
ATADAIMA ...ttt a et e e et e e e —e e e —te ettt e et teearteeetteearteeeteesenaeean 7
Mississippi
FIOTIA@A ..ottt ettt e et e et e e tt e et e e abeeab e et e eabeetseeteeatt e aaeeaseeabeeabeenbeenbeebeebeeaeenes 5

Kemper Home Service Companies

The Kemper Home Service Companies, based in St. Louis, Missouri, focus on providing individual life and supplemental
accident and health insurance products to customers of modest incomes who desire basic protection for themselves and their
families. Their leading product is ordinary life insurance, including permanent and term insurance. Face amounts of these
policies are lower than those of policies typically sold to higher income customers by other companies in the life insurance
industry. Approximately 78% of the Life & Health Insurance segment’s premium revenues are generated by the Kemper Home
Service Companies.

The Kemper Home Service Companies employ nearly 2,400 career agents to distribute insurance products in 25 states and the
District of Columbia. These career agents are full-time employees who call on customers in their homes to sell insurance
products, provide services related to policies in force and collect premiums, typically monthly. Premiums average about $19 per
policy per month with an average face value of $5,300. Permanent and term policies are offered primarily on a non-



participating, guaranteed-cost basis. These career agents also distribute and/or service certain property insurance products for
the Kemper Home Service Companies.

Reserve National

Reserve National, based in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, is licensed in 48 states throughout the United States and has traditionally
specialized in the sale of Medicare Supplement insurance and limited health insurance coverages such as fixed indemnity and
accident-only plans, primarily to individuals in rural areas who often do not have access to a broad array of accident and health
insurance products tailored to meet their individual and family needs. There are approximately 300 independent agents that
primarily represent Reserve National.

Reserve National began expanding its distribution channels during 2013 by launching two marketing channel initiatives —
Kemper Senior Solutions and Kemper Benefits. Kemper Senior Solutions markets life insurance and home health care products
focusing on the individual, senior-age demographic of the market place. Kemper Benefits sells voluntary products in the
employer market place. Brokers and non-exclusive independent agents are utilized to market and distribute products in these
new distribution channels. Reserve National has appointed approximately 20,000 independent agents in connection with these
initiatives.

See “Regulation,” under this Item 1 beginning on page 10, Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “Reserve National’s
operating history with its expanded distribution channels and new products is limited,” and MD&A, “Life & Health Insurance,”
for a discussion of the impact of the Health Care Acts on Reserve National.

Reinsurance

Consistent with insurance industry practice, the Company’s life and health insurance companies utilize reinsurance
arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize exposures on larger risks. Prior
to 2013, the Life & Health Insurance segment’s reinsurance arrangements included excess of loss reinsurance coverage
specifically designed to protect against losses arising from catastrophic events under the property insurance policies distributed
by the Kemper Home Service Companies’ agents and written by Kemper’s subsidiaries, United Casualty, Union National Fire
and Mutual Savings Fire, and reinsured by Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity Universal Insurance Company (“Trinity”), or written
by Capitol County Mutual Fire Insurance Company (“Capitol”), a mutual insurance company owned by its policyholders, and
its subsidiary, Old Reliable Casualty Company (“ORCC”), and reinsured by Trinity. Over the last several years, the segment has
been intentionally reducing its exposure to catastrophic events through the run-off of its dwelling insurance business.
Accordingly, except for catastrophe reinsurance provided by the FHCF, the Kemper Home Service Companies, Capitol and
ORCC did not carry catastrophe reinsurance in 2014 and 2013. The FHCF provides reinsurance for catastrophe losses in
Florida. See Note 19, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information
pertaining to the segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs for 2012.

Lapse Ratio

The lapse ratio is a measure of a life insurer’s loss of in-force policies. For a given year, this ratio is commonly computed as the
total face amount of individual life insurance policies lapsed, surrendered, expired and decreased during such year, less policies
increased and revived during such year, divided by the total face amount of policies at the beginning of the year plus the face
amount of policies issued and reinsurance assumed in the prior year. The Life & Health Insurance segment’s lapse ratio for
individual life insurance was 7%, 7% and 8% in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The customer base served by the Kemper Home Service Companies and competing life insurance companies tends to have a
higher incidence of lapse than other demographic segments of the population. Thus, to maintain or increase the level of its
business, the Kemper Home Service Companies must write a high volume of new policies.

Pricing

Premiums for life and health insurance products are based on assumptions with respect to mortality, morbidity, investment
yields, expenses, and lapses and are also affected by state laws and regulations, as well as competition. Pricing assumptions are
based on the experience of Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries, as well as the industry in general, depending on the
factor being considered. The actual profit or loss produced by a product will vary from the anticipated profit if the actual
experience differs from the assumptions used in pricing the product.



Premiums for policies sold by the Kemper Home Service Companies are set at levels designed to cover the relatively high cost
of “in-home” servicing of such policies. As a result of such higher expenses, incurred claims as a percentage of earned
premiums tend to be lower for companies utilizing this method of distribution than the life insurance industry average.

Premiums for Medicare supplement and other accident and health policies must take into account the rising costs of medical
care. The annual rate of medical cost inflation has historically been higher than the general rate of inflation, necessitating
frequent rate increases, most of which are subject to approval by state regulators.

Competition

Based on the most recent data published by A.M. Best, as of the end of 2013, there were 442 life and health insurance company
groups in the United States. The Company’s Life & Health Insurance segment ranked in the top 21% of life and health
insurance company groups, as measured by admitted assets, net premiums written and capital and surplus. Rankings by
admitted assets, net premiums written and capital and surplus were:

Ordinal Percentile
Measurement Rank Rank
INEt AQMITEEA ASSELS ...cuvitieiieiieieeteetiet ettt ettt ettt ettt et ete et et e be e st essebesbeesaessesseesaessessessesseessensesseeseas 88 80%
INEt WIIHEN PTMIUIMS ....c.viiiiiiiieiiciieieie sttt ettt ettt ettt se et e s aeeseeseensesseeseensesesseenes 88 80
Capital ANA SUIPIUS....c.viivieiiitiitieieie ettt ettt ettt et e ve et et e st e eae e b e ebeeseess e s e eseeseesseseeseensessesreenean 93 79

Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries generally compete by using appropriate pricing, offering products to selected
markets or geographies, controlling expenses, maintaining adequate ratings from A.M. Best and providing competitive services
to agents and policyholders.

Investments

The quality, nature and amount of the various types of investments that can be made by insurance companies are regulated by
state laws. Depending on the state, these laws permit investments in qualified assets, including, but not limited to, municipal,
state and federal government obligations, corporate bonds, real estate, preferred and common stocks, investment partnerships,
and limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships. In addition, the quality, nature and amount of the various
types of investments held by Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries affect the amount of asset risk calculated by regulators and rating
agencies in determining required capital. See “Regulation” immediately following this subsection of Item 1 and Item 1A., “Risk
Factors,” under the caption “The Company’s investment portfolio is exposed to a variety of risks that may negatively impact net
investment income and cause realized and unrealized losses.”

The Company employs a total return investment strategy, with an emphasis on yield, while maintaining liquidity to meet both
its short- and long-term insurance obligations. See the discussions of the Company’s investments under the headings
“Investment Results,” “Investment Quality and Concentrations,” “Investments in Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships,” “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and “Critical Accounting Estimates,” in the MD&A, “Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk,” in Item 7A and Note 3, “Investments,” Note 12, “Income from Investments,” and
Note 21, “Fair Value Measurements,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Regulation
Insurance Regulation

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation in the states in which they conduct business. Such
regulation pertains to a variety of matters, including, but not limited to, policy forms, premium rate plans, licensing of agents,
licenses to transact business, market conduct, trade practices, claims practices, investments and solvency. The majority of
Kemper’s insurance operations are in states requiring prior approval by regulators before proposed rates for property, casualty,
or health insurance policies may be implemented. However, provided that the policy form has been previously approved, rates
proposed for life insurance generally become effective immediately upon filing with a state, even though the same state may
require prior rate approval for other types of insurance. Insurance regulatory authorities perform periodic examinations of an
insurer’s market conduct and other affairs. Kemper’s health insurance subsidiaries are also subject to certain regulation by the
federal government. For example, the Health Care Acts, and the regulations promulgated thereunder, have established minimum
loss ratios, rating restrictions, mandates for essential health benefit coverages, and restrictions or prohibitions on pre-existing
condition exclusions and annual and lifetime policy limits for health insurance policies.
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Insurance companies are required to report their financial condition and results of operation in accordance with statutory
accounting principles prescribed or permitted by state insurance regulators in conjunction with the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners (the “NAIC”). State insurance regulators also prescribe the form and content of statutory financial
statements, perform periodic financial examinations of insurers, set minimum reserve and loss ratio requirements and establish
standards for the types and amounts of investments. In addition, state regulators require minimum capital and surplus levels and
incorporate risk-based capital (“RBC”) standards promulgated by the NAIC. These RBC standards are intended to assess the
level of risk inherent in an insurance company’s business and consider items such as asset risk, credit risk, underwriting risk
and other business risks relevant to its operations. In accordance with RBC formulas, a company’s RBC requirements are
calculated and compared to its total adjusted capital to determine whether regulatory intervention is warranted. At

December 31, 2014, the total adjusted capital of each of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries exceeded the minimum levels
required under applicable RBC rules.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are required to pay assessments up to prescribed limits to fund policyholder losses or liabilities
of insolvent insurance companies under the guaranty fund laws of most states in which they transact business. Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries are subject to certain fees imposed on health insurers by the Health Care Acts, including the Health
Insurance Providers Fee, but not the fees associated with the Reinsurance, Risk Adjustment and Risk Corridor programs, as
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries do not have any policies subject to those fees. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are also
required to participate in various involuntary pools or assigned risk pools, principally involving windstorms and high risk
drivers. In most states, the involuntary pool participation of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries is set in proportion to their
voluntary writings of related lines of business in such states. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “Catastrophe
losses could materially and adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity and/or financial condition, the
availability of reinsurance and the ratings of Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries” for a discussion of the impact of required
participation in windstorm pools and joint underwriting associations on the ability of the Company to manage its exposure to
catastrophic events.

Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries are also subject to the insurance holding company laws of a number of states. Certain
dividends and distributions by an insurance subsidiary are subject to prior approval by the insurance regulators of its state of
domicile. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “Kemper relies on receiving dividends from its subsidiaries to service
its debt, to pay dividends to its shareholders or make repurchases of its stock.” Other significant transactions between an
insurance subsidiary and its holding company or other affiliates may require approval by insurance regulators in the state of
domicile of each participating insurance subsidiary. A number of pending and recently approved legislative and regulatory
measures may significantly affect the insurance business. In particular, nearly half of all states have already adopted extensive
modifications to their holding company laws based on amendments to the Model Insurance Holding Company System
Regulatory Act (“IHCS”) adopted by the NAIC in December 2010. With varying effective dates beginning in 2014, these
modifications impose new reporting requirements and substantially expand the oversight and examination powers of state
insurance regulators with regulatory authority over an insurance company to assess enterprise risks within such company’s
entire holding company system that may arise from operations of its insurance and non-insurance affiliates. They also impose
new reporting requirements on the ultimate controlling persons of such insurance companies in respect of, among other things,
affiliated transactions and divestiture of controlling interests in the insurance companies. In addition, a number of states have
adopted RMORSA adopted by the NAIC in September 2012. With varying effective dates beginning in 2015, RMORSA
requires insurers to maintain an enterprise risk management (“ERM”) framework, perform regular assessments of the adequacy
of the ERM framework and the company’s solvency and file an annual ERM assessment summary report. Similarly, in late
2014, the NAIC adopted the Corporate Governance Annual Disclosure Model Act (“CGADM”) and Model Regulation. The
CGADM has an effective date of June 1, 2016, and when adopted by a state, requires an insurer (or insurance group) to submit
a Corporate Governance Annual Disclosure to its lead state or domestic regulator to provide, among other things, information
about board structure and policies, meeting frequency, procedures for the oversight of critical risk areas and practices, and
policies and practices used by the board of directors for directing senior management in critical areas such as codes of business
conduct and ethics and governance processes. The Company anticipates that most states will adopt legislation based on ITHCS,
RMORSA and CGADM. Additional regulation has also resulted from other measures in recent years including, among other
things, tort reform, the Health Care Acts, the DFA, consumer privacy and data security requirements, credit score regulation,
producer compensation regulations, cyber security and financial services regulation initiatives.

State insurance laws also impose requirements that must be met prior to a change of control of an insurance company or
insurance holding company based on the insurer’s state of domicile and, in some cases, additional states in which it is deemed
commercially domiciled due to the substantial amount of business it conducts therein. These requirements may include the
advance filing of specific information with the state insurance regulators, a public hearing on the matter, and the review and
approval of the change of control by such regulators. The Company has insurance subsidiaries domiciled or deemed
commercially domiciled in Alabama, California, Illinois, Louisiana, Missouri, New York, Oklahoma, Oregon, Texas and
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Wisconsin. In these states, except Alabama, “control” generally is presumed to exist through the direct or indirect ownership of
10% or more of the voting securities of an insurance company. Control is presumed to exist in Alabama with a 5% or more
ownership interest in such securities. Any purchase of Kemper’s shares that would result in the purchaser owning Kemper’s
voting securities in the foregoing percentages for the states indicated would be presumed to result in the acquisition of control
of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries in those states. Therefore, acquisitions subject to the 10% threshold generally would require
the prior approval of insurance regulators in each state in which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are domiciled or deemed
commercially domiciled, including those in Alabama, while acquisitions subject to the 5% threshold generally would require
the prior approval of only Alabama regulators. Similarly, consistent with the IHCS, several states have enacted legislation that
requires either the acquiring and/or divesting company to notify and receive regulatory approval for a change in control. Other
states are expected to adopt similar provisions.

Many state statutes also require pre-acquisition notification to state insurance regulators of a change of control of an insurance
company licensed in the state if specific market concentration thresholds would be triggered by the acquisition. Such statutes
authorize the issuance of a cease and desist order with respect to the insurance company if certain conditions, such as undue
market concentration, would result from the acquisition. These regulatory requirements may deter, delay or prevent transactions
effecting control of Kemper or its insurance subsidiaries, or the ownership of Kemper’s voting securities, including transactions
that could be advantageous to Kemper’s shareholders.

Dodd-Frank Act

The DFA, enacted in July 2010, profoundly increases federal regulation of the financial services industry, of which the
insurance industry is a part. Among other things, the DFA formed a Federal Insurance Office (“FIO”) charged with monitoring
the insurance industry and conducting a study on methods to modernize and improve the insurance regulatory system in the
United States. FIO’s report, delivered to Congress in December 2013, concluded that a hybrid approach to regulation, involving
a combination of state and federal government action, could improve the U.S. insurance system by attaining uniformity,
efficiency and consistency, particularly with respect to solvency and market conduct regulation. A hybrid approach was also
recommended to address the perceived need for uniform supervision of insurance companies with national and global activities.
FIO recently established the Federal Advisory Committee on Insurance (“FACI””) whose mission is to provide recommendations
to FIO on issues it monitors for Congress. While the NAIC continues to promote the strengths of the U.S. state-based insurance
regulatory system, both FIO/FACI and international standard setting authorities such as the International Association of
Insurance Supervisors are actively seeking a role in shaping the future of the U.S. insurance regulatory framework. It is too
early to know whether or how these organizations’ recommendations might result in changes to the current state-based system
of insurance industry regulation or ultimately impact Kemper’s operations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Kemper is exposed to numerous risk factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from recent results or anticipated
future results. The following discussion details the significant risk factors that are specific to the Company. In addition to those
described below, the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially affected by other
factors not presently known by, or considered material to, the Company. Readers are advised to consider all of these factors
along with the other information included in this 2014 Annual Report, and to consult any further disclosures Kemper makes on
related subjects in its filings with the SEC.

Changes in the application of state unclaimed property laws and related insurance claims handling practices, particularly
attempts by state officials to apply such changes retroactively to existing insurance policies through new laws and
regulations, examinations and audits, could result in new requirements that would have a significant effect on (including an
acceleration of) the payment and/or escheatment of life insurance death benefits and significantly increase claims handling
costs relative to what is currently contemplated by Kemper. If attempts by state officials to impose such new requirements on
existing insurance policies are successful on a wide scale, there is a potential for their collective effects to be materially
adverse to the Company’s profitability, financial position and cash flows (the “Unclaimed Property Risk Factor”).

In recent years, many states have begun to aggressively expand the application of their unclaimed property laws as they relate
to life insurance proceeds. The treasurers or controllers (collectively, “Treasurers™) of a large majority of states have engaged
private audit firms to examine the practices and procedures of life insurance companies with respect to the reporting and
remittance of proceeds associated with life insurance policies, annuity contracts and retained asset accounts under state
unclaimed property laws. Certain related measures are also being taken or considered by state insurance regulators, both
individually and collectively through the auspices of the NAIC. Some state insurance regulators have initiated market conduct
examinations focused on claims handling and escheatment practices of life insurance companies.
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As a result of these audits and examinations, a number of large life insurance companies have agreed to alter historic practices
that were previously considered to be lawful and appropriate relative to claims handling and the reporting and remittance of life
insurance policy proceeds to the states under state unclaimed property laws. Based on published reports, at least sixteen life
insurance companies have entered into settlement agreements with state insurance regulators and twenty-one with Treasurers.
Under the terms of these agreements, the settling insurance companies typically have agreed to establish a practice of
periodically searching for deceased insureds, even prior to the receipt of a death claim, by comparing their in-force policy
records against a database of reported deaths maintained by the Social Security Administration or a comparable database
(collectively, a “Death Master File” or “DMF”). The settlements typically apply to policies that were in force at any time since
January 1, 1992. In conducting these data comparisons against a Death Master File, the insurers are required to use complex
“fuzzy” matching criteria which in many cases result in numerous potential matches for any given insured. In such cases, the
insurer must either assume a costly and administratively burdensome process of disproving any such ambiguous matches which
may, in some cases, necessitate a review of older records that are not in electronic form or accept such matches as valid and
escheat the related policy benefits to the states if the beneficiaries cannot be found. All settlements to date with insurance
regulators have involved payment of monetary penalties (involving amounts ranging from about $1.2 million up to $40
million), while settlements with Treasurers have required payment of interest on sums remitted to the Treasurers dating from the
date of death of the insured (rather than from a more recent date linked to the insurer’s first awareness of death) and extending
as far back as January 1, 1995. As hereafter described, Kemper’s life insurance subsidiaries (the “Life Companies”) have thus
far resisted attempts by certain state officials and their agents to mandate changes to the Life Companies’ claims handling and
escheatment practices of the sort embodied in the foregoing settlements and have challenged through legal proceedings the
authority of such officials to require such changes. There can be no assurances that the Life Companies will ultimately be
successful in resisting such attempts or any that may arise in the future.

Separately, the National Conference of Insurance Legislators (“NCOIL”) has adopted model legislation which, if enacted by
states as proposed, would require life insurance companies to compare their in-force life insurance policy records against a
Death Master File for the purpose of proactively identifying potentially deceased insureds for whom the subject life insurance
company has not yet received a claim, including due proof of death. Ten states have enacted legislation of this type, with
varying effective dates (the “DMF Statutes”). Such statutes, if construed to apply to life insurance policies in force on each
respective statute’s effective date, could have a significant effect on, including an acceleration of, the payment of life insurance
benefits to beneficiaries or, in instances where beneficiaries could not be located, the remittance of such benefits to the states
under their unclaimed property laws. In contrast, New Mexico and Tennessee have enacted a version of the model legislation
that applies only prospectively to life insurance companies, like Kemper’s Life Companies, that have not previously used a
Death Master File. Similarly, Georgia, Mississippi and Alabama have enacted statutes that apply only to policies issued on or
after their respective effective dates, without regard to prior Death Master File use. Various forms of DMF legislation are
pending in several states, and Kemper believes that it is likely that a number of other states will introduce (or re-introduce)
legislation of this sort in 2015. Kemper cannot presently predict whether any of such pending or future legislation will be
enacted or, if enacted, exactly what form such legislation will take.

In November 2012, certain of the Life Companies filed a declaratory judgment action in Kentucky state court challenging the
Kentucky DMF Statute on statutory and constitutional grounds, insofar as it purports to impose new requirements with respect
to existing, previously issued life insurance policies. The trial court in that case denied the subject Life Companies’ motion for
summary judgment and held that the requirements of the Kentucky DMF Statute apply to life insurance policies issued before
the Kentucky DMF Statute’s January 1, 2013 effective date. The Life Companies appealed the trial court decision to the
Kentucky Court of Appeals, and in August 2014, in a unanimous opinion, the Kentucky Court of Appeals reversed the trial
court and held that the Kentucky DMF statute fell within Kentucky’s statutory presumption against retroactivity. As a result, the
Court ruled, the Kentucky DMF Statute can only apply to policies issued on and after January 1, 2013. In September 2014, the
Kentucky Department of Insurance filed a motion asking for the Kentucky Supreme Court to undertake a discretionary review
of the Court of Appeals’ ruling. A decision by the Kentucky Supreme Court on whether to review the Court of Appeals’ decision
is expected by the third quarter of 2015.

In July 2013, certain of the Life Companies filed a declaratory judgment action, similar to the Kentucky action, in Maryland
state court asking the court to construe the Maryland DMF Statute to apply only prospectively, i.e., only with respect to those
life insurance policies issued in Maryland on or after the effective date of the Maryland DMF Statute, consistent with what the
Life Companies believe are the requirements of the Maryland Constitution and the Contract Clause of the United States
Constitution. The Maryland Insurance Administration filed a motion to dismiss the action on jurisdictional grounds, contending
that the Life Companies failed to first exhaust their administrative remedies before filing their action in the trial court. In March
2014, the trial court granted the Maryland Insurance Administration’s motion. The Life Companies appealed the trial court’s
ruling to the Maryland Court of Special Appeals. The Maryland appellate courts have declined to stay enforcement of the
Maryland DMF Statute pending the appeal, and the Life Companies are complying with the Maryland DMF Statute while they
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continue to pursue their appeal. The Life Companies’ appeal was heard by the Maryland Court of Special Appeals in December
2014. The parties are awaiting the court’s decision.

In August 2014, certain of the Life Companies filed a declaratory judgment action in Indiana state court, asking the court to
construe the Indiana DMF Statute to apply only prospectively, i.e., only with respect to those life insurance policies issued in
Indiana on or after the effective date of the Indiana DMF Statute, consistent with what the Life Companies believe are the
requirements of applicable Indiana statutory law, the Indiana Constitution and the Contract Clause of the United States
Constitution. The Indiana Department of Insurance filed an answer in response to the subject Life Companies’ complaint in
October 2014, and the Life Companies filed a motion for summary judgment in January 2015. A hearing on that motion is
scheduled for May 2015.

The Life Companies are the subject of an unclaimed property compliance audit (the “Treasurers’ Audit”) by a private audit firm
retained by the Treasurers of 38 states (the “Audit Firm”). In July 2013, the California State Controller (the “CA Controller”)
filed a complaint for injunctive relief against the Life Companies in state court in California, seeking an order requiring the Life
Companies to produce all of their in-force insurance policy records to the Audit Firm to enable the firm to perform a
comparison of such records against a Death Master File and to ascertain whether any of the insureds under such policies may be
deceased. In December 2013, the CA Controller filed a motion for preliminary injunction seeking the same injunctive relief. A
hearing on that motion has been continued until the California Court of Appeals rules on a preliminary injunction order issued
in a related case involving an unaffiliated life insurance company, entitled Chiang v. American National Insurance Company
(the “ANICO Appeal”). The Life Companies have filed a cross-complaint in their case against the CA Controller, seeking a
declaration that there is no obligation under California’s unclaimed property law to perform a Death Master File comparison
and that the Audit Firm cannot obtain the Life Companies’ records for the purpose of performing such a comparison. The CA
Controller has filed a motion to dismiss the Life Companies’ cross-complaint, contending that the Life Companies’ request for a
declaratory judgment of their rights and obligations under California’s unclaimed property law is premature and not ripe for
adjudication. A hearing on that motion has also been continued by the court until the Court of Appeals issues its decision in the
ANICO Appeal. In July 2014, the court granted a motion by the CA Controller to stay the litigation in its entirety, including all
discovery, pending a decision by the Court of Appeals in the ANICO Appeal. Oral argument in the ANICO Appeal has been
scheduled for February 2015 with a decision likely by the end of the second quarter of 2015. The current stay of the CA
Controller’s case against the Life Companies means that no substantive ruling is likely to occur before late 2015. In related
activity, the CA Controller’s petition for coordination of the lawsuits pending in CA involving its unclaimed property audits of
five life insurers, including the lawsuit against the Life Companies, seeking to have them all heard by the same court was
denied in January 2015. Pending the outcome of this litigation, the Life Companies have not produced any of their in-force
policy records to the CA Controller.

The Life Companies are the subject of a multi-state market conduct examination by five state insurance regulators, which
examination is focused on the Life Companies’ claim settlement and policy administration practices, and specifically their
compliance with state unclaimed property statutes (the “Multi-State Exam”). In July 2013, the Life Companies received
requests from the Illinois Department of Insurance, as the managing lead state for the Multi-State Exam, for a significant
volume of information beyond that which the Life Companies had already produced, including all of the subject Life
Companies’ records of in-force policies and other information of the type requested by the Audit Firm as part of the Treasurers
Audit and which is the subject of the CA Controller’s complaint. This request prompted the Illinois litigation noted below. In
August 2014, the Illinois Department of Insurance appointed a law firm to act as an additional examiner in the Multi-State
Exam, which remains ongoing.

>

In September 2013, certain of the Life Companies filed declaratory judgment actions against the insurance regulators in four
states participating in the Multi-State Exam (Illinois, California, Pennsylvania and Florida), asking the courts in those states to
declare that applicable insurance laws do not require life insurers to search a Death Master File to ascertain whether insureds
are deceased, and to further declare that the regulators in those states do not have legal authority to (i) obtain life insurers’
policy records for the purpose of comparing data from those records against a Death Master File, and/or (ii) impose payment
obligations on life insurers before a claim and due proof of death have been submitted by policy beneficiaries. In response to
the Illinois declaratory judgment action, the Illinois Department of Insurance and its Director (collectively, the “IDOI”) filed a
motion to dismiss, and in July 2014, the court in Illinois denied, in part, such motion. Specifically, the court allowed to stand
the count in the Life Companies’ complaint that the IDOI cannot compel the Life Companies to provide their policy records to
the IDOI or persons acting on the IDOI’s behalf so as to permit a comparison against the DMF for purposes of identifying
deceased insureds, as well as the associated claim for injunctive relief. The court dismissed with prejudice the other counts in
the complaint. In August 2014, the IDOI filed its answer to the counts of the complaint that the Illinois court allowed to stand,
and in October 2014, the Life Companies filed a motion for summary judgment with respect to those remaining counts. The
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IDOI filed cross motions for summary judgment in December 2014. Formal briefing and a hearing schedule on the summary
judgment motions are expected to be set by the court at a May 2015 status conference. The Life Companies’ actions against
regulators in Pennsylvania and Florida are currently stayed by agreement of the parties pending the outcome of the Illinois
action. The action against regulators in California, which was filed as part of a counterclaim in the CA Controller litigation, is
stayed as described above.

Should these various efforts by state officials succeed in retroactively imposing new claims handling and escheatment
requirements with regard to previously issued life insurance policies, such requirements could have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s profitability, financial position and cash flows. The Company’s stance in opposition to the aforementioned
actions by state legislators, Treasurers and insurance regulators, including the Life Company’s initiation of the litigation
described above, also creates a risk of reputational damage to the Company among various constituencies (including its
principal insurance regulators, rating agencies, investors, insurance agents and policyholders), particularly if the Company’s
position is not ultimately vindicated.

See Note 22, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the sections of the MD&A entitled “Life & Health
Insurance” and “Liquidity and Capital Resources” for additional information on the legal proceedings, including lawsuits,
regulatory examinations and inquiries, and other matters described above.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulation, and emerging practices in the evolving legal and
regulatory landscape in which they operate could result in increased operating costs, reduced profitability and limited
growth.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries operate under an extensive insurance regulatory system. Current laws and regulations
encompass a wide variety of matters, including policy forms, premium rates, licensing, market conduct, trade practices, claims
practices, reserve and loss ratio requirements, investment standards, statutory capital and surplus requirements, restrictions on
the payment of dividends, approvals of transactions involving a change in control of one or more insurance companies,
restrictions on transactions among affiliates and consumer privacy. They also require the filing of annual and quarterly financial
reports and reports on holding company issues and other matters. Pre-approval requirements restrict the companies from
implementing premium rate changes for property, casualty and health insurance policies, introducing new, or making changes to
existing, policy forms and many other actions. Insurance regulators conduct periodic examinations of Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries and can suspend or delay their operations or licenses, require corrective actions, and impose penalties or other
remedies available for compliance failures. For a more detailed discussion of the regulations applicable to Kemper’s
subsidiaries and these new developments, see “Regulation” in Item 1, beginning on page 10.

These laws and regulations, and their interpretation by the various regulators and courts, are undergoing continual revision and
expansion. The legal and regulatory landscape within which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries conduct their businesses is often
unpredictable. As industry practices and regulatory, judicial, political, social and other conditions change, unexpected and
unintended issues may emerge. These emerging practices, conditions and issues could adversely affect Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries in a variety of ways, including, for example, by expansion of coverages beyond their underwriting intent,
increasing the number or size of claims or accelerating the payment of claims. Industry practices that were considered approved
or legally-compliant and reasonable for years may suddenly be deemed unacceptable by virtue of an unexpected court or
regulatory ruling or changes in regulatory enforcement policies and practices. One example is the changing application by
various state officials of state unclaimed property laws and related claims handling practices that is discussed in the preceding
risk factor. Anticipating such shifts in the law and the impact they may have on the Company and its operations is a difficult
task and there can be no assurances that the Company will not encounter such shifts in the future.

The financial market turmoil has resulted in additional scrutiny and proposed regulation of the financial services industry,
including insurance companies and their holding company systems. While it is not possible to predict how new laws or
regulations or new interpretations of existing laws and regulations may impact the operations of Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries, several recent developments have the potential to significantly impact such operations. This includes state
adoption of extensive modifications to the IHCS that will, among other things, substantially expand the oversight and
examination powers of state insurance regulators beyond licensed insurance companies to their non-insurance affiliates and
impose new reporting requirements with respect to, among other things, enterprise risk to the organization as a whole, affiliated
transactions, and any divestiture of controlling interests in an insurer. In addition, federal legislation has resulted in regulations
affecting health insurers under the Health Care Acts, and potential changes to the state insurance regulatory system may result
from the DFA. See the discussion of the NAIC model act and the DFA under “Regulation” in Item 1, beginning on page 10.

These new developments and significant changes in, or new interpretations of, existing laws and regulations could make it more
expensive for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to conduct and grow their businesses.
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Legal and regulatory proceedings are unpredictable and, in particular, the phenomenon of runaway jury verdicts could
result in one or more unexpected verdicts against the Company that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial results for any given period.

Kemper and its subsidiaries are from time to time involved in lawsuits, regulatory inquiries, and other legal proceedings arising
out of the ordinary course of their businesses. Some of these proceedings may involve matters particular to Kemper or one or
more of its subsidiaries, while others may pertain to business practices in the industry in which Kemper and its subsidiaries
operate. Some lawsuits may seek class action status that, if granted, could expose the Company to potentially significant
liability by virtue of the size of the putative classes. These matters raise difficult factual and legal issues and are subject to
uncertainties and complexities. The outcomes of these matters are difficult to predict, and the amounts or ranges of potential
loss at particular stages in the proceedings are in most cases difficult or impossible to ascertain. A further complication is that
even where the possibility of an adverse outcome is deemed to be remote using traditional legal analysis, juries sometimes can
and do substitute their subjective views in place of facts and established legal principles. Given the unpredictability of the legal
and regulatory landscape in which the Company operates, there can be no assurance that one or more of these matters will not
produce a result that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial results for any given period.

For information about the Company’s pending litigation, see Note 22, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Catastrophe losses could materially and adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity and/or financial
condition, the availability of reinsurance and the ratings of Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries.

Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries are subject to claims arising out of catastrophes that may have a
significant effect on their results of operations, liquidity and financial condition. Catastrophes can be caused by various events,
including, but not limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, windstorms, earthquakes, hailstorms, explosions, severe winter weather and
wildfires and may include man-made events, such as terrorist attacks and hazardous material spills. The incidence, frequency
and severity of catastrophes are inherently unpredictable and may be impacted by the uncertain effects of climate change. The
extent of the Company’s losses from a catastrophe is a function of both the total amount of insured exposure in the geographic
area affected by the event and the severity of the event. The Company could experience more than one severe catastrophic
event in any given period.

Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries are particularly exposed to risks of catastrophic mortality, such as pandemic or
other events that result in large numbers of deaths. In addition, the occurrence of such an event in a concentrated geographic
area could have a severe disruptive effect on the Company’s workforce and business operations. The likelihood and severity of
such events cannot be predicted and are difficult to estimate.

The Company uses catastrophe modeling tools developed by third parties to project its potential exposure to catastrophic events
under various scenarios. Such models are based on various assumptions and judgments which may turn out to be wrong. The
actual impact of one or more catastrophic events could adversely and materially differ from these projections.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries seek to reduce their exposure to catastrophe losses through the purchase of catastrophe
reinsurance. Reinsurance does not relieve Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries of their direct liability to their policyholders. As
long as the reinsurers meet their obligations, the net liability for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries is limited to the amount of risk
that they retain. While the Company’s principal reinsurers are each rated “A-" or better by A.M. Best at the time reinsurance is
purchased, the Company cannot be certain that reinsurers will pay the amounts due from them either now, in the future, or on a
timely basis. A reinsurer’s insolvency or inability to make payments under the terms of its reinsurance agreement could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations and liquidity.

In addition, market conditions beyond the Company’s control determine the availability of the reinsurance protection that
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries may purchase. A decrease in the amount of reinsurance protection that Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries purchase generally should increase their risk of a more severe loss. However, if the amount of available reinsurance
is reduced, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries may be forced to incur additional expenses for reinsurance or may not be able to
obtain sufficient reinsurance on acceptable terms, which could adversely affect the ability of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to
write future insurance policies or result in their retaining more risk with respect to such policies.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries also manage their exposure to catastrophe losses through underwriting strategies such as
reducing exposures in, or withdrawing from, catastrophe-prone areas, establishing appropriate guidelines for insurable
structures, and setting appropriate rates, deductibles, exclusions and policy limits. The extent to which Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries can manage their exposure through such strategies may be limited by law or regulatory action. For example, laws
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and regulations may limit the rate or timing at which insurers may non-renew insurance policies in catastrophe-prone areas or
require insurers to participate in wind pools and joint underwriting associations. Generally, an insurer’s participation in such
pools and associations are based on the insurer’s market share determined on a state-wide basis. Accordingly, even though
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries may not incur a direct insured loss as a result of managing direct catastrophe exposures, they
may incur indirect losses from required participation in pools and associations. Laws and regulations requiring prior approval of
policy forms and premium rates may limit the ability of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to increase rates or deductibles on a
timely basis, which may result in additional losses or lower returns than otherwise would have occurred in an unregulated
market. See the risk factor above under the title “Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulation, and
emerging practices in the evolving legal and regulatory landscape in which they operate could result in increased operating
costs, reduced profitability and limited growth.”

If the catastrophic risk retained by Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries increases, rating agencies may downgrade the ratings of
Kemper and/or its insurance subsidiaries or require Kemper to retain more capital in its insurance businesses to maintain
existing ratings. See the risk factor below under the title “A significant downgrade in the ratings of Kemper or its insurance
subsidiaries could adversely affect the Company.”

A significant downgrade in the ratings of Kemper or its insurance subsidiaries could adversely and materially affect the
Company.

Third-party rating agencies assess the financial strength and rate the claims-paying ability of insurance companies based on
criteria established by the rating agencies. Third-party ratings are important competitive factors in the insurance industry.
Financial strength ratings are used to assess the financial strength and quality of insurers. A significant downgrade by A.M. Best
in the ratings of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries, particularly those operating in the preferred and standard market or offering
homeowners insurance, could result in a substantial loss of business if agents or policyholders of such subsidiaries move to
other companies with higher claims-paying and financial strength ratings. Any substantial loss of business could have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition and results of operations of such subsidiaries. A downgrade in Kemper’s credit rating
by Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”), Moody’s Investors Services (“Moody’s”) or Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) may reduce Kemper’s
ability to access the capital markets for general corporate purposes or refinance existing debt.

The insurance industry is highly competitive.

The Company’s insurance businesses face significant competition, and their ability to compete is affected by a variety of issues
relative to others in the industry, such as product pricing, service quality, financial strength and name recognition. Competitive
success is based on many factors, including, but not limited to, the following:

*  Competitiveness of prices charged for insurance policies;

*  Sophistication of pricing segmentation;

»  Selection of agents and other business partners;

«  Compensation paid to agents;

*  Underwriting discipline;

»  Selectiveness of sales markets;

»  Effectiveness of marketing materials and name recognition;
*  Product and technological innovation;

»  Ability to detect and prevent fraudulent insurance claims;

*  Ability to control operating expenses;

»  Financial strength ratings; and

*  Quality of services provided to, and ease of doing business with, agents and policyholders.

The inability to compete effectively in any of the Company’s insurance businesses could materially reduce the Company’s
customer base and revenues and could adversely affect the future results and financial condition of the Company.

See “Competition” in Item 1 of Part I beginning on page 7 and page 10, for more information on the competitive rankings in the
property and casualty insurance markets and the life and health insurance markets, respectively, in the United States.

Reserve National’s operating history with its expanded distribution channels and new products is limited.

Reserve National’s business model, which has traditionally focused on providing limited benefit and supplemental accident and
health insurance coverages to persons who lack access to traditional private options, was adversely affected by the Health Care
Acts. In response, Reserve National has adapted its business model by placing emphasis on designing and selling supplemental
health insurance products that are not expected to be as severely impacted by the Health Care Acts and ceasing to issue health
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insurance products that are more severely impacted. Because Reserve National’s operating history with respect to some of these
supplemental health insurance products is limited, it supplements its data with industry data and experience in determining rates
to charge for these products and projecting returns. It will take several years to develop company-specific experience. Reserve
National’s actual experience could adversely and materially differ from the data and experience on which assumptions and
projections are based.

Reserve National has expanded its distribution channels over the past two years, launching Kemper Senior Solutions and
Kemper Benefits. Kemper Senior Solutions markets small face value, or final expense, life insurance and home health care
products focusing on the individual senior age demographic of the market place. Kemper Benefits sells voluntary supplemental
insurance products in the employer marketplace. Brokers and non-exclusive independent agents are utilized to market and
distribute products in these new distribution channels. Reserve National appointed approximately 20,000 independent agents
during the past two years in connection with these initiatives. Reserve National has limited history on how some of its products
will perform using these distribution channels. It will take several years to determine if actual performance meets, exceeds or is
below expectations. If performance is below expectations, Reserve National’s financial position, returns and valuation could be
adversely and materially impacted for many years due to the long-term nature of some of the products sold through these
distribution channels.

Failure to maintain the security of personal data and the availability of critical systems may result in lost business,
reputational harm, and legal costs and regulatory penalties.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries obtain and store vast amounts of personal data that can present significant risks to the
Company and its customers and employees. An increasing array of laws and regulations govern the use and storage of such
data, including, for example, social security numbers, credit card data and personal health information. The Company’s data
systems are vulnerable to security breaches due to the sophistication of cyber-attacks, viruses, malware, hackers and other
external hazards, as well as inadvertent errors, equipment and system failures, and employee misconduct. The Company also
relies on the ability of its business partners to maintain secure systems and processes that comply with legal requirements and
protect personal data. These increased risks and expanding regulatory requirements related to personal data security expose the
Company to potential data loss and resulting damages, reputational risk and significant increases in compliance and litigation
costs. In the event of non-compliance with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard, an information security standard
for organizations that handle cardholder information for the major debit, credit, prepaid, e-purse, ATM and point-of-sale cards,
such organizations could prevent Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries from collecting premium payments from customers by way
of such cards and impose significant fines on Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries.

The Company’s business operations rely on the continuous availability of its computer systems. In addition to disruptions
caused by cyber-attacks or other data breaches, such systems may be adversely affected by natural and man-made catastrophes.
The Company’s failure to maintain business continuity in the wake of such events may prevent the timely completion of critical
processes across its operations, including, for example, insurance policy administration, claims processing, billing, treasury and
investment operations and payroll. These failures could result in significant loss of business, fines and litigation.

The Company’s investment portfolio is exposed to a variety of risks that may negatively impact net investment income and
cause realized and unrealized losses.

The Company maintains a diversified investment portfolio that is exposed to significant financial and capital market risks,
including interest rate (risk-free and spread), equity price, and liquidity, as well as risks from changes in tax laws and
regulations and other risks from changes in general economic conditions.

The interest rate environment has a significant impact on the Company’s financial results and position. In recent years, rates
have been at or near historic lows. A protracted low interest rate environment would continue to place pressure on net
investment income, particularly related to fixed income securities, short-term investments and limited liability investment
companies and limited partnerships accounted for under the equity method of accounting (“Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments™) that invest in distressed and mezzanine debt of other companies. A decline in interest rates would generally
increase the carrying value of the Company’s fixed income securities and its Equity Method Limited Liability Investments that
exhibit debt-like characteristics, but it may have an adverse effect on the Company’s investment income as it invests cash in
new investments that may yield less than the portfolio’s average rate. In a declining interest rate environment, borrowers may
seek to refinance their borrowings at lower rates and, accordingly, prepay or redeem securities the Company holds as
investments more quickly than the Company initially expected. Such prepayment or redemption action may cause the
Company to reinvest the redeemed proceeds in lower yielding investments. An increase in interest rates would generally
reduce the carrying value of a substantial portion of the Company’s investment portfolio, particularly fixed income securities
and Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, which typically provide higher returns but at a higher risk.
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The Company invests a portion of its investment portfolio in equity securities, which generally have more volatile returns than
fixed income securities and may experience sustained periods of depressed values. There are multiple factors that could
negatively impact the performance of the Company’s equity portfolio, including general economic conditions, industry or
sector deterioration and issuer-specific concerns. A decline in equity values may result in a decrease in dividend income,
realized losses upon sales of the securities, or other-than-temporary impairment charges on securities still held.

Interest rates and equity returns also have a significant impact on the Company’s pension and postretirement employee benefit
plans. In addition to the impact on carrying values and yields of the underlying assets of the funded plans, interest rates also
impact the discounting of the projected and accumulated benefit obligations of the plans. A decrease in interest rates may have
a negative impact on the funded status of the plans.

The nature and cash flow needs of the Company and the insurance industry in general present certain liquidity risks that may
impact the return of the investment portfolio. If the Company were to experience several significant catastrophic events over a
relatively short period of time, investments may have to be sold in advance of their maturity dates to fund payments to
claimants, which could result in realized losses. Additionally, increases in illiquidity in the financial markets may increase
uncertainty in the valuations of the Company’s investments. This increases the risk that the fair values reported in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements may differ from the actual price that may be obtained in an orderly sales
transaction.

The Company has also benefited from certain tax laws related to its investment portfolio, including dividends received
deductions and tax-exempt municipal securities. Changes in tax laws may have a detrimental effect on the after-tax return of
the Company’s investment portfolio.

The Company’s entire investment portfolio is subject to broad risks inherent in the financial markets, including, but not limited
to, inflation, regulatory changes, inactive capital markets, governmental and social stability, economic outlooks,
unemployment and recession. Changes to these risks and how the market perceives them may impact the financial
performance of the Company’s investments.

Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries are subject to various risk rating and capital adequacy measurements that are
significantly impacted by various characteristics of their invested assets, including, but not limited to, asset type, class and
credit rating. The Company’s insurance subsidiaries are also subject to various limitations on the amounts at which they can
invest in individual assets or certain asset classes in the aggregate. Asset risk is one factor used by insurance regulators and
rating agencies to determine required capital for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries. Accordingly, a deterioration in the quality of
the investments held by Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries or an increase in the investment risk inherent in their investment
portfolios could increase capital requirements. See risk factor below under the title “Kemper relies on receiving dividends
from its subsidiaries to service its debt, to pay dividends to its shareholders and/or make repurchases of its stock.” These
factors may inhibit the Company from shifting its investment mix to produce higher returns. The Company is also subject to
concentration of investment risk to the extent that the portfolio is heavily invested, at any particular time, in specific asset
types, classes, industries, sectors or collateral types, among other defining features. Developments and the market’s perception
thereof in any of these concentrations may exacerbate the negative effects on the Company’s investment portfolio compared to
other companies.

Estimating losses and LAE for determining property and casualty insurance reserves, or determining premium rates, is
inherently uncertain, and the Company’s results of operations may be materially impacted if the Company’s insurance
reserves or premium rates are insufficient.

The Company establishes loss and LAE reserves to cover estimated liabilities, which remain unpaid as of the end of each
accounting period, and to investigate and settle all claims incurred under the property and casualty insurance policies that it has
issued. Loss and LAE reserves are established for claims that have been reported to the Company as of the end of the
accounting period, as well as for claims that have occurred but have not yet been reported to the Company. The estimates of
loss and LAE reserves are based on the Company’s assessment of the facts and circumstances known to it at the time, as well as
estimates of the impact of future trends in the severity of claims, the frequency of claims and other factors. See MD&A,
“Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment
Expenses” beginning on page 53 for a discussion of the Company’s reserving process and the factors considered by the
Company’s actuaries in estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves.

The process of estimating property and casualty insurance reserves is complex and imprecise. The reserves established by the
Company are inherently uncertain estimates and could prove to be inadequate to cover its ultimate losses and expenses for
insured events that have occurred. The estimate of the ultimate cost of claims for insured events that have occurred must take
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into consideration many factors that are dependent on the outcome of future events associated with the reporting, investigation
and settlement of claims. The impacts on the Company’s estimates of property and casualty insurance reserves from these
factors are difficult to assess accurately. A change in any one or more of the factors is likely to result in a projected ultimate loss
that is different than the previous projected ultimate loss and may have a material impact on the Company’s estimate of the
projected ultimate loss. Increases in the estimates of ultimate losses and LAE will decrease earnings, while decreases in such
estimates will increase earnings, as reported by the Company in the results of its operations for the periods in which the changes
to the estimates are made by the Company.

The Company’s actuaries also consider trends in the severity and frequency of claims and other factors when determining the
premium rates to charge for its property and casualty insurance products. An unanticipated change in any one or more of these
factors or trends, as well as a change in competitive conditions, may also result in inadequate premium rates charged for
insurance policies issued by Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries in the future. Such pricing inadequacies
could have a material impact on the Company’s operating results.

Kemper relies on receiving dividends from its subsidiaries to service its debt, to pay dividends to its shareholders and/or
make repurchases of its stock.

As a holding company with no business operations of its own, Kemper depends on the dividend income that it receives from its
subsidiaries as the primary source of funds to pay interest and principal on its outstanding debt obligations, to pay dividends to
its shareholders and to make repurchases of its stock. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulatory
restrictions under state insurance laws and regulations that limit their ability to declare and pay dividends. These laws and
regulations impose minimum solvency and liquidity requirements on dividends between affiliated companies and require prior
notice to, and may require approval from, state insurance regulators before dividends can be paid. In addition, third-party rating
agencies monitor statutory capital and surplus levels for capital adequacy. Even though a dividend may be payable without
regulatory approval, an insurance subsidiary may forgo paying a dividend to Kemper and retain the capital in its insurance
subsidiaries to maintain or improve the ratings of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries. The inability of one or more of Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries to pay sufficient dividends to Kemper may materially affect Kemper’s ability to pay its debt obligations
on time, to pay dividends to its shareholders or make repurchases of its stock.

Managing technology initiatives to address business developments and regulatory requirements present significant
challenges to the Company.

While technological developments can streamline many business processes and ultimately reduce the cost of operations,
technology initiatives can present short-term cost and implementation risks. In addition, projections of expenses and
implementation schedules may be inaccurate and can escalate over time, while the ultimate utility of a technology initiative
could deteriorate over time. The financial services industry is highly regulated, and the Company faces rising costs and
competing time constraints in adapting technology to meet compliance requirements of new and proposed regulations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties.

Owned Properties

Kemper’s subsidiaries together own and occupy 13 buildings located in seven states consisting of approximately 49,000 square
feet in the aggregate. Kemper’s subsidiaries hold additional properties that are not occupied by Kemper or its subsidiaries solely
for investment purposes.
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Leased Facilities

The Company leases five floors, or approximately 67,000 square feet, in a 41-story office building in Chicago for its corporate
headquarters and Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s headquarters. The lease expires in September 2023. Kemper’s
Property & Casualty Insurance segment leases facilities with an aggregate square footage of approximately 413,000 at 10
locations in eight states. The latest expiration date of the existing leases is in September 2023. Kemper’s Life & Health
Insurance segment leases facilities with aggregate square footage of approximately 460,000 at 127 locations in 27 states. The
latest expiration date of the existing leases is in January 2025. Kemper’s corporate data processing operation leases facilities
with aggregate square footage of approximately 36,000 square feet at two locations in two states. The latest expiration date of
the existing leases is in December 2018.

The properties described above are in good condition. The properties utilized in the Company’s operations consist of facilities
suitable for general office space, call centers and data processing operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
Proceedings

Information concerning pending legal proceedings is incorporated herein by reference to Note 22, “Contingencies,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities.

Market Information

Kemper’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) under the symbol of “KMPR.” Quarterly
information pertaining to market prices of Kemper common stock in 2014 and 2013 is presented below.

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
Common Stock Market Prices:
High oo e $ 40.99 $§ 4051 $ 3757 $ 37.63 $ 40.99
LOW oo 35.63 33.64 31.82 32.66 31.82
CLOSC.uevienieieeiieieie ettt ettt eaeens 39.17 36.86 34.15 36.11 36.11
Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
Common Stock Market Prices:
High oo $ 33.88 $ 3479 $ 36.56 $ 4131 $ 41.31
LOW e 29.87 30.43 33.23 33.49 29.87
ClOSC.cuiiiiieitetteete et 32.61 34.25 33.60 40.88 40.88
Holders

As of January 20, 2015, the number of record holders of Kemper’s common stock was 4,192.
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Dividends

Quarterly information pertaining to payment of dividends on Kemper’s common stock is presented below.

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014

Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share)...... $ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 0.96

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013

Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share) ...... $ 024 $ 024 % 024 $ 024 % 0.96

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to various state insurance laws that may restrict the ability of these insurance
subsidiaries to pay dividends without prior regulatory approval. See MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Note 8,

“Shareholders’ Equity,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information on Kemper’s ability and intent to pay
dividends.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Information pertaining to purchases of Kemper common stock for the three months ended December 31, 2014 follows.

Total Maximum

Number of Shares  Dollar Value of Shares

Average Purchased as Part that May Yet Be
Total Price of Publicly Purchased Under
Number of Shares Paid per Announced Plans  the Plans or Programs
Period Purchased (1) Share or Programs (1) (Dollars in Millions)
October 1 - October 31......ccovvvirueerrieceieenn. — N/A — 3 300.0
November 1 - November 30..........ccccoveverereiiennn — N/A — $ 300.0
December 1 - December 31........cccovvvviveveieneieinene. 258306 $ 34.94 258,306 $ 291.0

(1) On August 6, 2014, Kemper’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $300 million worth of Kemper’s
common stock. The repurchase program has no expiration date. See MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”
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Kemper Common Stock Performance Graph

The following graph assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2009 in (i) Kemper common stock, (ii) the S&P MidCap 400
Index and (iii) the S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index, in each case with dividends reinvested. Kemper is a constituent of
each of these two indices.

The comparisons in the graph below are based on historical data and are not intended to forecast the possible future
performance of Kemper common stock.

Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return

5250
5200
5150
100
S50
S0
1273104 12731410 12731711 12/31112 12731713 12/31/14
—.— Kemper Corporation —k—  S&P MidCap 400 Index
+ S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index
Company / Index 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Kemper Corporation .............c.cceceeveveirvereeereesiereeenens $ 100.00 $ 11534 $ 142.06 $ 14820 $ 211.19 § 191.54
S&P MidCap 400 IndeX......c.ccovvevvreriienienienieeieeeeeee 100.00 126.64 124.45 146.69 195.84 214.97
S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index ...........cc.c....... 100.00 116.03 108.01 128.66 187.52 203.86
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Selected financial information as of and for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2010 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR
Earned Premiums .........oooeevviiiieieiee e

Net Investment INCOME .........cocevvieeniiinieniinieniceeeece
Other INCOME.......ooeiiiieiieeiceie et
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments........................
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings .................
Total REVENUES.....cvevieeieeieieiiieiieieie ettt

Income from Continuing Operations.............ceeeeeevverrernenenn

Income from Discontinued Operations ...........cceceecuerueruenneen
Net INCOME ....ceveeniieiiiiiicece e
Per Unrestricted Share:
Income from Continuing Operations..........cccceceeeverueruenne
Income from Discontinued Operations ............ccccceeveneen.
Net INCOME ..ot
Per Unrestricted Share Assuming Dilution:
Income from Continuing Operations............ccccecververvennenn
Income from Discontinued Operations ...........c.cccceenenee.
Net INCOME ..o
Dividends Paid to Shareholders Per Share.............c.cccece.

AT YEAR END
TOtAl ASSELS....iiovvieieeeieeeee et ettt eaee e

Shareholders” EQUILY .......cccverierierieiieeie et
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity........ccccccevvveuennee.

Book Value Per Share.........cccoooveeviiiiiieiciieeieeceeeee e

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 1,8622 $ 20258 $ 2,107.1 $ 2,173.6 $ 2,289.4
309.1 314.7 295.9 298.0 325.7
1.4 0.8 0.8 1.0 13
39.1 99.1 65.4 337 42.6
(15.2) (13.9) (6.9) (11.3) (16.5)
$ 2,196.6 $ 24265 $ 24623 $ 24950 $ 2,642.5
$ 1126 $ 2145 $ 918 $ 617 $ 1624
1.9 32 11.6 12.8 15.5
$ 1145 $ 2177 $ 1034 $ 745 $ 177.9
$ 208 § 375 $ 155 $ 102 $ 262
0.04 0.06 0.20 0.21 0.25
$ 212§ 381 $ 175 $ 123 $ 287
$ 208 § 374 $ 154 $ 102 $ 262
0.04 0.06 0.20 0.21 0.25
$ 212 3.80 1.74 1.23 2.87
$  0.96 0.96 0.96 0.96 0.88
$ 7,8334 $§ 76564 S 8,009.1 7,9347 $ 8,260.8
$ 4,007.6 $ 40610 $ 4,1322 $ 41318 $ 4,182.4
536.9 598.9 650.9 666.2 678.6
— — — — 321.4
752.1 606.9 611.4 610.6 609.8
446.1 338.1 452.9 409.5 445.6

5,818.1 6,237.8
2,116.6 2,023.0

7,9347 § 8,260.8

25



Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

SUMMATY O RESUILS ...ttt ettt et et e e st esa et e e teestessesbeeseessebesseessensesseesaessessesseessensenseeseensessesseensensas 27
CALASITOPNES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e st et e st e et eat et e e bt esten b e bt es e e st en s e st e st e st e st e ekt Rt en b ekt eh e e st e b e heeneen s e beeheeneentebeeneententes 28
Loss and LAE ReSErve DEVEIOPIMENL ......ccueiuiiuiiiiiiiiiiiieieite ittt ettt ettt eb et e bbbt et esbe bt sae et enbesbeennenees 29
NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASUIES. .....eeeeeeeeeeee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eee e e e eeeeeeeeaeeeeeeaeaeeeeeeaeaeeeeeseereeeeessseeeesaans 29
Property & Casualty TNSUTANCE .......cc.evuiiiiiiiiiiiieiete ettt ettt ettt ettt et bt st e e e bt e st este b e ebeestentenbeebeentensenbesneensenne 31
LATE & HEAITH TINSUTAIICE ..o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e et ee e e et e e e e e e e e e ee e eeeeeeeneeeeeeraneas 38
TNVESTIMENT RESUILS ....veeiiiiiiiiee ettt e e et e e e e e et e e e e e et e e e eeata e e e e eeaaateeeeeaaaeeeeeanaateeeenaaaeeeeennaaeessennaaeas 41
Investment Quality and CONCENIIATIONS ......eoueeuieuieiertiitieterte ettt ettt ettt sb et e e st et eb e e st e be s bt eseestebenbeebeentenbesbeeneenees 45
Investments in Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships...........c.ocvevieriiieieniesieieieseeeeeee e 47
WIite-OfT OF LONZ-IIVEA ASSEL.....eeuiiiitieiieieteet ettt ettt ettt e b bt s et e b e e bt e st et e et e eseentebeebeeseenbenbesneensenee 48
Interest AaNd OTher EXPEINSES .....ccuuiiiiiiieitei ettt ettt ettt et e s et e saeesaeeeaeeeaeeenseenseenseenseeaseenseesnseenaesnseenseanseenseensean 48
J o1 ) s 0 S I O URRRRRRRRRRRRN 48
Liquidity and Capital RESOUTICES .......cueeiiieitieitieitieetieetesite ettt ete et eteesseesteesseesssessseasseesseasseasseenseesseesseesssesssesssessseessennseeseenses 48
Off-Balance SHEeet ATTANZEIMENLS. .........covertirieieierteeteetete st st et etesteeseestesteeseeseessessesseeseensesseeseessensesseessensensesseessensesesseensenses 51
Contractial OBIIGATIONS. .....c..eieuiiiiiiiieiieie ettt ettt a et et ettt eae bt eae b ettt ebe et e st eue et e s st enesbe s ennenes 51
Critical ACCOUNTING EStIMALES. .. .cviitiiieiertiitieieteste et et et ettt et et e s e e st essesaeeseeseessessesseessessesseeseessensesseessessensesseeseensessenseensensas 51
Recently [ssued AccoUNting PrONOUNCEMENLS .........cc.eiierieriiiiieiieitesieettetete ettt ettt eetebeste bt estessesseeseensenseeseeseensebesseensenses 57

26



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

Net Income was $114.5 million ($2.12 per unrestricted common share) for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to
$217.7 million ($3.81 per unrestricted common share) for the year ended December 31, 2013. Income from Continuing
Operations was $112.6 million ($2.08 per unrestricted common share) in 2014, compared to $214.5 million ($3.75 per
unrestricted common share) in 2013.

A reconciliation of Total Segment Net Operating Income to Net Income for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
is presented below:

Increase Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)
from 2013 from 2012
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 to 2014 2012 to 2013
Segment Net Operating Income (Loss):
Property & Casualty Insurance...........ccoceeveeveeveienneennne. $ 249 $§ 1006 $ (75.7) $ (109) § 1115
Life & Health Insurance ..........cccoceveecieienienenceienie e 91.8 89.3 2.5 90.8 (1.5)
Total Segment Net Operating Income..........cccceceveevcnninnen. 116.7 189.9 (73.2) 79.9 110.0
Unallocated Net Operating LosSS .......coveveveeriereeieienieeiennnn (19.6) (30.7) 11.1 (26.1) (4.6)
Consolidated Net Operating Income...........ccceeervevierernennen. 97.1 159.2 (62.1) 53.8 105.4
Net Income (Loss) From:
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments.................. 25.4 64.4 (39.0) 42.5 21.9
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............. 9.9 ©.1) (0.8) (4.5) (4.6)
Income from Continuing Operations.............ceeeeeveveervereennnn 112.6 214.5 (101.9) 91.8 122.7
Income from Discontinued Operations ............cccccevverueruennen. 1.9 32 (1.3) 11.6 (8.4)
NEt INCOME ... $ 1145 $ 2177 $ (103.2) $§ 1034 § 1143

The Company’s results and the results in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment were significantly and negatively
impacted in 2014, compared to 2013, by the level of catastrophe losses and LAE and a charge to write off certain internal use
software. Catastrophe losses and LAE in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment (excluding loss and LAE reserve
development from prior accident years) were $96.5 million before taxes for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to
$47.1 million in 2013, an increase of $49.4 million. See MD&A, “Catastrophes,” beginning on page 28 for a discussion of the
impact of catastrophe losses and LAE on the Company’s results and MD&A, “Property & Casualty Insurance,” beginning on
page 31 for a discussion of the impact of catastrophe losses and LAE on the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s results.
Results for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment in 2014 also include a charge of $54.6 million before taxes to write off
certain internal use software. See MD&A, “Write-off of Long-lived Asset,” beginning on page 48 for more information related
to the internal use software write-off.

Revenues

Earned Premiums were $1,862.2 million in 2014, compared to $2,025.8 million in 2013, a decrease of $163.6 million. Earned
Premiums decreased by $143.4 million and $20.2 million in the Property & Casualty Insurance and Life & Health Insurance
segments, respectively.

Net Investment Income decreased by $5.6 million in 2014 due primarily to $17.4 million in lower net investment income from
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments and $8.1 million of lower net investment income from Interest and Dividends on
Fixed Maturities, partially offset by $21.9 million of higher net investment income from Dividends on Equity Securities.

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments were $39.1 million in 2014, compared to $99.1 million in 2013. The Company sold
the building where Kemper’s corporate offices are headquartered and recognized a realized gain of $43.6 million in 2013.

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were $15.2 million and $13.9
million, respectively.

The Company cannot predict when or if similar investment gains or losses may occur in the future. See MD&A, “Investment
Results,” for additional information pertaining to investment performance.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

CATASTROPHES

Catastrophes and natural disasters are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events
and natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and
winter storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and will continue to be, a material factor in the results of operations
and financial position of the Company’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of these insured
losses occurring in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses may contribute to material year-to-year
fluctuations in the results of operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are more
likely to occur at certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and casualty
insurance claims. The Company has adopted the industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events
promulgated by ISO to track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when the event
causes $25.0 million or more in direct insured losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers.
ISO-classified catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The discussions
that follow utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The number of catastrophic events and catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding loss and LAE reserve development) by range of
loss and business segment for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are presented below:

Year Ended
Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012
Number of Losses and Number of Losses and Number of Losses and

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Events LAE Events LAE Events LAE
Range of Losses and LAE Per Event:

Below $5 e 27 $ 31.1 27§ 443 19 § 25.6

85 - B10 i 3 20.4 1 6.4 5 39.4

S10 - 815 e 1 13.1 — — 1 11.0

S15-820 e — — — — — —

820 - 825 — — — — — —

Greater Than $25 ..o 1 33.9 — — 1 48.5

Total ..o 32 3 98.5 28 8§ 50.7 26 § 1245
Property & Casualty Insurance........................ $ 96.5 $ 47.1 $ 1185
Life & Health Insurance..........cccccoceeevceninnenne 2.0 3.6 6.0
Total Catastrophe Losses and LAE................. $ 98.5 $ 50.7 $ 1245

As shown in the preceding table, catastrophe losses and LAE increased for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to
2013, due primarily to one catastrophe event that exceeded $25 million of losses and LAE and four other catastrophe events
that each exceeded $5 million of losses and LAE in 2014, compared to only one such event exceeding $5 million in 2013,
partially offset by lower severity of losses below $5 million per event in 2014, compared to 2013. The Company’s results were
negatively impacted by the severity of certain events, most notably, two hailstorms occurring in the second quarter. The event in
the preceding table with $33.9 million in catastrophe losses and LAE in 2014 was incurred in multiple states, particularly
Montana. The event in the preceding table with $13.1 million in catastrophe losses and LAE in 2014 was primarily related to
hail in Texas.

As shown in the preceding table, catastrophe losses and LAE decreased for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to
2012, due primarily to only one catastrophe event in the $5 million to $10 million range in 2013, compared to one catastrophe
event that exceeded $25 million of losses and LAE and six other catastrophe events that each exceeded $5 million of losses and
LAE in 2012. This was partially offset by higher frequency and severity of losses below $5 million per event in 2013, compared
to 2012. In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company incurred $48.5 million in catastrophe losses and LAE in several
northeastern states related to Superstorm Sandy. The five events in the $5 million to $10 million range and one event in the $10
million to $15 million range in 2012 were related to hail or wind events in either Texas, Colorado or the Midwest and mid-
Atlantic states.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

CATASTROPHES (Continued)

Catastrophe Reinsurance

The Company primarily manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, management of the amount and location of risks insured in certain regions and a primary catastrophe
reinsurance program for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment. Coverage for this segment’s primary catastrophe
reinsurance program is provided in various layers (see Note 19, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion of this program). In addition to this program, the Property & Casualty Insurance segment had
a reinsurance treaty covering the three-year period that ended June 1, 2013 for catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions
lower than its primary catastrophe reinsurance program (“the NC Program”). The Property & Casualty Insurance segment also
purchases reinsurance from the FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than its primary catastrophe
reinsurance program. The Life & Health Insurance also purchases reinsurance from the FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida.
Except for the coverage provided by the FHCF, the Life & Health Insurance segment did not carry catastrophe reinsurance in
2014 and 2013, primarily due to actions taken by KHSC to reduce its exposures to catastrophes. See Note 19, “Catastrophe
Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information related to the Life & Health Insurance segment’s
primary catastrophe reinsurance program in 2012.

See the “Reinsurance” subsections of the “Property and Casualty Insurance Business” and “Life and Health Insurance
Business” sections of Item 1(c), “Description of Business,” and Note 19, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information on the Company’s reinsurance programs.

LOSS AND LAE RESERVE DEVELOPMENT
Increases (decreases) in the Company’s property and casualty loss and LAE reserves for the years ended December 31, 2014,

2013 and 2012 to recognize adverse (favorable) loss and LAE reserve development from prior accident years in continuing
operations, hereinafter also referred to as “reserve development” in the discussion of segment results, is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Property & Casualty Insurance:
NON-CALASTTOPIIE .....cvvieiieiee ettt ettt ettt ettt et et eaeaeeve et et essere et et eneenes $ (38.6) $§ (455 $ (18.5)
CAtASIOPNE ...ttt ettt et steese et e teeteene et e reereentebesreeneens (15.8) (12.5) (6.4)
TOTAL .ttt n ettt ettt et bt ene bbbt enean (54.4) (58.0) (24.9)
Life & Health Insurance:
NON-CALASITOPRE ...ttt ettt e te et e s e sseeneenaensesseeseeneas 0.2) 0.2 0.4)
CALASITOPINIE ...ttt ettt ettt e et e et e esbe et e ebeebe e beeseestaeesseesbeenseesbeenseensean 1.1 (2.0) 0.1
TOMAL ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et b e bt e sb b et e ett e b e beereesa e b e ete st enbeebeeneenes 0.9 (1.8) (0.3)
Decrease in Total Loss and LAE Reserves Related to Prior Years:
INON-CALASTIOPIEC ...ttt ettt ettt st e et e e b e ebeesbeesseeseesbeessaesenesssens (38.8) (45.3) (18.9)
CAtASLIOPNE ...ttt ettt ettt te et e s teete et e teereestebeereereensenbesreeneens 14.7) (14.5) (6.3)
Decrease in Total Loss and LAE Reserves Related to Prior Years.........ccoccevvvveveneninnnenen. $ (335) $ (59.8) § (25.2)

See MD&A, “Property & Casualty Insurance,” MD&A, “Life & Health Insurance,” and Note 5, “Property and Casualty
Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on the Company’s reserve
development. See MD&A, “Critical Accounting Estimates,” of this 2014 Annual Report for additional information pertaining to
the Company’s process of estimating property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, and the estimated variability
thereof, development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE, and a discussion of some of the variables that may
impact them.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC, the Company is required to file consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). The Company is permitted to
include non-GAAP financial measures in its filings provided that they are defined along with an explanation of their usefulness
to investors, are no more prominent than the comparable GAAP financial measures and are reconciled to such GAAP financial
measures.
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These non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered a substitute for the comparable GAAP financial measures, as
they do not fully recognize the overall profitability of the Company’s business.

Underlying Combined Ratio

The following discussion for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment uses the non-GAAP financial measures of

(1) Underlying Losses and LAE and (ii) Underlying Combined Ratio. Underlying Losses and LAE (also referred to in the
discussion as “Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE”) exclude the impact of catastrophe losses, and loss and LAE
reserve development from prior years from the Company’s Incurred Losses and LAE, which is the most directly comparable
GAAP financial measure. The Underlying Combined Ratio is computed by adding the Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses
and LAE Ratio with the Insurance Expense (including write-offs of long-lived assets) Ratio. The most directly comparable
GAAP financial measure is the Combined Ratio, which is computed by adding total incurred losses and LAE, including the
impact of catastrophe losses, and loss and LAE reserve development from prior years with the Insurance Expense (including
write-offs of long-lived assets) Ratio. The Company believes Underlying Losses and LAE and the Underlying Combined Ratio
are useful to investors and are used by management to reveal the trends in the Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance
business that may be obscured by catastrophe losses and prior year reserve development. These catastrophe losses may cause
the Company’s loss trends to vary significantly between periods as a result of their incidence of occurrence and magnitude, and
can have a significant impact on incurred losses and LAE and the combined ratio. Prior-year reserve developments are caused
by unexpected loss development on historical reserves. Because reserve development relates to the re-estimation of losses from
earlier periods, it has no bearing on the performance of the Company’s insurance products in the current period. The Company
believes it is useful for investors to evaluate these components separately and in the aggregate when reviewing the Company’s
underwriting performance.

Consolidated Net Operating Income

Consolidated Net Operating Income is an after-tax, non-GAAP measure and is computed by excluding from Income from
Continuing Operations the after-tax impact of 1) Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments, 2) Net Impairment Losses
Recognized in Earnings related to investments and 3) significant non-recurring or infrequent items that may not be indicative of
ongoing operations. Significant non-recurring items are excluded when (a) the nature of the charge or gain is such that it is
reasonably unlikely to recur within two years, and (b) there has been no similar charge or gain within the prior two years. The
most directly comparable GAAP financial measure is Income from Continuing Operations.

The Company believes that Consolidated Net Operating Income provides investors with a valuable measure of its ongoing
performance because it reveals underlying operational performance trends that otherwise might be less apparent if the items
were not excluded. Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments and Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings related to
investments included in the Company’s results may vary significantly between periods and are generally driven by business
decisions and external economic developments such as capital market conditions that impact the values of the Company’s
investments, the timing of which is unrelated to the insurance underwriting process. Significant non-recurring items are
excluded because, by their nature, they are not indicative of the Company’s business or economic trends.

A reconciliation of Consolidated Net Operating Income to Income from Continuing Operations for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 is presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Consolidated Net Operating INCOME .......ceevveruirieiieriiniieieiesie ettt ennens $ 971 § 1592 $§ 538
Net Income (Loss) From:
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS .........cceerveriiiieieierieeieieieeie e 254 64.4 42.5
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.........ccoccoevevevieniinienienienenieiee e 9.9) 9.1) 4.5)

Income from Continuing OPEratiONS..........ceeeruereerierirereeieeereieeereeeeseeeeseeeesseneesessesseneenees $ 1126 $ 2145 $ 918

There were no applicable significant non-recurring items that the Company excluded from the calculation of Consolidated Net
Operating Income for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
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PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE
Selected financial information for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
Net Premitms WITHEIL .......ooviiiiiiecee ettt ettt et ete et eeteeeeteeeeeteeeenneeenes

Earned PremMIUMS .......c.ociviiiiiiiiiiiiiinice ettt
Net Investment INCOME ........ocuiiiiiiiiiii e
Oher TNCOMIE ...ttt ettt se b neene
TOtal REVENUES........cueiuiiiiiiieiiiiieiceteeetet ettt sttt
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ...........ccooooiiiiiiieiiiieeeeeeee e
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccocoooiiiiiieiiieceeeeeeteee e
Prior Years:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........cccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiceeeeeeee e
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccocoiiiiiieniicieeeceeee e
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ........ccoocioiiiiiiiieeeeeees et
Insurance Expenses, Excluding Write-off of Long-lived Asset.........ccccoveirirenieinennnne.
Write-off Of LoNg-liVed ASSEL......ccccvviriieieieierieeieiesie sttt
Operating Profit (LOSS) ....couieiieiiiciicieeie ettt r et sae e easeeenas
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE)......ccviruirieiieieriieiieieiesie ettt sre e ss s

Segment Net Operating INncome (LOSS)......ccveeieieieriinieieiene et

Ratios Based On Earned Premiums

Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........coceoeoivininiiiinincciinenne
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccocviieieiiiiicieieiecececieieie
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........cccccoooereiniiinenninccecce
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........ccccoeoveveririenieninieieienesceee
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio.......c.coeoieiiirieieiiieec e
Insurance Expense Ratio, Excluding Write-off of Long-lived Asset..........cccccoeeveinenene
Impact on Ratio from Write-off of Long-lived ASSEt........cccevivieienenieieienieiceieieiee
CombINEd RATIO ...ttt nen
Underlying Combined Ratio

Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccooceevienenininieninciiecne
Insurance Expense Ratio, Excluding Write-off of Long-lived Asset.........c.ccccevevvervennen.
Impact on Ratio from Write-off of Long-lived ASSet.........cccoevierivininieniiinineiiinene
Underlying Combined RAtiO.........c.ccuivuieieiiiiiiiicieieiic ettt
Non-GAAP Measure Reconciliation

Underlying Combined Ratio..........ccceciviriiiiiniiniiiiiincieenceesesee e
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c.cccocviiieieiiniieieieicceeecieieie
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........ccccocoveveoiiineneiiinieecee
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........cccoeovereiinienieniinieieieesceieieiee
Combined Ratio s REPOTted .......c.cciiuieieieiiciieieice e
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2014 2013 2012
$1,189.1 § 13422 § 1,454.1
$1,249.5 $ 13929 $ 1,467.2

72.7 90.9 77.9
0.5 0.5 0.7
1,322.7 1,484.3 1,545.8
845.2 980.2 1,095.3
96.5 47.1 118.5

(38.6) (45.5) (18.5)

(15.8) (12.5) (6.4)

887.3 969.3 1,188.9

353.7 375.4 3925

54.6 — —
27.1 139.6 (35.6)
2.2) (39.0) 24.7
249 § 1006 $ (10.9)
67.7% 70.4% 74.6%
7.7 34 8.1
3.1) (3.3) (1.3)
(1.3) (0.9) (0.4)
71.0 69.6 81.0
28.3 27.0 26.8
4.4 — —
103.7% 96.6%  107.8%
67.7% 70.4% 74.6%
28.3 27.0 26.8
4.4 — —
100.4% 97.4%  101.4%
100.4% 97.4%  101.4%
7.7 34 8.1
3.1) (3.3) (1.3)
(1.3) (0.9) (0.4)
103.7% 96.6%  107.8%
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CATASTROPHE FREQUENCY AND SEVERITY

Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31,2013
Number of Losses and Number of Losses and

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Events LAE Events LAE
Range of Losses and LAE Per Event:

BELOW $5 ..ot 27§ 30.1 28§ 47.1

85 = 10 i ne s 3 19.8 — —

S10 = L5 et 1 12.8 — —

SIS = B20 i — — — —

820 = 825 e — — — —

Greater Than $25.......c.covoiiieiieiceeeeeeeeeee e 1 33.8 — —

TOtAL .ttt ettt 32 8 96.5 28 $ 47.1

INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013
Insurance Reserves:

AULOMODILE ...ttt ettt ettt s et b et et s e s se b b s s st s esese b sess st ene $ 5014 § 5951

HOMEOWNETS ...ttt ettt e et e et e et e et e sse e s e et e e seesseesssessaeenseenseenseenseeseanns 102.4 99.9

L0111 1<) SO S PO PRPPRSORPTPRPONt 47.3 47.6
INSUTANCE RESEIVES ....eouviiiiiiiiciieeiie ettt ettt e ettt e et e et e e sbeesbeeseesseessaessseesseesseesseesseenseenseeseenns $ 651.1 $§ 7426
Insurance Reserves:

Loss Reserves:

GBS ..ttt ettt ettt ettt bttt b ettt ettt b st ettt s et et eas et st et s st eananas $ 4236 § 4712
Incurred But NOt REPOTTEd.......c.eoiiiiiiiieiieiieieeieeeeee ettt eb e bbb eneas 135.8 169.0

TOtAl LOSS RESEIVES ....vivivieiieniiiietieieste sttt ettt ettt e ete et e e e sbeste et ebesseesaessesesseessensesesseessensensensean 559.4 640.2

LLAE RESCIVES ...veveeuieuieiieiieiiete et etteste bttt et e st e st e st et e e st e e st estebe s bt estensesbeeseente s e ebeentensensesaeentensenbesnean 91.7 102.4
INSUTANCE RESEIVES ...oviiiiiiiieciiecieee ettt ettt st e et e et e et e esbeessa e seesaensaessseessesnseessennseennas $ 6511 $§ 7426

Overall

In the first quarter of 2014, the Company realigned its property and casualty insurance businesses. As a result of the
realignment, the property and casualty insurance businesses are being reported as a single business segment named the Property
& Casualty Insurance segment. The Company has reclassified certain prior-year amounts in its segment results in the
Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to the current year presentation.

See MD&A, “Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and
Loss Adjustment Expenses” beginning on page 53 for additional information pertaining to the Company’s process of estimating
property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE
from prior accident years, also referred to as “reserve development” in the discussion of segment results, estimated variability
of property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, and a discussion of some of the variables that may impact
development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE and the estimated variability of property and casualty
insurance reserves for losses and LAE.

2014 Compared with 2013

Earned Premiums in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment decreased by $143.4 million, as lower volume accounted for a
decrease of $211.4 million, while higher average premium accounted for an increase of $68.0 million. The lower volume was
driven primarily by personal automobile insurance and homeowners insurance, which had volume decreases of $167.6 million
and $39.8 million, respectively. The increase in average premium was also driven primarily by personal automobile insurance
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and homeowners insurance, which had increases of $39.9 million and $26.0 million, respectively. The decrease in premium
volume is on both new business production and retention levels and is due primarily to the rate and resegmentation efforts of
the Company in the past few years. The Company has undertaken various actions to improve its retention and new business
production, including moderating rate increases in its more recent rate filings due to the improvement in profitability of the
book of business.

Net Investment Income in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment decreased by $18.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to lower investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments, lower yields on fixed maturities and lower levels of investments resulting from a decline in the scale of the
business. The Property & Casualty Insurance segment reported net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments of $8.4 million in 2014, compared to $16.5 million in 2013.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment reported Segment Net Operating Income of $24.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014, compared to $100.6 million in 2013. Segment Net Operating Income decreased by $75.7 million due
primarily to the write-off of certain internal use software during the third quarter of 2014, higher incurred catastrophe losses and
LAE (excluding reserve development), lower net investment income and higher insurance expenses as a percentage of earned
premiums, partially offset by lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums. See MD&A, “Write-off of
Long-lived Asset,” on page 48 for more information related to the internal use software write-off. Underlying losses and LAE
as a percentage of earned premiums were 67.7% in 2014, a decrease of 2.7 percentage points compared to 2013, as personal
automobile insurance, homeowners insurance and commercial automobile insurance improved, while other personal insurance
deteriorated. Underlying losses and LAE exclude the impact of catastrophes and loss and LAE reserve development.
Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $96.5 million in 2014, compared to $47.1 million in 2013,
which was an increase of $49.4 million due primarily to one catastrophe event that exceeded $25 million of losses and LAE and
four other catastrophe events that each exceeded $5 million of losses and LAE in 2014, compared to no such events in excess of
$5 million in 2013. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development (including catastrophe reserve development) was $54.4
million in 2014, compared to $58.0 million in 2013. Insurance expenses, excluding the write-off of the long-lived software
asset, decreased by $21.7 million in 2014, compared to 2013, but increased as a percentage of earned premiums from 27.0% in
2013 to 28.3% in 2014, due primarily to lower earned premiums to absorb fixed costs. The Property & Casualty Insurance
segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment
income and dividends received deductions. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $20.9
million in 2014, compared to $27.1 million in 2013.

2013 Compared with 2012

Earned Premiums in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment decreased by $74.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2013, compared to 2012. The decrease was driven primarily by personal automobile insurance, which decreased by $91.0
million.

Net Investment Income in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment increased by $13.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to higher net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments and higher dividends on equity securities, partially offset by lower yields on fixed maturities. The Property &
Casualty Insurance segment reported net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments of $16.5
million in 2013, compared to $7.0 million in 2012.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment reported Segment Net Operating Income of $100.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013, compared to Segment Net Operating Loss of $10.9 million in 2012. Segment net operating results
improved by $111.5 million due primarily to lower incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development),
lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums, a higher level of favorable loss and LAE reserve
development and higher net investment income. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 70.4% in
2013, a decrease of 4.2% percentage points compared to 2012, as personal automobile insurance, homeowners insurance and
other personal insurance improved, while commercial automobile insurance deteriorated. Catastrophe losses and LAE
(excluding reserve development) were $47.1 million in 2013, compared to $118.5 million in 2012, which was a decrease of
$71.4 million. See MD&A, “Catastrophes,” beginning on page 28 for more information on catastrophic events and catastrophe
losses and LAE. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development (including catastrophe reserve development) was $58.0 million
in 2013, compared to $24.9 million in 2012. Insurance expenses decreased by $17.1 million in 2013 compared to 2012 but were
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fairly flat as a percentage of earned premiums. The Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s effective income tax rate differs
from the federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions.
Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $27.1 million in 2013, compared to $34.9 million in
2012.

Personal Automobile Insurance

Selected financial information for the personal automobile insurance product line follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
INEt Premitums WITTEEI ....ooeieiiie e et e e e e e e e e eeeeaeeeeen $ 789.0 $ 9142 $1,025.1
EAINEA PIEIMIUITIS ...ttt ettt e e et e e e e ste et e et eeeeeeeeeaeesaeeseesnesanes $ 8314 $ 959.1 $1,050.1

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ...........ccccocoooiiioiiioieiceceeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 616.0 § 7417 $ 839.6

Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cccooiiiiioiiiiieecceeeeeeeeee e 12.7 7.6 23.1
Prior Years:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........cccccooiiiieiiniiiieieeeceeeee e (31.0) (29.9) 2.1
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........c.ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiccceeeeete et 0.6) (0.2) —
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ..........ccocooiiiiiiiiiiiiceceeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 5971 Mi m

Ratios Based On Earned Premiums

Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccoocevieveninieneneniiiecne 74.1% 77.3% 80.0%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c.cccoeveiieieiiniinieieieeeeeieiee 1.5 0.8 2.2
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........cccccooveievienienieiereneicieiee 3.7 3.1 0.2
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........ccccoeeviviiieiieiiiciiecicecee 0.1) — —

Total Incurred Loss and LAE RaAtIO...........cooviiiiiiiiiiiieieeceee e 71.8% 75.0% 82.4%

2014 Compared with 2013

Earned premiums on personal automobile insurance decreased by $127.7 million as lower volume accounted for a decrease of
$167.6 million, while higher average premium accounted for an increase of $39.9 million. The run-off of the direct-to-
consumer business accounted for approximately 20% of the decrease in earned premiums attributed to lower volume. Incurred
losses and LAE were $597.1 million, or 71.8% of earned premiums, in 2014, compared to $719.2 million, or 75.0% of earned
premiums, in 2013. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due to lower underlying losses and
LAE as a percentage of earned premiums and a higher level of favorable loss and LAE reserve development, partially offset by
higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development). Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of
earned premiums were 74.1% in 2014, compared to 77.3% in 2013, which is an improvement of 3.2 percentage points due
primarily to the impact of pricing and underwriting actions taken by the Company, lower severity of bodily injury losses and
lower frequency of claims across most liability coverages, partially offset by higher severity of losses on most coverages except
bodily injury. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $12.7 million in 2014, compared to $7.6
million in 2013. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $31.6 million in 2014, compared to $30.1 million in 2013.

2013 Compared with 2012

Earned premiums on personal automobile insurance decreased by $91.0 million as lower volume accounted for a decrease of
$139.8 million, while higher average premium accounted for an increase of $48.8 million. The run-off of the direct-to-
consumer business accounted for approximately 37% of the decrease in earned premiums attributed to lower volume. Incurred
losses and LAE were $719.2 million, or 75.0% of earned premiums, in 2013, compared to $864.8 million, or 82.4% of earned
premiums, in 2012. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due to a favorable impact from a
change in loss and LAE reserve development, lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums and lower
incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development). Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned
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premiums were 77.3% in 2013, compared to 80.0% in 2012, which is an improvement of 2.7 percentage points due primarily to
the impact of rate actions taken by the Company on average premium and lower frequency of claims across most coverages,
particularly bodily injury, partially offset by higher severity of losses on most other coverages, particularly physical damage.
Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $7.6 million in 2013, compared to $23.1 million in 2012.

Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $30.1 million in 2013, compared to adverse loss and LAE reserve
development of $2.1 million in 2012.

Homeowners Insurance

Selected financial information for the homeowners insurance product line follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Net Premiums WITTEETL ......o.viiet ittt et ettt et e e et eae s eaeeaeas $ 296.5 $ 3209 § 3253
FarNed PrEMIUITIS .....oviimieieeee oot $ 3124 $ 3262 $ 318.0

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........c.cccoooiiiiiiiiieceeeceeeeee e $ 1565 § 1704 § 1917
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........coooieiiiiiiiiiiieic e 80.8 38.2 90.4
Prior Years:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cccccooviiieiiiiiiieiceeceeeeeeeeee e (1.5) (8.9) (5.6)

Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........coooieioiiiiiieiei e (13.3) (11.2) (6.1)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE .......cccovoirieiiiiiinieieecieeet et $ 2225 § 1885 § 2704
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccoceevvevieeieienienenceieiee 50.1% 52.2% 60.3%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........ccccccoecvieiieiiiiiiieiicciceeecee e 25.9 11.7 28.4
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c.cccoccvevieviivieicieneceeieiee 0.5) 2.7) (1.8)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........ccccecveviirieieienienieieiee e 4.3) 3.4 (1.9)
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Rati......cccccueriiriiiiiiiiiiieieecceeee e 71.2% 57.8% 85.0%

2014 Compared with 2013

Earned premiums in homeowners insurance decreased by $13.8 million as lower volume accounted for a decrease of $39.8
million, while higher average premium accounted for an increase of $26.0 million. Incurred losses and LAE were $222.5
million, or 71.2% of earned premiums, in 2014, compared to $188.5 million, or 57.8% of earned premiums, in 2013. Incurred
losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due to higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding
reserve development) and a lower level of favorable loss and LAE reserve development, partially offset by lower underlying
losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were
50.1% in 2014, compared to 52.2% in 2013, which is an improvement of 2.1 percentage points due primarily to the impact of
pricing and underwriting actions taken by the Company, partially offset by higher frequency of claims and higher severity of
losses. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $80.8 million in 2014, compared to $38.2 million in
2013. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $14.8 million in 2014, compared to $20.1 million in 2013.

2013 Compared with 2012

Earned premiums in homeowners insurance increased by $8.2 million as higher average premium accounted for an increase of
$27.5 million, while lower volume accounted for a decrease of $19.3 million. Incurred losses and LAE were $188.5 million, or
57.8% of earned premiums, in 2013, compared to $270.4 million, or 85.0% of earned premiums, in 2012. Incurred losses and
LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due to lower incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve
development), lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums and a higher level of favorable loss and
LAE reserve development. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 52.2% in 2013, compared to
60.3% in 2012, which is an improvement of 8.1 percentage points due primarily to lower severity of losses and the impact of
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rate actions taken by the Company on average premium. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were
$38.2 million in 2013, compared to $90.4 million in 2012. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $20.1 million in
2013, compared to $11.7 million in 2012.

Commercial Automobile Insurance

Selected financial information for the commercial automobile insurance product line follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Net Premiums WITHEN. ... ...ocviiviiiiiei ettt ettt eae e $ 556 $ 537 $ 482
FarNed PrEMIUITIS ......ovieeeeeeeee oot eee s $ 548 $ 523 $ 435

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccccooiiiiiieiieeeceeee e $ 446 $§ 437 § 354

Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........cccooieiiiiiiiieiecceeeeeeeee e 0.2 0.1 0.1
Prior Years:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........cccccooiiieiiiiiieieeeeeeeee e (2.6) (3.0) (12.6)
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........c.oooveioiiiiiiieieie e —
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ........ccoooioiiiiiiiieieeieeeeeeeee et $ 422 § 408 § 229
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccoceeevevievinieciencnccieiee, 81.3% 83.5% 81.4%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........ccccevevivienienenieieieneeceieieiee 0.4 0.2 0.2
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........cccccecveviivieeiieiecieiiceeieiee “.7) 5.7 (29.0)

Total Incurred Loss and LAE RaAtIO.......ccooouiiiiiiiiiieieciiee et 77.0% 78.0% 52.6%

2014 Compared with 2013

Earned premiums in commercial automobile insurance increased by $2.5 million due to higher volume with average premium
remaining consistent. Incurred losses and LAE were $42.2 million, or 77.0% of earned premiums, in 2014, compared to $40.8
million, or 78.0% of earned premiums, in 2013. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due to
lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums, partially offset by a lower level of favorable loss and
LAE reserve development. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 81.3% in 2014, compared to
83.5% in 2013, which is an improvement of 2.2 percentage points due primarily to lower severity of losses across most
coverages, partially offset by higher frequency of claims across most coverages. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development
was $2.6 million in 2014, compared to $3.0 million in 2013.

2013 Compared with 2012

Earned premiums in commercial automobile insurance increased by $8.8 million as higher volume accounted for an increase of
$8.2 million, while higher average premium accounted for an increase of $0.6 million. Incurred losses and LAE were $40.8
million, or 78.0% of earned premiums, in 2013, compared to $22.9 million, or 52.6% of earned premiums, in 2012. Incurred
losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due primarily to a lower level of favorable loss and LAE reserve
development and higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums. Underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of earned premiums were 83.5% in 2013, compared to 81.4% in 2012, which is an increase of 2.1 percentage points
due primarily to higher severity of losses and, to a lesser extent, higher frequency of claims, partially offset by the positive
impact of rate actions taken by the Company on average premium. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $3.0
million in 2013, compared to $12.6 million in 2012.
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Other Personal Insurance

Other personal insurance products include umbrella, dwelling fire, inland marine, earthquake, boatowners and other liability
coverages. Selected financial information for other personal insurance product lines follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
INEt Premitms WITEEEIL ..ottt $ 480 $ 534 $§ 555
Barned PremIUMIS ........c.oouvieiiuiiee oottt et et $ 509 $ 553 $ 556

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:

Current Year:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ...........cccoooovoiioieioieieececeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 281 § 244 § 286
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiieecce e 2.8 1.2 4.9
Prior Years:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........cccccooiiiiiiiniiieieeeceeeeee e 3.5) 3.7 2.4)

Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiecce et 1.9) (1.1) 0.3)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ..........ccocooviiiiiiiiiieiceeeeeeeee e $ 255 ﬂ ﬂ
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........coceoeoivinineiiieninccncncnne 55.2% 44.1% 51.4%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c.cccocviieieiiiiinieieieceeeeieiee 5.5 2.2 8.8
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........cccccoevievieniinieienieneeeeieieee (6.9) 6.7) 4.3)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c..cccoeevieeiieiiieiiicicciecicee e 3.7 (2.0) 0.5)

Total Incurred Loss and LAE RatiO.......c...coouiiiiiiiiiiicieeeeee e 50.1% 37.6% 55.4%

2014 Compared with 2013

Earned premiums in other personal insurance decreased by $4.4 million as lower volume accounted for a decrease of $6.6
million, while higher average premium accounted for an increase of $2.2 million. Incurred losses and LAE were $25.5 million,
or 50.1% of earned premiums, in 2014, compared to $20.8 million, or 37.6% of earned premiums, in 2013. Incurred losses and
LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due to higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned
premiums and higher catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development), partially offset by a higher level of
favorable loss and LAE reserve development. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 55.2% in
2014, compared to 44.1% in 2013, which is an increase of 11.1 percentage points due primarily to higher severity of losses and
frequency of claims across most coverages. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $2.8 million in
2014, compared to $1.2 million in 2013. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $5.4 million in 2014, compared to
$4.8 million in 2013.

2013 Compared with 2012

Earned premiums in other personal insurance decreased by $0.3 million as lower volume accounted for a decrease of $2.4
million, while higher average premium accounted for an increase of $2.1 million. Incurred losses and LAE were $20.8 million,
or 37.6% of earned premiums, in 2013, compared to $30.8 million, or 55.4% of earned premiums, in 2012. Incurred losses and
LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due to lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned
premiums, lower catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) and a higher level of favorable loss and LAE
reserve development. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 44.1% in 2013, compared to 51.4%
in 2012, which is a decrease of 7.3 percentage points due primarily to lower frequency of umbrella liability insurance claims,
lower severity of losses in other insurance lines (excluding umbrella liability) and higher average premium, partially offset by
higher severity of umbrella liability insurance losses. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $1.2
million in 2013, compared to $4.9 million in 2012. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $4.8 million in 2013,
compared to $2.7 million in 2012.
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LIFE & HEALTH INSURANCE

Selected financial information for the Life & Health Insurance segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Earned Premiums:
| 5 TSSO $ 3876 $§ 3927 § 3934
Accident and Health ...........c.cooooiiiiiiiiii e 148.6 161.4 165.2
PLOPETLY ...ttt ettt bttt beebe s 76.5 78.8 81.3
Total EQrned PreMIUINS .......c.oeiiiiiiiieeiieee ettt ettt ettt e eae e eaeeeaeeeaeeeaee e 612.7 632.9 639.9
Net INVeStMENt INCOME......c.viiiieiieiieiieeeete ettt ettt e e eeeeaeesseeaseenseas 218.7 209.9 204.3
OtREr INCOIMIE ...ttt ettt e et e e et eeeae e e e aaeeeetaeeeaeeesaseeenseeesareeanes 0.9 0.2 0.1
TOtAl REVEIUECS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et eate et e easeeaaeenseenseeaseesseeneens 832.3 843.0 844.3
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE.........ccccoceeoiiviinininiinininiceneeeeen 374.4 387.9 393.1
INSUTANCE EXPEINSES ..euviiiiiiiieiieeie ettt ettt et ettt e s e st e st eente b e enbeenneeaes 316.0 318.2 310.8
OPETAtING PrOfIl..cueeuiiiiiiiiiieiesie ettt ettt et ettt sttt s ennens 141.9 136.9 140.4
INCOME TaAX EXPEIISE.....vieiieiieieieeiie ettt ettt ettt st e e et e st e e e enaeenseenseenseenseenseennes (50.1) (47.6) (49.6)
Segment Net Operating INCOIME .......c.ooveviiiveriierieieietieeteieee ettt ese s eaeeis $ 918 $ 893 §$§ 908
INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013
Insurance Reserves:
Future Policyholder BeNE IS .......cviiiriiiieiieieieeeeiet ettt ettt esaenaens $3,214.7 $ 3,157.7
Incurred Losses and LAE Reserves:
| 5 2SR 38.8 37.6
Accident and Health ............cocoooiiiiiii e 20.2 22.2
PTOPETLY ettt ettt b et h e bbb bt st b et h e en et bt ent et b eneennan 4.5 53
Total Incurred Losses and LAE RESEIVES ......c..oouviiiriiieei ettt 63.5 65.1
TNSUTANCE RESEIVES ...t ettt et e ettt e e et e e e ettt e e e s eeeateeeseaateessenaaeeessaaaeeeeens $3,278.2 $ 32228

2014 Compared with 2013

Earned Premiums in the Life & Health Insurance segment decreased by $20.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2014,
compared to 2013. Earned premiums on life insurance decreased by $5.1 million in 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to a
lower volume of insurance, as a decrease of $12.6 million from life insurance products offered by the Kemper Home Service
Companies (“KHSC”) was partially offset by an increase of $7.5 million from life insurance products offered by Reserve
National. In late 2012, Reserve National began offering its life insurance products through an expanded network of brokers and
non-exclusive independent agents (See Item 1A., “Risk Factors” under the title “Reserve National’s operating history with its
expanded distribution channels and new products is limited.”) Earned premiums on accident and health insurance decreased by
$12.8 million in 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to lower volume of insurance resulting primarily from the run-off of
certain health insurance products largely due to the impact of the Health Care Acts, partially offset by higher volume of
supplemental health insurance products. Some of the health insurance products previously sold by Reserve National have been
adversely impacted by provisions of the Health Care Acts. In particular, provisions, effective in 2014, prohibiting the renewal of
certain policies issued by Reserve National after the issuance of the Health Care Acts and also establishing health insurance
exchanges, and a provision which sets minimum loss ratios for health insurance policies have adversely impacted Reserve
National’s business. Such affected health insurance products (the “HCA Affected Products”) accounted for $30.8 million, or
21%, of the Life & Health Insurance segment’s accident and health insurance earned premiums in 2014 and $49.6 million, or
31%, of the Life & Health Insurance segment’s accident and health insurance earned premiums in 2013. Reserve National has
adapted its business model in response to the Health Care Acts and ceased selling HCA Affected Products at the end of 2011
and transitioned its sales to supplemental health insurance products that are not expected to be as severely impacted by the
Health Care Acts. Reserve National expects earned premiums from HCA Affected Products to decrease by approximately 50%
in 2015 and expects an increase in earned premiums from sales of supplemental insurance products to offset much of the
decline. Earned premiums on property insurance decreased by $2.3 million in 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to lower
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LIFE & HEALTH INSURANCE (Continued)

volume, partially offset by higher average premium. The Life & Health Insurance segment has been intentionally running off
insurance policies providing dwelling coverage (“Dwelling Policies”) to reduce its exposure to catastrophe risks. Over the last
several years, the Life & Health Insurance segment has halted new sales of Dwelling Policies in all markets and non-renewed
Dwelling Policies in certain geographical, mainly coastal, areas while continuing to renew policies in other geographical areas.
Earned premiums from dwelling coverage comprised 22%, 23% and 26% of the Life & Health Insurance segment’s earned
premiums on property insurance in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Net Investment Income increased by $8.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to
higher investment income from other equity interests, partially offset by lower investment income from Equity Method Limited
Liability Investments and lower book yields on fixed maturities. Investment income from other equity interests in 2014
included dividend income of $21.4 million from one company that had sold substantially all of its operations. Net investment
loss from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments was $0.4 million in 2014, compared to net investment income of $8.4
million in 2013. The weighted-average book yield on the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries’ investments in fixed
maturities was approximately 5.7% at both December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. A protracted low interest rate
environment could adversely impact the weighted-average book yield on these subsidiaries’ investments in fixed maturities. For
example, the weighted-average book yield on the subsidiaries’ investments in fixed maturities will decline if new money is
invested at yields below the portfolio rate. Also, the weighted-average book yield on the subsidiaries’ investments in fixed
maturities will decline, to the extent that investments maturing over the next five years are not used for such purposes as paying
claims and expenses, if the reinvested portion is at a yield that is lower than the book yield of the maturing investment. The
subsidiaries’ investments in fixed maturities that are maturing over the next five years totaled $574 million at December 31,
2014. The weighted-average book yield on such investments was 7.8% at December 31, 2014. The reinvestment rate for the
subsidiaries’ investments in fixed maturities was approximately 7.4% in 2014 with an average duration of 4.8 years at
December 31, 2014.

Operating Profit in the Life & Health Insurance segment was $141.9 million before taxes for the year ended December 31,
2014, compared to $136.9 million in 2013. Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE decreased by $13.5 million in
2014 due primarily to lower incurred accident and health insurance losses, lower underlying losses on property insurance, lower
catastrophe losses and LAE and lower policyholders’ benefits on life insurance, partially offset by an unfavorable impact of
property insurance reserve development. Incurred accident and health insurance losses were $81.1 million, or 54.6% of accident
and health insurance earned premiums, in 2014, compared to $90.9 million, or 56.3% of accident and health insurance earned
premiums, in 2013. Incurred accident and health insurance losses as a percentage of accident and health insurance earned
premiums decreased due primarily to a change in business mix from the aforementioned run-off of certain health insurance
products. Incurred losses and LAE on property insurance were $24.6 million, or 32.2% of property insurance earned premiums,
in 2014, compared to $27.4 million, or 34.8% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2013. Underlying losses and LAE on
property insurance were $21.7 million, or 28.4% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2014, compared to $25.6 million,
or 32.5% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2013 and decreased due primarily to lower frequency and severity of
insurance losses. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $2.0 million in 2014, compared to $3.6
million in 2013. Unfavorable loss and LAE reserve development was $0.9 million in 2014, compared to favorable loss and
LAE reserve development of $1.8 million in 2013. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development in 2013 resulted primarily
from a final assessment issued by the MWUA that reduced KHSC’s share of MWUA's losses for the 2004 through 2006 policy
periods by $2.0 million. Policyholders’ benefits on life insurance were $268.7 million in 2014, compared to $269.6 million in
2013, which is a decrease of $0.9 million due primarily to a lower provision for future policyholders’ benefits and lower death
claims related to insurance policies issued by KHSC, partially offset by the higher volume of insurance from policies issued by
Reserve National. Insurance Expenses in the Life & Health Insurance segment decreased by $2.2 million in 2014, compared to
2013, due primarily to lower non-deferrable career agent incentive compensation and service commissions, lower legal costs
and lower salary expense from the capitalization of certain salaries in connection with an internal use software project, partially
offset by higher commissions and other expenses resulting from the expansion of Reserve National’s distribution channels.
Segment Net Operating Income in the Life & Health Insurance segment was $91.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2014, compared to $89.3 million in 2013.

2013 Compared with 2012

Earned Premiums in the Life & Health Insurance segment decreased by $7.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared to 2012. Earned premiums on life insurance decreased by $0.7 million in 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to a
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lower volume of insurance, as a decrease of $6.4 million from life insurance products offered by KHSC was partially offset by
an increase of $5.7 million from life insurance products offered by Reserve National. Earned premiums on accident and health
insurance decreased by $3.8 million in 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to lower volume of insurance resulting primarily
from the run-off of certain health insurance products largely due to the impact of the Health Care Acts, partially offset by higher
volume of supplemental health insurance products and higher average premium. HCA Affected Products accounted for $49.6
million, or 31%, of the Life & Health Insurance segment’s accident and health insurance earned premiums in 2013 and $62.5
million, or 38%, of the Life & Health Insurance segment’s accident and health insurance earned premiums in 2012. Earned
premiums on property insurance decreased by $2.5 million in 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to lower volume of
insurance from the run-off and, in certain geographical areas, the non-renewal of Dwelling Policies, partially offset by the
impact of non-renewing the Life & Health Insurance segment’s catastrophe reinsurance program. Catastrophe reinsurance
premiums reduced earned premiums by $2.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 with no such reduction in 2013.
Given the actions taken by KHSC to reduce its exposures to catastrophes and except for catastrophe reinsurance provided by
the FHCF, KHSC did not renew its catastrophe reinsurance program in 2013.

Net Investment Income increased by $5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to a
higher level of investments in fixed maturities, higher investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments
and higher dividends on equity securities, partially offset by lower book yields on fixed maturities. Net investment income from
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments was $8.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $1.8
million in 2012.

Operating Profit in the Life & Health Insurance segment was $136.9 million before taxes for the year ended December 31,
2013, compared to $140.4 million in 2012. Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE decreased by $5.2 million in
2013 due primarily to lower underlying losses on property insurance, lower catastrophe losses and LAE and higher favorable
loss and LAE reserve development, partially offset by higher policyholders’ benefits on life insurance and higher incurred
accident and health insurance losses. Incurred losses and LAE on property insurance were $27.4 million, or 34.8% of property
insurance earned premiums, in 2013, compared to $38.9 million, or 47.8% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2012.
Underlying losses and LAE on property insurance were $25.6 million, or 32.5% of property insurance earned premiums, in
2013, compared to $33.2 million, or 40.8% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2012 and decreased due primarily to
lower severity of insurance losses. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $3.6 million in 2013,
compared to $6.0 million in 2012. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $1.8 million in 2013, compared to $0.3
million in 2012. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development in 2013 resulted primarily from a final assessment issued by the
MWUA that reduced KHSC’s share of MWUA’s losses for the 2004 through 2006 policy periods by $2.0 million.
Policyholders’ benefits on life insurance were $269.6 million in 2013, compared to $265.3 million in 2012, an increase of $4.3
million. Policyholders’ benefits on life insurance increased due primarily to higher volume of insurance from policies issued by
Reserve National and slightly higher mortality rates related to insurance policies issued by KHSC, partially offset by the impact
of a higher lapse rate for KHSC’s in-force book of business. Incurred accident and health insurance losses were $90.9 million,
or 56.3% of accident and health insurance earned premiums, in 2013, compared to $88.9 million, or 53.8% of accident and
health insurance earned premiums, in 2012. Incurred accident and health insurance losses as a percentage of accident and health
insurance earned premiums increased due primarily to higher severity of accident and health insurance losses, partially offset by
lower frequency of claims. Insurance Expenses in the Life & Health Insurance segment increased by $7.4 million in 2013,
compared to 2012, due primarily to higher legal costs and start-up expenses to expand Reserve National’s distribution channels,
partially offset by lower commissions.

Segment Net Operating Income in the Life & Health Insurance segment was $89.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2013, compared to $90.8 million in 2012.

Unclaimed Property

Certain state insurance regulators, legislators and treasurers/controllers are involved in an array of initiatives that could result in
significant changes to the application of unclaimed property laws and related claims handling practices with respect to life
insurance policies. These initiatives seek, in various ways, to impose a new duty on the part of life insurers to proactively
search for deaths of their insureds. It is the Company’s position that state officials lack the legal authority to impose new
requirements where such requirements have the effect of changing the terms of existing life insurance contracts. See Item 1A.,
“Risk Factors,” under the caption “Unclaimed Property Risk Factor,” MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources,” and Note 22,
“Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about these matters.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS
Net Investment Income

Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Investment Income (Loss):
Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities.........cceeveierierereeieienieeieieie e eeeese e eeeennes $ 2274 § 2355 $§ 246.1
Dividends on EQUItY SECUTTLIES ....c.erviruieieriiriiiieiesit ettt st 59.9 38.0 25.7
Equity Method Limited Liability INVEStMENLES .......cceveeierieriiriieienienieieieneseee e 9.0 26.4 9.3
Fair Value Option INVESTMENTS .......c.ecieiieriiiiiieienie sttt st s 0.7) —
Short-term INVESTMENLS. .......ecueeuiiieieeiieiieierie ettt sttt b ene 0.6 0.1 0.2
L0ans to POHCYNOIACTS .......oviviieiieiiiicieieie ettt st eneas 20.5 19.8 18.9
REAL ESTALE ... cvetinieiieiiiieec ettt 12.1 20.8 274
(071515, USRS 0.1 — 0.1
Total INVEStMENt INCOME .....c..iiuiiieiiiiiiieieee ettt et seeenaens 328.9 340.6 327.7
Investment Expenses:
REAI ESTALE ...ttt ettt et ettt ettt e e aes 11.3 18.3 26.1
Other INVeStMENt EXPEINSES .....ecvveiiiiriieiieieiiieiieieste ettt sttt ettt st enee b seeeneens 85 7.6 5.7
Total INVEStMENt EXPENSES....eeiviiieiiiiiieiiieii ettt ettt ettt et ee e eae s e e e esaeseenseenns 19.8 259 31.8
Net INVeStmMent INCOMEC..........ovuiiiieieieiicieeieee ettt sbeeeeenees $ 3091 $§ 3147 $ 2959

2014 Compared with 2013

Net Investment Income decreased by $5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to
lower income on Equity Method Limited Liability Investments and lower Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities, partially
offset by higher dividends on Equity Securities. Investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments
decreased by $17.4 million due to lower investment returns. Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities decreased by $8.1
million due primarily to lower yields and, to a lesser extent, lower levels of Fixed Maturities. Dividends on Equity Securities in
2014 included dividend income of $21.8 million from one company that had sold substantially all of its operations. Interest
income from loans to policyholders increased by $0.7 million in 2014, compared to 2013, due to a higher level of loans
outstanding. Net investment income from real estate decreased by $1.7 million in 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to
income from the early termination of one tenant’s lease in 2013.

2013 Compared with 2012

Net Investment Income increased by $18.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to
higher income on Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, higher dividends on Equity Securities, higher levels of Fixed
Maturities, partially offset by lower yields on Fixed Maturities. Interest income from loans to policyholders increased by $0.9
million in 2013, compared to 2012, due to a higher level of loans outstanding. Net investment income from real estate increased
by $1.2 million in 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to income from the early termination of one tenant’s lease in 2013.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS (Continued)
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments

The components of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Fixed Maturities:
GAINS ON SAIES......viuviiietietiieeieteet ettt ettt ettt ettt te et se et et e e seete et e b eteese s et eseesessesseseans $ 70 $ 309 $ 569
LLOSSES ON SIS .....ecvviieiiiiieie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e e e ae e b e ae e teeereeas 0.2) 0.4) (0.1)
Equity Securities:
GAINS ON SALES.....eeeuvetietieiete ettt ettt ettt et et et e e esbesteeseentenseeseeseesesseeseensensesseaneens 33.1 21.8 8.3
LLOSSES 0N SALES ....eeveeiiiieitet ettt ettt bbb eneas 2.0) 0.5) 0.2)
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments:
GAINS ON SALES......eeutiiietieiieteeteete ettt sttt ettt e et e bt e st et et e e st eneebesbeeneensenbesreennans — 2.5 —
Real Estate:
GAINS ON SALES.....eeeuiiiieiieieteeteete ettt ettt et et e st e ste e e e nbesteeseessenseeseeseesessesseensesesseaneens — 442 0.2
LLOSSES ON SALES .....ieuiieiiieiieie ettt ettt ettt et e et e e e st e b e e ebe e b e enbeeaeebeeseenes 0.2) — —
Other Investments:
Gain on Sale Of SUDSIAIATY ...ccveeuieiiiiiieieeceee et 1.6 — —
GAINS ON SALES.....eeeuiieiiieiie ettt et e ettt e et e st e st e teesseesseessaesssesnseenseenseensean — 0.1 —
LLOSSES ON SIS .....eiviieiiiiieie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e eaeeas 0.1) 0.1) —
Trading Securities Net Gains (LOSSES) ..cc.veviririerieriiriieieriesieeiteiesie ettt 0.1) 0.6 0.3
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESIMENLS ..........c.cveiiviieieiiiiiieceeeieeeee e $ 391 § 991 $ 654
GrOSS GAINS ON SALES .....ovvviviieeieeiciieetce ettt ettt s e es e $ 417 $ 995 § 654
GTOSS LOSSES ON SALES ...ttt ettt sttt ettt ettt sae et beennens 2.5 (1.0) (0.3)
Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SECUTTHES ......evveivierieriirrieiieierieeeeeeieeteeseeeesie e eaese e seeeneas 0.1) 0.6 0.3
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESTMENTS .........c.ccvevevirieriiiieiiieieiieeee e $ 391 $ 991 § 654
Fixed Maturities

In the first quarter of 2013, the Company sold several corporate bonds and notes in conjunction with a comprehensive review of
the prospects of each issuer in the Company’s publicly-traded corporate bond portfolio. Net Realized Gains on Sales of Fixed
Maturities for the year ended December 31, 2013 include realized gains of $24.8 million from such sales. In the third quarter of
2012, the Company sold several municipal securities to take advantage of attractive pricing for such securities and for tax
planning and other portfolio management purposes. Net Realized Gains on Sales of Fixed Maturities for the year ended
December 31, 2012 include realized gains of $44.9 million from such sales. Other sales activity in 2014, 2013 and 2012 was
due to normal portfolio management.

Equity Securities

In the second half of 2014, the Company sold certain common stocks and other equity interests to reduce a concentration with
an external investment manager and to accelerate utilization of net operating loss carryforwards. Net Realized Gains on Sales of
Equity Securities for the year ended December 31, 2014 include net realized gains of $21.6 million from such sales. In the
fourth quarter of 2013, the Company sold certain common stocks to accelerate the utilization of net operating loss
carryforwards. Net Realized Gains on Sales of Equity Securities for the year ended December 31, 2013 include realized gains
of $19.8 million from such sales. Other sales activity in 2014, 2013 and 2012 was due to normal portfolio management.

Real Estate

In the third quarter of 2013, the Company sold the building where Kemper’s corporate offices are headquartered and recognized
a realized gain of $43.6 million. The sale was part of an effort to reduce the Company’s real estate exposure and reduce the real
estate portfolio’s concentration risk.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS (Continued)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an
investment is other-than-temporary. Losses arising from other-than-temporary declines in fair value are reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period that the declines are determined to be other-than-temporary. Information
pertaining to Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 is presented below.

2014 2013 2012
Number of Number of Number of
Issuers/ Issuers/ Issuers/
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Amount Properties Amount Properties Amount Properties
FiX€d MALULTHES - vvvoeeveoeeee oo eeeeee $ (5.7) 21 $ (10.3) 5% (19 3
EqUity SECUTTtIES ....cueeviivieeieiicieeieeeeteete e (7.1) 22 (3.6) 11 (1.9) 8
Real EState.......c.ooovviiuiiiieeeieeeeeeee e 2.4) 1 — 0 3.1 5
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............... $ (15.2) 4 $ (13.9) 16 $ (6.9 16

Fixed Maturities

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2014 related to
Investments in Fixed Maturities include losses of $0.4 million due to the Company’s intent to sell or requirement to sell bonds
of eighteen issuers and credit losses of $5.3 million from other-than-temporary declines in the fair values of investments in
fixed maturities of three issuers. Net Impairment Losses Recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year
ended December 31, 2013 related to Investments in Fixed Maturities include losses of $0.8 million due to the Company’s intent
to sell or requirement to sell bonds of two issuers and credit losses of $9.5 million from other-than-temporary declines in the
fair values of investments in fixed maturities of three issuers. Net Impairment Losses Recognized in the Consolidated
Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2012 related to Investments in Fixed Maturities include losses of $0.4
million due to the Company’s intent to sell bonds of one issuer and credit losses of $1.5 million from other-than-temporary
declines in the fair values of investments in fixed maturities of two issuers.

Real Estate

In 2014, the Company determined that the book value of one property was not recoverable based on the Company’s estimate of
the weighted-average, undiscounted cash flows from such property. Accordingly, the Company wrote down the property to its
estimated fair value and recognized an impairment loss of $2.4 million in 2014. In 2012, the Company classified certain
investments in real estate as held for sale. In connection with such classification, the Company wrote down five properties to
their respective estimated net sales prices and recognized impairment losses of $3.1 million in 2012.
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Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses)

Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) are comprised of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments and Net

Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income and unrealized investment gains
and losses that are not reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income, but rather are reported in the Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income. The components of Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) for the years ended

December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Fixed Maturities:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS 0N SALES ...ttt ettt $ 70 $ 309 $ 569
LLOSSES ON SALES ...ttt ettt e naeenaeennean 0.2) 0.4) (0.1)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ...........ccocevveveeievienienesceieneseeeennn. 5.7 (10.3) (1.9)
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of InCOME..........c.coceeveerinienieciniininiennncns 1.1 20.2 54.9
Recognized in Other Comprehensive INCOme (LOSS) ....overvieeieierierieeieieieeieeeeie e 231.4 (371.9) 69.1
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) on Fixed Maturities..............cceeerereennene 232.5 (351.7) 124.0
Equity Securities:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS ON SALES ...ttt ettt sttt sttt 33.1 21.8 83
LOSSES ON SAIES ...cvveuiiiiiiieiieiectt ettt ettt ettt ettt e ae b e sseeteesee s esseeseessensensesseensens 2.0) (0.5) (0.2)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........ccoecvevveveneeienieninceieneneenes (7.1) (3.6) (1.9)
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of INCOME.........cccuevveririenininierieninenne. 24.0 17.7 6.2
Recognized in Other Comprehensive INCOME .........ooveveriirieieieieeicieeceeeeeie e 2.2 9.3 29.2
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains on Equity Securities............ccecvvivenieiiencneeenenn. 26.2 27.0 354
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS O SALES ...ttt ettt ettt sae et sbe e — 2.5 —
Real Estate:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS ON SALCS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ee et e sttt eneenes — 44.2 0.2
LLOSSES ON SAIES .....vviiiieiiieiieeie ettt ettt ettt et naeenaeeaaeas 0.2) — —
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ..........cccccoeeviveieeiiienieiienienie e 24 — 3.1)
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income..........ccceeeeieienenincienieneeeennn. (2.6) 442 2.9
Other:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
Gain on Sale Of SUDSIAIATY .....oouiiieiiiiiieieeeee e e 1.6 — —
GAINS O SALES ...ttt ettt sttt st — 0.1 —
LLOSSES ON SAIES ...ttt ettt ettt et eaaean 0.1) 0.1) —
Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SeCUITHES. .......coiririerierierieienierieeieeieie e 0.1) 0.6 0.3
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of INCOME........cccvevieiecieniiniicieieireeenen. 14 0.6 0.3
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (LOSSES) ......ccuvveeierieriieierienieeieieiesie e $ 2575 $ (2774) $ 156.8
Recognized in Consolidated Statements 0f INCOME ...........c.coveevieieiiiiiieiieicicecceeeeere s $ 239 § 852 § 585
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (LOSS).....cvevverviiieierieniieieieieeeeeeiesieeeeneens 233.6 (362.6) 98.3
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (LOSSES) .......c.eiverieriirieeierienieeieienieseeeieeeesieseeneens $ 2575 § (2774) $ 156.8
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INVESTMENT QUALITY AND CONCENTRATIONS

The Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio is comprised primarily of high-grade municipal, corporate and agency
bonds. At December 31, 2014, 92% of the Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio was rated investment-grade, which is
defined as a security having a rating of AAA, AA, A or BBB from S&P; a rating of Aaa, Aa, A or Baa from Moody’s; a rating of
AAA, AA, A or BBB from Fitch; or a rating from the NAIC of 1 or 2. The following table summarizes the credit quality of the
fixed maturity investment portfolio at December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Dec 31,2014 Dec 31,2013
NAIC Fair Value Percentage Fair Value Percentage
Rating S&P Equivalent Rating in Millions of Total in Millions of Total
1 AAAAA, AL $ 3,249.3 68.0% $ 3,128.1 68.4%
2 BBB ... e 1,156.4 24.2 1,119.9 24.5
3-4 BB, B 166.7 35 144.6 3.1
5-6 CCC O LOWET ..t 205.2 4.3 182.4 4.0
Total Investments in Fixed Maturiti€s .........ccoeeveeeeieeiiieeciie e creeeeneenen $ 4,777.6 100.0% $ 4,575.0 100.0%

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s investments in below-investment-grade fixed maturities were $5.6 million and $5.5
million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in governmental fixed maturities at December 31,
2014 and 2013:

Dec 31,2014 Dec 31,2013
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Investments Fair Value Investments
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities................... $ 3455 54% § 3622 5.9%
States and Political Subdivisions:
Pre-refunded with U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
Authorities Held 1n TruSt..........oooviiiiiiiiiieccieeeeee e 85.4 1.3 162.6 2.6
SHALES .ttt ettt e et e e eraeeeaaee s 644.6 10.0 629.1 10.2
Political SUDAIVISIONS .........cocvvieeieieieeeieceeeee e 141.1 2.2 128.1 2.1
ReVENUE BONAS.......oooviiiiiiiiiieceeee e 606.0 9.4 441.2 7.2
Total Investments in Governmental Fixed Maturities ..........cccc.coeevveeeennn. $ 1,822.6 283% $ 1,723.2 28.0%

The Company’s short-term investments primarily consist of overnight repurchase agreements, money market funds and U.S.
Treasury bills. At December 31, 2014, the Company had $150.0 million invested in overnight repurchase agreements primarily
collateralized by securities issued by the U.S. government and government agencies and authorities, $161.1 million invested in
money market funds which primarily invest in U.S. Treasury securities and $8.4 million of U.S. Treasury bills. At the time of
borrowing, the repurchase agreements generally require the borrower to provide collateral to the Company at least equal to the
amount borrowed from the Company. The Company bears some investment risk in the event that a borrower defaults and the
value of collateral falls below the amount borrowed. The Company does not have any investments in sovereign debt securities
issued by foreign governments.
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The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in non-governmental fixed maturities by industry
at December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Dec 31,2014 Dec 31,2013
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Investments Fair Value Investments
MANUFACTUTING ... .euvievieeieeieieete ettt ettt ettt et et e eaeereeae s e ebesaeeasenns $ 1,247.4 194% $ 1,196.9 19.5%
Finance, Insurance and Real EState .............cccoooviiiiiiiiiiicie e 785.6 12.2 767.9 12.5
Transportation, Communication and Utilities..........ccceevveveririeneninennnnn. 3129 4.9 306.7 5.0
SEIVICES .. vviutitietieeieete ettt et ettt ettt et e s teese e s eseeseessesseseeaeessessesteessennas 305.0 4.7 277.5 4.5
IMITUIIE ..ttt et e e e se et e b e sbeeseensessessaenaens 139.7 2.2 143.1 2.3
Retail Trade......ccveieiieiieiieiesie et 74.5 1.2 75.6 1.2
WHholesale Trade.........ccvecieriiiieieieiiiciieieie ettt 69.7 1.1 60.7 1.0
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing..........cccoccovievienieninieeniccieee e, 15.3 0.2 18.8 0.3
OIET .ttt ettt 4.9 0.1 4.6 0.1
Total Investments in Non-governmental Fixed Maturities........................ $ 2,955.0 46.0% $ 2.,851.8 46.4%

Seventy-nine companies comprised more than 75% of the Company’s fixed maturity exposure to the Manufacturing industry at
December 31, 2014, with the largest single exposure, Merck & Co. Inc., comprising 2.6%, or $32.6 million, of the Company’s
fixed maturity exposure to such industry. Forty companies comprised more than 75% of the Company’s exposure to the
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate industry at December 31, 2014, with the largest single exposure, Massachusetts Mutual Life
Insurance Company, comprising 4.6%, or $36.2 million, of the Company’s exposure to such industry.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s ten largest exposures, excluding investments in U.S.
Government and Government Agencies and Authorities, pre-refunded municipal bonds and Short-term Investments, at
December 31, 2014.

Percentage
Fair of Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Investments
Fixed Maturities:
States including their Political Subdivisions:
TIEXAS -ttt ettt ettt ettt bt h e a et bt e h bbbt e st bt bt h b e b e bt bt e a b e b e bt ea et e bt eheente b ebeenee $ 96.7 1.5%
() 11 o TSROSO 79.4 1.2
IMHICRI@AI ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt e st e b e et e e st e b e b e eaeentenbenbeene et e nbeeeeenee 68.7 1.1
28 (o) 1 - PRSP SRS 65.1 1.0
GROTZIA 1 vtevteueete et ettt ettt et et e et e et e e te e st e st et e et e eseenb e et e et e ensesb e eseensenseeseessenseseeneeneensenseeneensenseseeenes 64.2 1.0
(070 001 T4 Lo BSOS OO SP PP USOUP TR 60.2 0.9
WESCOMSII ..ttt ettt b et bbbt b bt b et e sttt st em e sttt sa e s ene e b et e e eneene e 59.9 0.9
Equity Securities—Other Equity Interests:
Vanguard Total Stock Market ETF..........cooiiiiiiiiei et 70.3 1.1
1Shares® Core S&P 500 ETE ....c..ciiiiiiiiiieee ettt 53.4 0.8
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments:
Tennenbaum Opportunities Fund V, LLC........c.occiioiiiiiiiiiiieiececeese e 63.5 1.0
TOTAL ..ttt ettt ettt ettt sttt eae $ 6814 10.5%
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INVESTMENTS IN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANIES AND LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

The Company owns investments in various limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships that primarily invest
in distressed debt, mezzanine debt and secondary transactions. The Company’s investments in these limited liability investment
companies and limited partnerships are reported either as Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, Other Equity Interests
and included in Equity Securities, or Fair Value Option Investments depending on the accounting method used to report the
investment. See Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Additional information pertaining to these investments at December 31, 2014 and 2013 is presented below:

Unfunded

Commitment Reported Value in Millions
Dec 31, Dec 31, Dec 31,
Asset Class 2014 2014 2013
Reported as Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus
Cumulative Undistributed Earnings:
DiStreSSEd DEDL....vivviiiieiiieieicietceet ettt $ — 3 93.0 $ 126.1
Secondary TranSACtIONS ........c.eeeeieriereeeieieniesteeeeeesreeseeeesaesreereesaesessesseensens 17.7 48.9 54.0
Mezzanine DDt ........cccoevuiiiiiiiiiiiiiece e 15.0 27.0 46.0
GTOWEh EQUILY ©ovveeiiiiie ettt ee — 5.3 7.8
SENIOT D@D ..c.cviiiiieieit et 4.9 5.0 7.5
Leveraged BUuyouL..........ccccoveiiiiiiiiiiiciciercceceeee e 0.1 3.9 3.7
OBNET <.ttt — 1.7 —
Total Equity Method Limited Liability Investments..........c..coccoeevvenineccncnenee 37.7 184.8 245.1
Reported as Other Equity Interests at Fair Value:
Mezzanine DDt ........cccoivuiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 61.9 69.7 63.8
SENIOT D@D ...ttt 17.7 214 15.0
DIStressed DEbE......o.eeuiiiiiiieiieiiieee e 1.6 18.2 14.4
Secondary TranSaCtioNS ..........eeeeververiirieienienieeeeie ettt eee st eeeee st seeeneens 12.5 15.6 13.7
Hedge FUNA.......ooiieieeee et e e — 9.1 12.5
Leveraged BUYOUL......c.ooiiieiiiicieieiet ettt 2.5 8.0 9.9
REAL ESTALE ..ottt — — 6.3
OBRET <.ttt 1.7 44.2 383
Total Reported as Other Equity Interests at Fair Value..........ccccoecevvevenininnenne. 97.9 186.2 173.9
Reported as Fair Value Option Investments:
Hedge FUNd.......ooiieieeee et — 53.3 —
Total Investments in Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships.... $ 1356 $ 4243 § 419.0

The Company does not directly participate, as either a lender or borrower of securities, in any securities lending program. The
Company does not participate directly in credit default swaps. The Company does not engage directly in hedging activities,
including, but not limited to, activities involving interest rate swaps, forward foreign currency contracts, commodities contracts,
exchange traded and over-the-counter options or warrants. The Company has limited exposure to such programs and activities
by virtue of its investments in the limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships noted above.
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WRITE-OFF OF LONG-LIVED ASSET

In September 2014, certain members of management of the Company participated in discussions with the product leadership
team of a software vendor that is developing computer software for the Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment.
Over the course of these meetings, the vendor’s team signaled likely changes in the strategic direction for the vendor’s product
offerings in the property and casualty insurance market, including the software being developed for the Company, as well as the
vendor’s related marketing strategy. The Company determined on September 30, 2014 that it was no longer probable that
certain software will be completed and/or fully implemented. Accordingly, the Company recorded a charge of $54.6 million
before taxes to write off such software.

INTEREST AND OTHER EXPENSES

Interest and Other Expenses was $91.7 million, $100.5 million and $85.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013
and 2012, respectively. Interest expense, excluding interest on a mortgage note payable included in real estate investment
expense in 2013 and 2012, was $46.9 million, $38.1 million and $37.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013
and 2012, respectively. Other Corporate Expenses were $44.8 million, $62.4 million and $47.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Other Corporate Expenses decreased by $17.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to lower postretirement benefit costs. Other Corporate Expenses
increased by $14.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to higher postretirement
benefit costs and compensation expense.

As shown in Note 15, “Pension Benefits,” the Company recognized an actuarial loss of $108.8 million related to its qualified
defined benefit pension plan in 2014. The Accumulated Actuarial Loss included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
(“AOCT”) for such plan was $178.6 million at December 31, 2014. The actuarial loss in 2014 was due primarily to a reduction
in the discount rate assumed and a change in the mortality rate assumed as a result of adopting newly-published mortality
tables. Amortization of the Accumulated Actuarial Loss is anticipated to increase pension expense by $13.3 million in 2015,
compared to 2014.

INCOME TAXES

The Company’s effective income tax rate from continuing operations differs from the Federal statutory income tax rate due
primarily to the effects of tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions, and the net effects of state income
taxes. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $25.6 million, $30.1 million and $39.8 million in
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. State income tax expense, net of federal benefit, from continuing operations was $0.6
million, $0.2 million and $0.8 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Company’s effective income tax rate from discontinued operations differs from the Federal statutory income tax rate for the
year ended December 31, 2012 due primarily to the net effects of state income taxes. State income tax, net of federal taxes,
from discontinued operations was $0.7 million of expense for the year ended December 31, 2012.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Debt

Kemper has a four-year, $225.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement, expiring March 7, 2016, with a group of
financial institutions. The credit agreement provides for fixed and floating rate advances for periods up to six months at various
interest rates. The credit agreement contains various financial covenants, including limits on total debt to total capitalization,
consolidated net worth and minimum risk-based capital ratios for Kemper’s largest insurance subsidiaries, United Insurance and
Trinity. Proceeds from advances under the credit agreement may be used for general corporate purposes, including repayment
of existing indebtedness. Kemper did not borrow under its credit agreements during 2014, 2013 and 2012. There were no
outstanding borrowings under the credit agreement at December 31, 2014, and accordingly, $225.0 million was available for
future borrowings.

The outstanding principal balance of Kemper’s debt was $760 million at December 31, 2014, of which $250 million is
scheduled to mature on November 30, 2015 (the “2015 Debt”), $360 million is scheduled to mature on May 15, 2017 (the
“2017 Debt”) and $150 million is scheduled to mature on February 27, 2054 (the “2054 Debt”). The 2015 Debt and 2017 Debt
are currently redeemable at Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. The 2054 Debt was issued in 2014 and is
subordinated to the 2015 Debt and 2017 Debt. Kemper cannot redeem the 2054 Debt prior to February 27, 2019 unless certain
tax or rating agency events have occurred. With respect to 2015 Debt, Kemper is evaluating various repayment alternatives,
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Continued)

including using existing resources to repay such debt at or before maturity, or refinancing it at or prior to maturity. See Note 6,
“Debt,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding Kemper’s debt.

United Insurance and Trinity are members of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) of Chicago and the FHLB of Dallas,
respectively. As members, they are permitted to obtain extensions of credit (“FHLB Advances”) from their respective FHLB.
The amount of FHLB Advances that may be obtained as of any particular date is based on a multiple of the amount of capital
stock in the FHLB that has been purchased by a company as of such date. Advances from the FHLB of Dallas and Chicago are
subject to collateral requirements as specified in the respective agreements with Trinity and United Insurance. There were no
advances from the FHLB of Dallas or Chicago outstanding at either December 31, 2014 or December 31, 2013.

Subsidiary Dividends

Under various state insurance laws, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries may pay dividends without obtaining prior regulatory
approval based upon levels of statutory capital and surplus and/or net income, as defined by the applicable state law. Kemper’s
direct insurance subsidiaries paid dividends of $217.5 million, $95.0 million and $95.0 million to Kemper in 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively. In 2015, Kemper estimates that its direct insurance subsidiaries would be able to pay $218 million in
dividends to Kemper without prior regulatory approval. In addition, Kemper is considering requesting approval from regulators
for one of its insurance subsidiaries to pay an extraordinary dividend of up to $100 million.

On July 25, 2013, Kemper’s subsidiary, One East Wacker LLC (“One East”), sold the building where Kemper’s corporate
offices are headquartered for a gain of $43.6 million before taxes. In connection with the sale, Kemper entered into a long-term
operating lease for five floors of the 41-story office building, with naming and signage rights. One East’s proceeds from the sale
before taxes, net of repayment of a $45 million mortgage held by Trinity and an advance of $4.0 million from Kemper, and
payment of other transaction costs and liabilities, were approximately $50 million. In 2013, One East distributed $48 million of
its capital in cash to Kemper. In 2012, Fireside Auto Finance distributed $20 million of its capital to its then parent company,
Fireside Securities Corporation, which then, in turn, distributed the same amount to its parent company, Kemper. The
undistributed net assets of Kemper’s non-insurance subsidiaries was not material at December 31, 2014.

Acquisition of Alliance United Group

On December 10, 2014, Kemper entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Alliance United Group and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, AUIC and AUIS, in a cash transaction valued at approximately $70 million. Kemper expects to close the
transaction in the first half of 2015, subject to approvals by insurance regulators and the satisfaction of other customary closing
conditions. Following the closing of the transaction, Kemper plans to contribute approximately $75 million of capital to support
AUIC’s book of business.

Common Stock Repurchases and Dividends to Shareholders

On August 6, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the 2014 Repurchase Program under which Kemper is authorized to
repurchase up to $300 million of its common stock and terminated Kemper’s remaining authorization under the 2011
Repurchase Program.

During 2014, Kemper repurchased approximately 3.2 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $115.5 million
in open market transactions under the two repurchase programs. The Company had $291.0 million of remaining capacity under
the 2014 Repurchase Program at December 31, 2014. During 2013, Kemper repurchased approximately 3.0 million shares of its
common stock at an aggregate cost of $100.4 million in open market transactions under the 2011 Repurchase Program. During
2012, Kemper repurchased approximately 2.0 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $60.7 million in open
market transactions under the 2011 Repurchase Program.

Kemper paid a quarterly dividend to shareholders of $0.24 per common share in each quarter of 2014. Dividends paid were
$51.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Sources of Funds

Kemper directly held cash and investments totaling $330.3 million at December 31, 2014, compared to $156.7 million at
December 31, 2013. Sources available for the repayment of indebtedness, repurchases of common stock, future shareholder
dividend payments, the purchase of Alliance United Group and additional capitalization of AUIC, and the payment of interest
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on Kemper’s senior notes and subordinated debentures include cash and investments directly held by Kemper, receipt of
dividends from Kemper’s subsidiaries and borrowings under the credit agreement.

The primary sources of funds for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are premiums, investment income and proceeds from the
sales and maturity of investments. The primary uses of funds are the payment of policyholder benefits under life insurance
contracts, claims under property and casualty insurance contracts and accident and health insurance contracts, the payment of
commissions and general expenses and the purchase of investments. Generally, there is a time lag between when premiums are
collected and when policyholder benefits and insurance claims are paid. Changes in the legal environment relative to
application of state unclaimed property laws and related insurance claims handling practices could result in changes in
themanner in which Kemper’s life insurance companies administer life insurance death benefits and escheat unclaimed benefits
to the states, and could have a significant effect on, including decreasing such time lag due to an acceleration of, the payment
and/or remittance of such benefits to beneficiaries or the states under their unclaimed property laws relative to what is currently
contemplated by Kemper. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “Unclaimed Property Risk Factor” MD&A, “Life &
Health Insurance,” and Note 22, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about
these matters. During periods of growth, insurance companies typically experience positive operating cash flows and are able to
invest a portion of their operating cash flows to fund future policyholder benefits and claims. During periods in which premium
revenues decline, insurance companies may experience negative cash flows from operations and may need to sell investments
to fund payments to policyholders and claimants. In addition, if the Company’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries
experience several significant catastrophic events over a relatively short period of time, investments may have to be sold in
advance of their maturity dates to fund payments, which could either result in realized investment gains or losses. Management
believes that its property and casualty insurance subsidiaries maintain adequate levels of liquidity in the event that they
experience several future catastrophic events over a relatively short period of time.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities increased by $11.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to
2013. Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities increased by $56.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared
to 2012.

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities decreased by $137.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to 2013,
due primarily to net proceeds of $144.0 million related to the issuance of the 2054 Subordinated Debentures. Kemper used
$114.0 million of cash during 2014 to repurchase shares of its common stock, compared to $100.4 million of cash used to
repurchase shares of its common stock in 2013. Kemper used $51.8 million of cash to pay dividends for the year ended
December 31, 2014, compared to $54.9 million of cash used to pay dividends in 2013. The quarterly dividend rate was $0.24
per common share for each quarter of 2014 and 2013.

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities increased by $42.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to 2012.
Kemper used $100.4 million of cash during 2013 to repurchase shares of its common stock, compared to $60.7 million of cash
used to repurchase shares of its common stock in 2012. Kemper used $54.9 million of cash to pay dividends in 2013, compared
to $56.9 million of cash used to pay dividends in 2012. The quarterly dividend rate was $0.24 per common share for each
quarter of 2013 and 2012.

Cash available for investment activities in total is dependent on cash flow from Operating Activities and Financing Activities
and the level of cash the Company elects to maintain. Net Cash Used by Investing Activities increased by $109.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2014, compared to 2013. Sales of Fixed Maturities exceeded Purchases of Fixed Maturities by $20.7
million in 2014. Purchases of Fixed Maturities exceeded Sales of Fixed Maturities by $80.1 million in 2013. Sales of Equity
Securities exceeded Purchases of Equity Securities by $10.1 million in 2014. Purchases of Equity Securities exceeded Sales of
Equity Securities by $31.3 million for in 2013. Purchases of Fair Value Option Investments exceeded Sales of Fair Value
Option Investments by $54.0 million in 2014. There were no purchases or sales of Fair Value Option Investments in 2013. In
2014, the Company made an initial purchase of $33.5 million of Corporate-owned Life Insurance. There were no purchases or
sales of Corporate-owned Life Insurance for the same period in 2013. Cash provided by the sale of investment real estate was
$0.9 million in 2014 compared to $102.7 million in 2013. Net cash used by acquisitions of short-term investments was $63.9
million in 2014, compared to net cash of $41.8 million provided by dispositions of short-term investments in 2013.

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities increased by $111.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to
2012. Purchases of Fixed Maturities exceeded Sales of Fixed Maturities by $80.1 million in 2013. Sales of Fixed Maturities
exceeded Purchases of Fixed Maturities by $41.8 million in 2012. Purchases of Equity Securities exceeded Sales of Equity
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Securities by $31.3 million in 2013. Purchases of Equity Securities exceeded Sales of Equity Securities by $66.9 million in
2012. Cash provided by the sale of investment real estate was $102.7 million in 2013 compared to $6.0 million in 2012. Net
cash provided by dispositions of short-term investments was $41.8 million in 2013, compared to net cash of $80.0 million used
by acquisitions of short-term investments in 2012. Net proceeds from the sale of FAF’s inactive loan portfolio provided $16.7
million of cash in 2012.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has no material obligations under guarantee contracts. The Company has no material retained or contingent
interests in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity. The Company has no material obligations, including contingent
obligations, under contracts that would be accounted for as derivative instruments. The Company has no obligations, including
contingent obligations, arising out of a variable interest in an unconsolidated entity held by, and material to, the Company,
where such entity provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to, or engages in leasing, hedging or research
and development services with the Company. Accordingly, the Company has no material off-balance sheet arrangements.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Estimated cash disbursements pertaining to the Company’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Jan 1, 2015 Jan 1, 2016 Jan 1, 2018

To To To After

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Dec 31, 2015 Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2019 Dec 31, 2019 Total
Long Term Debt Obligations...........cccccveverenvereennene. $ 2500 $ 360.0 $ — 3 150.0 $ 760.0
Capital Lease Obligations .........ccccceevveveerreereerienrennenne 1.9 2.5 0.1 — 4.5
Operating Lease Obligations..........ccccecevereevennennenne. 16.5 27.0 16.7 19.1 79.3
Purchase Obligations...........cceecveeieeiireiieeniieiesieeiene 20.9 27.5 13.0 0.3 61.7
Life and Health Insurance Policy Benefits................. 263.3 447.6 428.1 6,111.1 7,250.1
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves ................ 388.5 238.7 55.3 51.4 733.9
Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in Long

Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance

Sheet under GAAP........ocoveviivieieeeeceeee e 48.1 51.9 22.2 379.1 501.3
Total Contractual Obligations ...........cccceeeveeverienncnne. $ 989.2 § 11,1552 § 5354 $ 6,711.0 $ 9,390.8

Amounts included in Life and Health Insurance Policy Benefits within the contractual obligations table above represent the
estimated cash payments to be made to policyholders and beneficiaries. Such cash outflows are based on the Company’s current
assumptions for mortality, morbidity and policy lapse, but are undiscounted with respect to interest. Policies must remain in
force for the policyholder or beneficiary to receive the benefit under the policy. Depending on the terms of a particular policy,
future premiums from the policyholder may be required for the policy to remain in force. The Company estimates that future
cash inflows would total $3.8 billion using the same assumptions used to estimate the cash outflows. The Company’s Life
Insurance Reserves in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets are generally based on the historical assumptions for
mortality and policy lapse rates and are on a discounted basis. Accordingly, the sum of the amounts presented above for Life
and Health Insurance Policy Benefits significantly exceeds the amount of Life and Health Insurance Reserves reported on the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2014.

In addition to the purchase obligations included above, the Company had certain investment commitments totaling $152.9
million at December 31, 2014. The funding of such investment commitments is dependent on a number of factors, the timing of
which is indeterminate. The contractual obligations reported above also exclude the Company’s liability of $7.2 million for
unrecognized tax benefits. The Company cannot make a reasonably reliable estimate of the amount and period of related future
payments, if any, for such liability. Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in Long Term Liabilities on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet under GAAP primarily consist of interest obligations related to Long Term Debt Obligations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Kemper’s subsidiaries conduct their businesses in two industries: property and casualty insurance and life and health insurance.
Accordingly, the Company is subject to several industry-specific accounting principles under GAAP. The preparation of
financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
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assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The process of estimation is inherently uncertain. Accordingly,
actual results could ultimately differ materially from the estimated amounts reported in a company’s financial statements.
Different assumptions are likely to result in different estimates of reported amounts. The Company’s critical accounting policies
most sensitive to estimates include the valuation of investments, the valuation of property and casualty insurance reserves for
losses and LAE, the assessment of recoverability of goodwill and the valuation of pension benefit obligations.

Valuation of Investments

The reported value of the Company’s investments was $6,439.7 million at December 31, 2014, of which $5,468.0 million, or
85%, was reported at fair value, $184.8 million, or 3%, was reported under the equity method of accounting, $283.4 million, or
4%, was reported at unpaid principal balance and $503.5 million, or 8%, was reported at cost or depreciated cost. Investments,
in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and overall market volatility risk. Accordingly, it is
reasonably possible that changes in the fair values of the Company’s investments reported at fair value will occur in the near
term and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. Also, it is reasonably possible
that changes in the carrying values of the Company’s Equity Method Limited Liability Investments will occur in the near term
and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements because these issuers follow
specialized industry accounting rules which require that they report all of their investments at fair value (See Item 1A., “Risk
Factors” under the title “The Company’s investment portfolio is exposed to a variety of risks that may negatively impact net
investment income and cause realized and unrealized losses™).

As more fully described under the heading, “Fair Value Measurements,” in Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company uses a hierarchal framework which prioritizes
and ranks the market observability used in fair value measurements.

The fair value of the Company’s investments measured and reported at fair value was $5,468.0 million at December 31, 2014,
of which $4,754.1 million, or 87%, were investments that were based on quoted market prices or significant value drivers that
are observable and $713.9 million, or 13%, were investments where at least one significant value driver was unobservable. Fair
value measurements based on readily available, active, quoted market prices or for which fair value can be measured from
actively quoted prices generally are deemed to have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of
judgment, compared to fair value measurements based on significant unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value. The
prices that the Company might realize from actual sales of investments are likely to vary from their respective estimated fair
values at December 31, 2014 due to changing market conditions and limitations inherent in the estimation process.

The classification of a company’s investment in a financial instrument may affect its reported results. For investments classified
as trading or for financial instruments for which a company has elected the fair value option method of accounting, a company
is required to recognize changes in the fair values into income for the period reported. Accordingly, both the reported and fair
values of the Company’s investments classified as trading were $4.9 million at December 31, 2014. Both the reported and fair
values of the Company’s investments accounted for under the fair value option method of accounting were $53.3 million at
December 31, 2014. For investments in fixed maturities classified as held to maturity, a company is required to carry the
investment at amortized cost, with only amortization occurring during the period recognized into income. None of the
Company’s investments in fixed maturities were classified as held to maturity at December 31, 2014. Changes in the fair value
of investments in fixed maturities classified as available for sale, investments in equity securities classified as available for sale
and an insurance entity’s investments in equity securities without readily determinable fair values are not recognized to income
during the period, but rather are recognized as a separate component of AOCI until realized. All of the Company’s investments
in fixed maturities were classified as available for sale at December 31, 2014. Except for investments accounted for under the
equity method of accounting or classified as trading, all of the Company’s investments in equity securities at December 31,
2014 are reported at fair value with changes in fair value reported in AOCI until realized. The Company’s investments
accounted for under the equity method of accounting consist of the Company’s investments in Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments and are valued at cost plus cumulative undistributed comprehensive earnings or losses, and not at fair value.

Under GAAP, a company may elect to use the fair value option for some or all of its investments in financial instruments.
Under the fair value option, a company is required to recognize changes in the fair values into income for the period reported.
Had the Company elected the fair value option for all of its investments in financial instruments, the Company’s reported net
income for the year ended December 31, 2014, would have increased by $151.2 million.
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The Company regularly reviews its investments for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost or amortized cost is other than temporary. Such reviews are inherently uncertain in that the value of the
investment may not fully recover or may decline further in future periods. Some factors considered for fixed maturity and
equity securities in evaluating whether or not a decline in fair value is other than temporary include, but are not limited to, the
following:

Fixed Maturity Securities

»  The financial condition, credit rating and prospects of the issuer;

*  The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

*  The ability of the issuer to make scheduled principal and interest payments;

*  The volatility of the investment;

*  Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

*  The Company’s intentions to sell or not to sell the investment; and

*  The Company’s determination of whether it will be required to sell the investment before a full recovery in value.

Equity Securities

*  The financial condition and prospects of the issuer;

*  The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

*  The volatility of the investment;

e  Analyst recommendations and near term price targets;

*  Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

*  Market liquidity;

*  Debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks and issuer ratings; and

*  The Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the investments until recovery.

Changes in these factors from their December 31, 2014 evaluation date could result in the Company determining that a
temporary decline in the fair value of an investment held and evaluated at December 31, 2014 is no longer temporary at a
subsequent evaluation date. Such determination would result in an impairment loss recognized in earnings in the period such
determination is made.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are reported using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability
for losses and LAE for claims that occurred prior to the end of any given accounting period but have not yet been paid. The
Company had $733.9 million and $843.5 million of gross loss and LAE reserves at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for the Company’s business segments at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013
Business Segments:

Property & Casualty INSUIANCE .......c..evviruirieiiiieiieiete sttt ettt sttt 651.1 742.6

Life & Health INSUIANCE. ....c.couiitiieiieiiiteeteeit ettt ettt sttt en e e ee e eneenes 4.5 5.3
TOtal BUSINESS SEZIMENLS. ....cuveuieiiiieiieieie ettt ettt et ettt et et e steeseenbesbeeseentebesseeseensensesseeseensensesseensenes 655.6 747.9
DiSCONTNUEA OPETALIONS ...ttt sttt sttt ettt ea et sb e bt ettt b e et et e sbe e st eat e be bt ebeentenbesbeeneenee 70.2 83.0
UNAIIOCALEA RESEIVES ..c.viviiiiiiiiiieiiesie ettt ettt ettt sttt e s te e st et e s seeseenseseeseeseensensesseensenseseeaneenes 8.1 12.6
Total Property and Casualty InSUrance RESETVES..........ccuevuirieiiiriiniiiieierie et $ 7339 §$ 8435

In estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional
judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many variables that are difficult to quantify. Accordingly, the process of
estimating and establishing the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves is inherently uncertain, and the actual
ultimate net cost of known and unknown claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts reserved. The reserving
process is particularly imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, construction defect and other emerging
and/or long-tailed exposures which may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended.
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves related to the Company’s discontinued operations are predominantly long-tailed
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exposures, $28.4 million of which was related to asbestos, environmental matters and construction defect exposures at
December 31, 2014.

The Company’s actuaries generally estimate reserves at least quarterly for most product lines and/or coverage levels using
accident quarters spanning 10 or more years, depending on the size of the product line and/or coverage level or emerging issues
relating to them. The Company’s actuaries use a variety of generally accepted actuarial loss reserving estimation
methodologies, including, but not limited to, the following:

* Incurred Loss Development Methodology;

*  Paid Loss Development Methodology;

*  Bornhuetter-Ferguson Incurred Loss Methodology;
*  Bornhuetter-Ferguson Paid Loss Methodology; and
»  Frequency and Severity Methodology.

The Company’s actuaries generally review the results of at least four of the estimation methodologies, two based on paid data
and two based on incurred data, to initially estimate the ultimate losses and LAE for the current accident quarter and re-estimate
the ultimate losses and LAE for previous accident quarters to determine if changes in the previous estimates of the ultimate
losses and LAE are indicated by the most recent data. In some cases, the methodologies produce a cluster of estimates with a
tight band of indicated possible outcomes. In other cases, however, the methodologies produce conflicting results and wider
bands of indicated possible outcomes, and the Company’s actuaries perform additional analyses before making their final
selections. However, such bands do not necessarily constitute a range of outcomes, nor does the Company’s management or the
Company’s actuaries calculate a range of outcomes.

The key assumption in these estimation methodologies is that patterns observed in prior periods are indicative of how losses
and LAE are expected to develop in the future and that such historical data can be used to predict and estimate ultimate losses
and LAE. However, changes in the Company’s business processes, by their very nature, are likely to affect the development
patterns, which generally results in the historical development factors becoming less reliable over time in predicting how losses
and LAE will ultimately develop. The ultimate impact of a single change in a business process is difficult to quantify and
detect, and even more difficult if several changes to business processes occur over several years. Initially after a change is
implemented, there are fewer data points, as compared to the historical data, for the Company’s actuaries to analyze. With fewer
data points to analyze, the Company’s actuaries cannot be certain that observed differences from the historical data trends are a
result of the change in business process or merely a random fluctuation in the data. As the Company’s actuaries observe more
data points following the change in business process, the Company’s actuaries can gain more confidence in whether the change
in business process is affecting the development pattern. The challenge for the Company’s actuaries is how much weight to
place on the development patterns based on the older historical data and how much weight to place on the development patterns
based on more recent data.

At a minimum, the Company’s actuaries analyze 45 product and/or coverage levels for over 40 separate current and prior
accident quarters for both losses and LAE using many of the loss reserving estimation methodologies identified above as well
as other generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies. In all, there are over 10,000 combinations of accident quarters,
coverage levels, and generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies used to estimate the Company’s unpaid losses and
LAE. In some cases, the Company’s actuaries make adjustments to the loss reserving estimation methodologies identified
above or use additional generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies to estimate ultimate losses and LAE.

For each accident quarter, the point estimate selected by the Company’s actuaries is not necessarily one of the points produced
by any particular one of the methodologies utilized, but often is another point selected by the Company’s actuaries, using their
professional judgment, that takes into consideration each of the points produced by the several loss reserving estimation
methodologies used. In some cases, for a particular product, the current accident quarter may not have enough paid claims data
to rely upon, leading the Company’s actuaries to conclude that the incurred loss development methodology provides a better
estimate than the paid loss development methodology. Therefore, the Company’s actuaries may give more weight to the
incurred loss development methodology for that particular accident quarter. As an accident quarter ages for that same product,
the actuary may gain more confidence in the paid loss development methodology and begin to give more weight to the paid loss
development methodology. The Company’s actuaries’ quarterly selections are summed by product and/or coverage levels to
create the actuarial indication of the ultimate losses. More often than not, the actuarial indication for a particular product line
and accident quarter is most heavily weighted toward the incurred loss development methodology, particularly for short-tail
lines such as personal automobile insurance. Historically, the incurred loss development methodology has been more reliable in
predicting ultimate losses for short-tail lines, especially in the more recent accident quarters, compared with the paid loss
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development methodology. However, in some circumstances changes can occur which impact numerous variables, including,
but not limited to, those variables identified below that are difficult to quantify and/or impact the predictive value of prior
development patterns relied upon in the incurred loss development methodology and paid loss development methodology. In
those circumstances, the Company’s actuaries must make adjustments to these loss reserving estimation methodologies or use
additional generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies. In those circumstances, the Company’s actuaries, using their
professional judgment, may place more weight on the adjusted loss reserving estimation methodologies or other generally
accepted actuarial estimation methodologies until the newer development patterns fully emerge and the Company’s actuaries
can fully rely on the unadjusted loss reserving estimation methodologies. In the event of a wide variation among results
generated by the different projection methodologies, the Company’s actuaries further analyze the data using additional
techniques.

In estimating reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many
variables that are difficult to quantify, such as:

»  Changes in the level of minimum case reserves, and the automatic aging of those minimum case reserves;

»  Changes to claims practices, including, but not limited to, changes in the reporting and impact of large losses, timing
of reported claims, adequacy of case reserves, implementation of new systems for handling claims, turnover of claims
department staffs, timing and depth of the audit review of claims handling procedures;

»  Changes in underwriting practices;

*  Changes in the mix of business by state, class and policy limit within product line;

*  Growth in new lines of business;

»  Changes in the attachment points of the Company’s reinsurance programs;

*  Medical costs, including, but not limited to, the ability to assess the extent of injuries and the impact of inflation;

*  Repair costs, including, but not limited to, the impact of inflation and the availability of labor and materials;

+  Changes in the judicial environment, including, but not limited to, the interpretation of policy provisions, the impact of
jury awards and changes in case law; and

»  Changes in state regulatory requirements.

A change in any one or more of the foregoing factors is likely to result in a projected ultimate net loss and LAE that is different
from the previously estimated reserve and/or previous frequency and severity trends. Such changes in estimates may be
material.

For example, the Company’s actuaries review frequency (number of claims per policy or exposure), severity (dollars of loss per
claim) and average premium (dollars of premium per exposure). Actual frequency and severity experienced will vary depending
on changes in mix by class of insured risk. Similarly, the actual frequency and rate of recovery from reinsurance will vary
depending on changes in the attachment point for reinsurance. In particular, in periods of high growth or expansion into new
markets, there may be additional uncertainty in estimating the ultimate losses and LAE. The contributing factors of this
potential risk are changes in the Company’s mix by policy limit and mix of business by state or jurisdiction.

Actuaries use historical experience and trends as predictors of how losses and LAE will emerge over time. However, historical
experience may not necessarily be indicative of how actual losses and LAE will emerge. Changes in case reserve adequacy,
changes in minimum case reserves and changes in internal claims handling procedures could impact the timing and recognition
of incurred claims and produce an estimate that is either too high or too low if not adjusted for by the actuary. For example, if,
due to changes in claims handling procedures, actual claims are settled more rapidly than they were settled historically, the
estimate produced by the paid loss development methodology would tend to be overstated if the actuary did not identify and
adjust for the impact of the changes in claims handling procedures. Similarly, if, due to changes in claims handling procedures,
actual claim reserves are set at levels higher than past experience, the estimate produced by the incurred loss development
methodology would tend to be overstated if the actuary did not identify and adjust for the impact of the changes in claims
handling procedures.

The final step in the quarterly loss and LAE reserving process involves a comprehensive review of the actuarial indications by
the Company’s corporate actuary and corporate management who apply their collective judgment and determine the appropriate
estimated level of reserves to record. Numerous factors are considered in this determination process, including, but not limited
to, the assessed reliability of key loss trends and assumptions that may be significantly influencing the current actuarial
indications, changes in claim handling practices or other changes that affect the timing of payment or development patterns,
changes in the mix of business, the maturity of the accident year, pertinent trends observed over the recent past, the level of
volatility within a particular line of business, the improvement or deterioration of actuarial indications in the current period as
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compared to prior periods, and the amount of reserves related to third party pools for which the Company does not have access
to the underlying data and, accordingly, relies on calculations provided by such pools.

Estimated Variability of Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves

The Company’s goal is to ensure that its total reserves for property and casualty insurance losses and LAE are adequate to cover
all costs, while sustaining minimal variation from the time reserves for losses and LAE are initially estimated until losses and
LAE are fully developed. Changes in the Company’s estimates of these losses and LAE over time, also referred to as
“development,” will occur and may be material. Favorable development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated
Financial Statements when the Company decreases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in an increase
in net income in the period recognized, whereas adverse development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial
Statements when the Company increases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in a decrease in net
income. Development for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, was:

Favorable (Adverse) Development
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Continuing Operations:
Property & Casualty Insurance:

Personal Automobile INSUIANCE ............cveeveveevieeieeieteeteeete ettt ettt eseneeaeas $ 316 $§ 301 $ (2.1

HOMEOWNET'S INSUTANCE ......cvieeiiieeiieiie ettt ettt e s et e et eesbe e e ebeenseesseeneenns 14.8 20.1 11.7

Commercial Automobile INSUTANCE .......cc.evviririiriiiieiieieeeeeee e 2.6 3.0 12.6

Other Personal LANES .......c..ccuiiiiieiiieiieciieeieeee sttt ettt aeesaeesbeensaesbeeseenes 5.4 4.8 2.7

Life & Health Insurance:

PLOPETLY ..ttt ettt b ettt ettt et ettt et nt et et eneenean 0.9 1.8 0.3
Total Favorable Development from Continuing Operations, Net..........cccvevvevierienieniennenns 53.5 59.8 25.2
DiScONtINUEd OPETALIONS.......ecvirvierieiertieiieieterteettetete st eeetestesseeseessesseeseensensesseeseensessesseeneens 3.6 4.8 6.3

Total Favorable Development, Net $ 571 $ 646 $§ 315
See MD&A, “Loss and LAE Reserve Development,” “Property & Casualty Insurance,” and “Life & Health Insurance,” for
further information on development reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Although development will emerge in all of the Company’s product lines, development in the Company’s personal automobile
insurance product line could have the most significant impact due to the relative size of its loss and LAE reserves. To further
illustrate the sensitivity of the Company’s reserves for personal automobile insurance losses and LAE to changes in the
cumulative development factors, for each quarterly evaluation point the Company’s actuaries calculated the variability of
cumulative development factors observed in the incurred loss development methodology using one standard deviation. The
Company believes that one standard deviation of variability is a reasonably likely scenario to measure variability for its loss and
LAE reserves under the incurred development method for personal automobile insurance. Assuming that the Company’s
personal automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves were based solely on the incurred loss development methodology and the
variability in the cumulative development factors occurred within one standard deviation, the Company estimates that the
Company’s personal automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves could have varied by $57.2 million in either direction at
December 31, 2014 for all accident years combined under this scenario. In addition to the factors described above, other factors
may also impact loss reserve development in future periods. These factors include governmental actions, including court
decisions interpreting existing laws, regulations or policy provisions, developments related to insurance policy claims and
coverage issues, adverse or favorable outcomes in pending claims litigation, the number and severity of insurance claims, the
impact of inflation on insurance claims and the impact of required participation in windpools and joint underwriting
associations and residual market assessments. Although the Company’s actuaries do not make specific numerical assumptions
about these factors, changes in these factors from past patterns will impact historical loss development factors and, in turn,
future loss reserve development. Significant favorable changes in one or more factors will lead to favorable future loss reserve
development, which could result in the actual loss developing closer to, or even below, the lower end of the Company’s
estimated reserve variability. Significant unfavorable changes in one or more factors will lead to unfavorable loss reserve
development, which could result in the actual loss developing closer to, or even above, the higher end of the Company’s
estimated reserve variability. Accordingly, due to these factors and the other factors enumerated throughout the MD&A and the
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inherent limitations of the loss reserving estimation methodologies, the estimated and illustrated reserve variability may not
necessarily be indicative of the Company’s future reserve variability, which could ultimately be greater than the estimated and
illustrated variability. In addition, as previously noted, development will emerge in all of the Company’s product lines over
time. Accordingly, the Company’s future reserve variability could ultimately be greater than the illustrated variability.
Additional information pertaining to the estimation of, and development of, the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves is contained in Item 1 of Part I of this 2014 Annual Report under the heading “Property and Casualty Loss and Loss
Adjustment Expense Reserves.”

Goodwill Recoverability

While the Company believes that none of its reporting units with material Goodwill are at risk of failing step one of the
goodwill impairment test, the process of determining whether or not an asset, such as Goodwill, is impaired or recoverable
relies on projections of future cash flows, operating results and market conditions. Such projections are inherently uncertain
and, accordingly, actual future cash flows may differ materially from projected cash flows. In evaluating the recoverability of
Goodwill, the Company performs a discounted cash flow analysis for each of the Company’s reporting units carrying Goodwill.
The discounted cash value may be different from the fair value that would result from an actual transaction between a willing
buyer and a willing seller. Such analyses are particularly sensitive to changes in discount rates and investment rates. Changes to
these rates might result in material changes in the valuation and determination of the recoverability of Goodwill. For example,
an increase in the rate used to discount cash flows will decrease the discounted cash value. There is likely to be a similar, but
not necessarily as large as, increase in the investment rate used to project the cash flows resulting from investment income
earned on the Company’s investments. Accordingly, an increase in the investment rate would increase the discounted cash
value.

Pension Benefit Obligations

The process of estimating the Company’s pension benefit obligations and pension benefit costs is inherently uncertain and the
actual cost of benefits may vary materially from the estimates recorded. These liabilities are particularly volatile due to their
long-term nature and are based on several assumptions. The main assumptions used in the valuation of the Company’s pension
benefit obligations and pension costs are:

»  Estimated mortality of the participants and beneficiaries eligible for benefits;

+  Estimated expected long-term rates of returns on investments;

*  Estimated compensation increases;

*  Estimated employee turnover; and

»  Estimated rate used to discount the expected benefit payment to a present value.

A change in any one or more of these assumptions is likely to result in a projected benefit obligation or pension cost that differs
from the actuarial estimates at December 31, 2014. Such changes in estimates may be material. For example, a one—percentage
point decrease in the Company’s estimated discount rate would increase the pension benefit obligation at December 31, 2014 by
$100.1 million, while a one—percentage point increase in the rate would decrease the pension benefit obligation at

December 31, 2014 by $85.7 million. A one—percentage point decrease in the Company’s estimated long-term rate of return on
plan assets would increase the pension expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 by $5.0 million, while a one—percentage
point increase in the rate would decrease pension expense by $5.0 million for the same period.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Except for rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws and a limited number of
grandfathered standards, the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) is the sole source of authoritative GAAP
recognized by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) that is applicable to the Company. The FASB issues
Accounting Standards Updates (“ASUs”) to amend the authoritative literature in ASC.

All recently issued accounting pronouncements with effective dates prior to January 1, 2015 have been adopted by the
Company. There were no adoptions in 2014 that had a material impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements. All other
recently issued accounting pronouncements with effective dates after December 31, 2014 are not expected to have a material
impact on the Company.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Quantitative Information About Market Risk

The Company’s consolidated balance sheets include four types of financial instruments subject to the material market risk
disclosures required by the SEC:

Investments in Fixed Maturities;
Investments in Equity Securities;
Fair Value Option Investments; and
Debt.

bl S

Investments in Fixed Maturities and Debt are subject to material interest rate risk. The Company’s Investments in Equity
Securities include common and preferred stocks and, accordingly, are subject to material equity price risk and interest rate risk,
respectively. The Company’s Fair Value Option Investments include hedge funds that are subject to material equity price risk.

For purposes of this disclosure, market risk sensitive financial instruments are divided into two categories: financial instruments
acquired for trading purposes and financial instruments acquired for purposes other than trading. The Company’s market risk
sensitive financial instruments are generally classified as held for purposes other than trading. The Company has no significant
holdings of financial instruments acquired for trading purposes. The Company has no significant holdings of derivatives.

The Company measures its sensitivity to market risk by evaluating the change in its financial assets and liabilities relative to
fluctuations in interest rates and equity prices. The evaluation is made using instantaneous changes in interest rates and equity
prices on a static balance sheet to determine the effect such changes would have on the Company’s market value at risk and the
resulting pre-tax effect on Shareholders’ Equity. The changes chosen represent the Company’s view of adverse changes which
are reasonably possible over a one-year period. The selection of the changes chosen should not be construed as the Company’s
prediction of future market events, but rather an illustration of the impact of such possible events.

For the interest rate sensitivity analysis presented below, the Company assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100
basis points in the yield curve at both December 31, 2014 and 2013 for Investments in Fixed Maturities. Such 100 basis point
increase in the yield curve may not necessarily result in a corresponding 100 basis point increase in the interest rate for all
investments in fixed maturities. For example, a 100 basis point increase in the yield curve for risk-free, taxable investments in
fixed maturities may not result in a 100 basis point increase for tax-exempt investments in fixed maturities. For Investments in
Fixed Maturities, the Company also anticipated changes in cash flows due to changes in the likelihood that investments would
be called or prepaid prior to their contractual maturity. All other variables were held constant. For preferred stock equity
securities, the Company assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100 basis points in market interest rates from their
levels at both December 31, 2014 and 2013. All other variables were held constant. For Debt, the Company assumed an adverse
and instantaneous decrease of 100 basis points in market interest rates from their levels at December 31, 2014 and 2013. All
other variables were held constant. The Company measured equity price sensitivity assuming an adverse and instantaneous 30%
decrease in the Standard and Poor’s Stock Index (the “S&P 500”) from its level at December 31, 2014 and 2013, with all other
variables held constant. The Company’s investments in common stock equity securities were correlated with the S&P 500 using
the portfolio’s weighted-average beta of 1.00 and 0.94 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Beta measures a stock’s
relative volatility in relation to the rest of the stock market, with the S&P 500 having a beta coefficient of 1.00. The common
stock portfolio’s weighted-average beta was calculated using each security’s beta for the five-year periods ended December 31,
2014 and 2013, and weighted on the fair value of such securities at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. For equity
securities without observable market inputs, the Company assumed a beta of 1.00 at December 31, 2014 and 2013. The
Company’s Fair Value Option Investments were correlated with the S&P 500 using such portfolio’s weighted-average beta of
0.16 at December 31, 2014, which was calculated for each hedge fund in the portfolio and weighted on the respective fair value
of each of the hedge funds.
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Quantitative Information About Market Risk (Continued)

The estimated adverse effects on the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2014 using these
assumptions were:

Pro Forma Increase (Decrease)

Interest Equity Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Rate Risk Price Risk Market Risk
ASSETS
Investments in Fixed Maturities. ..........cccoooveeeeeieeiieee e $ 47776 $ (317.5) $ — $ (3175
Investments in Equity Securities.... 632.2 9.1 (153.4) (162.5)
Fair Value Option INVEStMENtS.........cccveriiiiieiieiieieeiceieeiee e 53.3 — (2.6) (2.6)
LIABILITIES
DIEDE ittt e e et et na e teeeneenes $ 8044 § 228 § — 8 22.8

The estimated adverse effects on the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2013 using these
assumptions were:

Pro Forma Increase (Decrease)

Interest Equity Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Rate Risk Price Risk Market Risk
ASSETS
Investments in Fixed Maturiti€s. ...........cooveirveveiereriiereeieeeseseiesereesenenens $ 45750 $ (300.0) § — $ (300.0)
Investments in EqQUity SECUTTLIES........c.eeieriiriiriiieieriieeeeseeee e 598.5 (13.0) (119.7) (132.7)
LIABILITIES
DDttt $§ 667.1 $ 174§ — 17.4

The market risk sensitivity analysis assumes that the composition of the Company’s interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities,
including, but not limited to, credit quality, and the equity price sensitive assets existing at the beginning of the period remains
constant over the period being measured. It also assumes that a particular change in interest rates is uniform across the yield
curve regardless of the time to maturity. Interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of
changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag behind changes in market interest rates. Also, any
future correlation, either in the near term or the long term, between the Company’s common stock equity securities and fair
value option portfolios and the S&P 500 may differ from the historical correlation as represented by the weighted-average
historical beta of the common stock equity securities and fair value option portfolios. Accordingly, the market risk sensitivity
analysis may not be indicative of, is not intended to provide, and does not provide, a precise forecast of the effect of changes of
market rates on the Company’s income or shareholders’ equity. Further, the computations do not contemplate any actions the
Company may undertake in response to changes in interest rates or equity prices.

To the extent that any adverse 100 basis point change occurs in increments over a period of time instead of instantaneously, the
adverse impact on fair values would be partially mitigated because some of the underlying financial instruments would have
matured. For example, proceeds from any maturing assets could be reinvested and any new liabilities would be incurred at the
then current interest rates.

Qualitative Information About Market Risk

Market risk is a broad term related to economic losses due to adverse changes in the fair value of a financial instrument and is
inherent to all financial instruments. SEC disclosure rules focus on only one element of market risk—price risk. Price risk
relates to changes in the level of prices due to changes in interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates or other factors
that relate to market volatility of the rate, index, or price underlying the financial instrument. The Company’s primary market
risk exposures are to changes in interest rates and equity prices.

The Company manages its interest rate exposures with respect to Investments in Fixed Maturities by investing primarily in
investment-grade securities of moderate effective duration.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2014 2013
Assets:
Investments:
Fixed Maturities at Fair Value (Amortized Cost: 2014 - $4,341.7; 2013 - $4,370.5)................ $ 4,777.6 $ 4,575.0
Equity Securities at Fair Value (Cost: 2014 - $561.5; 2013 - $530.0).....cccoeeieieirieieeeeeen 632.2 598.5
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus Cumulative Undistributed
BAITUIEZS ...ttt ettt ettt et e st et e teesb et e e aeesaenb e b e eaeeatenbeebeeteenseabeereenaens 184.8 245.1
Fair Value Option INVESIMENLS........c.eerieriiriieieiesieiieieie sttt ese et eaesaeeseensessesreenaens 53.3 —
Short-term Investments at Cost which Approximates Fair Value...........ccccoceveneniiiiencncnnennn. 342.2 284.7
Other INVESTMENLS ......c.viiiiiiieeieiiitieteiesie ettt ettt ettt et e s teese e b e saeeseesaensesseeseessesesreessenns 449.6 448.0
TOtal INVESTMEILS. ......eiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt ete e et e e e e e etaeeeteeeeaaeeeeaseeenaeeeeaeeeenneseeneeeenes 6,439.7 6,151.3
L7 1Y TSRS 76.1 66.5
Receivables from POLICYNOIAETS .........cveiviiiiiiieieiceiccieee et 295.3 331.6
Other RECEIVADIES .......eouiiiiiieiieieie sttt ettt sttt ettt ebesbeeae et enbesbeeneenes 187.0 193.1
Deferred Policy ACQUISIHION COSES......c.ccviivierieieiietietieieie ettt et steereeseeeseeteess e s esseeaeereessesesaeessenns 303.3 302.9
GOOAWILL ...ttt ettt ettt e e et e e st e st e besseesae s e s s e eseesaensesseeseensensesseassenes 311.8 311.8
Deferred INCOME TaX ASSELS......ccueriiiiiieiertietieieie ettt ettt ettete bttt esaestesbe e st eeensesseeneensensesseeneens — 31.8
OtHET ASSEES...euiiuiiitietieiteteete ettt ettt et et et e e te et e s et e eseesbeseebeeseessesbeeseessesbassaessessessesseeseessessesaeessenns 220.2 267.4
TOLAL ASSEES. ...ttt et ettt et e e ettt ettt $ 7,8334 $ 7,656.4
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:
Insurance Reserves:
Life and HEealth .........cooooiiiiiieee oottt e $ 3,273.7 $ 3,217.5
Property and CaSUAILY .........ccveiiiiiieeieieieeteee ettt ettt ettt ettt et eas s e eteeaeessesvesteensans 733.9 843.5
Total INSUIANCE RESEIVES ......coiuviiieiii ittt eae e e eaa e e eaae e e e aaeeeaeeeenaeeenes 4,007.6 4,061.0
UNEANEd PrOMIUINS. ... oouieiiiiitieiieti ettt sttt ettt e e st e sbeese e esesaeeseensensesseennans 536.9 598.9
Liabilities for INCOME TaAXES ......c.ciiiiiiiiiiiietieieieeie ettt ettt ettt eb et eas e eeaeete s e sesreessenns 36.5 8.3
Debt at Amortized Cost (Fair Value: 2014 - $804.4; 2013 - $667.1)...c.coveeirieiieeeieeeeeeeeene 752.1 606.9
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities..........cccoocvieiiiiiiiiiiiciiciccececeeee e 409.6 329.8
TOtAl LIADIIIEIES . ...ceouveeiiieie ettt ettt et e et e e e e ettt e eaaeeeaaeeeeaaeeenaseesaneesnnneeanaeeenns 5,742.7 5,604.9
Shareholders’ Equity:
Common Stock, $0.10 Par Value Per Share, 100 Million Shares Authorized; 52,418,246
Shares Issued and Outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 55,653,437 Shares Issued and
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 ..ot 5.2 5.6
Paid-in CaPIAl ....oovieeieiieiiciceet ettt ettt ettt s te s et e e te st e b beeteensenbeereenaens 660.1 694.8
Retained Earmings .......ccoooviiiiieiiiiiieiieieeseeeee ettt sttt ettt st ettt sbeeneens 1,202.7 1,215.8
Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME...........cccuevviiiiiieiiiiicieiciecie e 222.7 135.3
Total Shareholders” EQUILY........cccoiiiiiieriiiiieieieieeteeteeteie ettt eseese e esesneeneenes 2,090.7 2,051.5
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ EQUItY..........cccvoiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeie et $ 7,8334 $ 7,656.4

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

Revenues:
Earned PIeMIUIMS ........ooiiiiiiiiiieieie ettt
Net Investment INCOME............ccuiiiriiiiiiiiiiiiee e
Other INCOMIE ... .ottt ettt a e s e e e s
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESTMENTS ........cc.eveieiririeieineneecceeeceeeeeees
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment LOSSES..........ccevereeveeriirieieienie e
Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.........c..coceceevvencnnene.
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............ccccceevevvivieeieienieeieeieieecveeveene
TOtAl REVEIUCS .....euetiiiieiei ettt ettt ee ettt ea e ne e
Expenses:
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses.................
INSUrANCe EXPEINSES.......eiiiiiiiiiieitie ettt e
Write-off Of LONg-11Ved ASSEL........coiiiiiiiieiieie ettt
Interest and Other EXPENSES ........c.ocieieieriiiiieiieiiiie ettt be e
TOtAl EXPEIISES....evievieiiitieiieieite ettt ettt ettt et e ettt estebesseestensesseeseeneensensesseensensesseenaans
Income from Continuing Operations before Income TaXes .........ccocevvevierierieninienieneiieens
INCOME TaAX EXPEINISE......iiiieiieiiieeiie ettt ee e e e e e et eseeseeneens
Income from Continuing OPEIatioNS...........ecuerverueeierieriieiieienieeieeeeseesteereeteseessesseeseessesreenens
Income from Discontinued OPErations .............cceecvevvirrierieieeireereeiesieereereeeesre e ereeeesreereeseens
INEEINCOIMIE ...ttt ettt sb e b et

Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share:

For The Years Ended December 31,

2014

2013

2012

$1,862.2 $2,0258 §2,107.1

$ 212
$ 212

s_0%

3.81

3.80

0.96

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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309.1 314.7 295.9
1.4 0.8 0.8

39.1 99.1 65.4
(15.2) (15.8) (7.2)
— 1.9 0.3
(15.2) (13.9) (6.9)
2,196.6 24265 24623
12617 13572 1,582.1
628.4 654.4 672.3
54.6 — —
91.7 100.5 85.5
2,036.4 21121 23399
160.2 314.4 122.4
(47.6) (99.9) (30.6)
112.6 2145 91.8
1.9 3.2 11.6

$ 1145 § 2177 $ 1034
$ 208 § 375 $ 155
S 208§ 374 8 154

1.75

1.74

0.96



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For The Years Ended December 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012

INEEITICOMIE ..o ettt ettt e e e e e et et e e et e e e et e eeeseeeaeens $ 1145 $ 217.7 $ 1034

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes:

Unrealized Holding Gains (LOSSES) ....c..eveuiriieiieieiiiiiieieieste ettt aesre e ennas 234.6 (362.8) 96.7

Foreign Currency Translation AdjUStMENTS.........ccvervirieierieriieieieieeeeeesiesieseeeeeeie e eeeens (1.0) 0.2 1.6

Decrease (Increase) in Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs..........cccceeverueneene. (98.5) 86.6 (13.2)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes........c.ccceveeiecieniinieiecienieiiennns 135.1 (276.0) 85.1
Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (EXpense)........coccveveeevierieeieiienienenieiene s 47.7) 98.6 (30.4)
Other Comprehensive INCOME (LLOSS)......cveieruiiuieieiiiti ettt ettt esseeve e esnens 87.4 (177.4) 54.7
Total Comprehensive INCOME. ........c.ocveviiiieeiieieeieteceeeet et $ 2019 $ 403 § 158.1

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For The Years Ended December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Operating Activities:
INEE TICOIMIC .ttt ettt ettt se bt e e st eseebe e e st enesseneeneenes $ 1145 § 217.7 $ 1034
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities:
Decrease (Increase) in Deferred Policy Acquisition COStS.......c.eeeeveiereeneeienienieeeennnn, 0.4) 0.5 9.4
Amortization of Life VIF and P&C Customer Relationships ...........ccccevvevereierineniennns 7.2 8.3 8.0
Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments............c.cccceeuennn. 9.0) (26.4) 9.3)
Distribution of Accumulated Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability
INVESTMENLS ..ottt 21.7 15.4 15.4
Decrease in Value of Fair Value Option Investments reported in Investment Income... 0.7 — —
Amortization of Investment Securities and Depreciation of Investment Real Estate ..... 154 16.2 15.2
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS.........ccverierieriieiieieeie e 39.1) (99.1) (65.4)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings..........cccoeeevvevienenieienienenieieneseeennen 15.2 13.9 6.9
Gain on Sale of Portfolio of Automobile Loan Receivables...........ccceeeiiiiiiieeniieinennen. — — (12.9)
Benefit for Loan LOSSES.......ccueriiriiieieiieiieieienie ettt sttt ettt — — (2.0)
Depreciation of Property and EQUIPMENt ..........cccooerieririiniiieeneeeeieseeee e 16.0 17.4 15.3
Write-0ff Of Long-1Ived ASSEL.......cccveiirieiiiieieii ettt 54.6 — —
Decrease in Other ReCeIVADIES ......c..cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeee e 46.2 43.5 13.9
Decrease in INSurance RESEIVES .......ccuoviiririeiiniiiiieieieeie ettt s (54.7) (72.5) (1.1)
Decrease in Unearned PremitmS. .........ccovirieieriiinienienieeieeeseeie et (62.0) (52.0) (15.2)
Change 1N INCOME TAXES......cuerviriieieieieeieeiteiete ettt ettt et se e aesae et ensesbesreeneenes 11.2 57.9 (14.9)
Decrease in Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities. .......cccveovevererieiienenenienencneene (20.3) (54.8) (15.6)
ORET, NET ...ttt ettt ettt b ettt be e se e 16.4 36.1 334
Net Cash Provided by Operating ACtiVItIES ........ccccevueieuirerieieirienicieeeeeeeeeeceeee e 133.6 122.1 65.7
Investing Activities:
Sales, Paydowns and Maturities of Fixed Maturities ...........ccceoveirenienieincnienieineneieene. 573.7 664.4 914.4
Purchases of FiXed MatUrities ........ccuevviririeriiniieieienie ettt st (553.0) (744.5) (872.6)
Sales of EQUItY SECUITLIES.........couiieuiiiirtiieiieieeteeeieec ettt e 245.3 182.1 70.8
Purchases of EQUILY SECUTITHES ...ecvveieriiriieeieiecii ettt st s (235.2) (213.4) (137.7)
Acquisition and Improvements of Investment Real Estate ...........ccccocevvieveneninieneninienns 2.1) (5.4) (5.5)
Sales of Investment Real EStAte .........cccooeiiiriirieiiiiiceceee e 0.9 102.7 6.0
Sales of and Return of Investment of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments......... 55.2 313 56.0
Acquisitions of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments ...........ccoceveeeeceerieneneennenn. 21.4) (20.5) (31.0)
Sales of Fair Value Option INVESIMENES..........ccirieiiriiriieieiesieeieieieeeeee e 6.9 — —
Purchases of Fair Value Option INVEStMENTS.........ccceeieierieiieieienieeieieiesie e (60.9) — —
Decrease (Increase) in Short-term INVEStMENLtS .........ccoeevieiiieiiiiieeiieie e (63.9) 41.8 (80.0)
Receipts from Automobile Loan Receivables.........coovevieriiiiienieniicieieiecieeeeeee e — — 2.0
Net Proceeds from Sale of Portfolio of Automobile Loan Receivables...........c.cccecerueunenene. — — 16.7
Disposition of Business, Net of Cash DiSpoSed.........ccccueviiiiienieniiieieieseeeeeeese e 8.9 3.8 —
Increase in Other INVESTMENTS .......ccuiiiiiiiieiieie ettt eae e ebeeseesae e e e (8.0) 9.1) (12.4)
Purchase of Corporate-owned Life INSUTANCE .......cceeieieriiiieieierieceeeee e 33.5) — —
Acquisition of Software (11.3) (15.2) (26.5)
ORET, NET ..ttt ettt b et et s et et e e ne st e e enes (5.9) (13.2) (6.4)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by INVeSting ACHVILIES .....ecvevveeieriiriieiieieriesieeieiesie e (104.3) 4.8 (106.2)
Financing Activities:
Net Proceeds from Issuance of Subordinated Debentures ............cccoceeevvccincninicincncnennn. 144.0 — —
Repayments O DEDE.......cc.oviiieiiiiciieieiecteeteee ettt sttt ere e — (5.5) —
Common StOCK REPUICRASES . ......ccviiuiriieieiiitieiieiete ettt s (114.0) (100.4) (60.7)
Dividends and Dividend Equivalents Paid...........cccoecvevieriiiieienieneceeieeceeeeeee e (51.8) (54.9) (56.9)
Cash EXercise of StOCK OPtIONS ......c.eeuieieriiriieiieieieeieeieie sttt sttt s 0.5 1.7 1.3
(11 113 0 N[ RPN 1.6 2.4 1.9
Net Cash Used by FINancing ACHIVILIES ......cc.evveeieierieriieiieierie ittt eteie st enee e seeennens (19.7) (156.7) (114.4)
Increase (Decrease) N CaASN .......cuieieieiiiieieieieete ettt e st e se s sbeseeessenes 9.6 (29.8) (154.9)
Cash, Be@INNing Of Y AT ........cceririiieieiieiieieieste ettt ettt s eneenes 66.5 96.3 251.2
Cash, ENA OF YEAL......oiiiiii ittt eaa e et e e et e s eaeeesnaeeeeaneeenaeeenns $ 761 $§ 665 $§ 963

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

For The Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Accumulated
Number Other Total

DOLLARS AND SHARES IN MILLIONS, of Common Paid-in  Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS Shares Stock Capital  Earnings Income Equity
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2011 ........................ 603 $ 6.0 $ 7439 §$ 1,108.7 $ 2580 $ 2,116.6
Net INCOME ..o — — — 103.4 — 103.4
Other Comprehensive Income (Note 11) .......ccocueeen. — — — — 54.7 54.7
Cash Dividends to Shareholders ($0.96 per share) .... — — — (56.9) — (56.9)
Repurchases of Common Stock ...........ccccccceviurcuane. (2.0 (0.2) (24.9) (35.6) — (60.7)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (Note 9)................ — — 5.8 — — 5.8
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(NOE 9)...icccc e 0.2 — 0.2 (1.4) — (1.2)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2012 ........................ 585 § 58 $§ 7250 $ 1,1182 $ 3127 $ 2,161.7
Net INCOmE ... — — — 217.7 — 217.7
Other Comprehensive Loss (Note 11)......cccccvevieiennee — — — — (177.4) (177.4)
Cash Dividends to Shareholders ($0.96 per share) .... — — — (54.9) — (54.9)
Repurchases of Common Stock .........ccccovveerennnncne. (3.0) 0.2) (36.8) (63.4) — (100.4)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (Note 9)................ — — 5.5 — — 55
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(NOE 9)...ccc e 0.2 — 1.1 (1.8) — 0.7)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2013 ........................ 557 § 56 $§ 6948 §$ 1,2158 $ 1353 $ 2,051.5
Net INCOmME ..o — — — 114.5 — 114.5
Other Comprehensive Income (Note 11) ......ceueee. — — — — 87.4 87.4
Cash Dividends and Dividend Equivalents to

Shareholders ($0.96 per share)............cccccoco... — — — (51.8) — (51.8)
Repurchases of Common Stock .........cccoeeveviereniennnne 3.2) 0.4) (40.2) (74.9) — (115.5)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (Note 9)................ — — 6.4 — — 6.4
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(NOE 9)..cic e (0.1) — (0.9) (0.9) — (1.8)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2014 ........................ 524 § 52 $ 660.1 $ 1,202.7 § 2227 $ 2,090.7

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES

The Consolidated Financial Statements included herein have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of Kemper Corporation (“Kemper”) and its subsidiaries
(individually and collectively referred to herein as the “Company”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated.

In the first quarter of 2014, the Company realigned its property and casualty insurance businesses. As a result of the
realignment, the property and casualty insurance businesses are being reported as a single business segment named the Property
& Casualty Insurance segment. The Company has reclassified certain prior-year amounts in its segment results in the
Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to the current year presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could materially differ from
those estimates and assumptions.

The fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities, Investments in Equity Securities, Fair Value Option
Investments, Short-term Investments, Trading Securities and Debt are estimated using a hierarchal framework which prioritizes
and ranks market price observability. The carrying amounts reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets approximate fair value
for Cash, Short-term Investments and certain other assets and other liabilities because of their short-term nature. The actual
value at which financial instruments could actually be sold or settled with a willing buyer or seller may differ from estimated
fair values depending on a number of factors, including, but not limited to, current and future economic conditions, the quantity
sold or settled, the presence of an active market and the availability of a willing buyer or seller.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for losses and LAE for property and casualty insurance is inherently
uncertain, and the actual ultimate net cost of known and unknown claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts
reserved. The reserving process is particularly imprecise for claims involving long-tailed exposures, which may not be
discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended. Management considers a variety of factors,
including, but not limited to, past claims experience, current claim trends and relevant legal, economic and social conditions, in
estimating reserves. A change in any one or more factors is likely to result in the ultimate net claim costs to differ from the
estimated reserve. Changes in such estimates may be material and would be recognized in the Consolidated Financial
Statements when such estimates change.

The process of determining whether an asset is impaired or recoverable relies on projections of future cash flows, operating
results and market conditions. Projections are inherently uncertain, and, accordingly, actual future cash flows may differ
materially from projected cash flows. As a result, the Company’s assessment of the impairment of long-lived assets is
susceptible to the risk inherent in making such projections.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES
Investments

Investments in Fixed Maturities include bonds, notes and redeemable preferred stocks. Investments in Fixed Maturities are
classified as available for sale and reported at fair value. Net Investment Income, including amortization of purchased
premiums and accretion of market discounts, on Investments in Fixed Maturities is recognized as interest over the period that it
is earned using the effective yield method.

Investments in Equity Securities include common and non-redeemable preferred stocks and other equity interests and are
reported at fair value. Investments in common and non-redeemable preferred stocks with readily determinable fair values are
classified as available for sale. Dividend income on investments in common and non-redeemable preferred stocks is recognized
on the ex-dividend date. Other equity interests primarily consist of exchange traded funds and interests in limited liability
companies and limited partnerships in which the Company’s interests are deemed minor. The Company’s share of distributed
earnings from other equity interests is recognized as dividend income when received.

Unrealized appreciation or depreciation, net of applicable deferred income taxes, on fixed maturities and equity securities
classified as available for sale is reported in AOCI included in Shareholders’ Equity.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments include investments in limited liability investment companies and limited
partnerships in which the Company’s interests are not deemed minor and are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting.

Fair Value Option Investments include investments in certain hedge funds, which the Company has elected the fair value option
(“FVO”) to account for such investments. Under the FVO method of accounting, the Company reports changes in the fair value
of such investments in Net Investment Income in the Consolidated Statement of Income. The hedge funds are designed to
preserve liquidity, while providing higher returns than Kemper would otherwise expect to earn had it invested in other short-
term investments.

Short-term Investments include fixed maturities that mature within one year from the date of purchase, U.S. Treasury bills,
money market mutual funds and repurchase agreements. Short-term Investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair
value.

Other Investments primarily include loans to policyholders and real estate. Loans to policyholders are carried at unpaid
principal balance. Real estate is carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Real estate is depreciated over the estimated
useful life of the asset using the straight-line method of depreciation. Real estate is evaluated for impairment when events or
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss on real estate is recognized when the
carrying value exceeds the sum of undiscounted projected future cash flows as well as the fair value, or, in the case of a
property classified as held for sale, when the carrying value exceeds the fair value, net of costs to sell.

Gains and losses on sales of investments are computed on the specific identification method and are reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period in which the sales occur. The Company regularly reviews its investment
portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment is other than temporary. Losses are computed
on the specific identification method and reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the period that the decline is
determined to be other than temporary. The portion of an impairment of an investment in a fixed maturity attributed to a credit
loss is reported in Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings in the Consolidated Statement of Income, with the portion of
the impairment that is not attributed to a credit loss reported in AOCI.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses a hierarchal framework which prioritizes and ranks the market observability of inputs used in fair value
measurements. Market price observability is affected by a number of factors, including the type of asset or liability and the
characteristics specific to the asset or liability being measured. Assets and liabilities with readily available, active, quoted
market prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally are deemed to have a higher degree
of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value. The Company classifies the inputs
used to measure fair value into one of three levels as follows:

* Level 1 — Quoted prices in an active market for identical assets or liabilities;

» Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level 1, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, and model-derived prices whose
inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are observable; and

*  Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability being measured.

Observable inputs are based on market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs are based on the
Company’s market assumptions. Unobservable inputs require significant management judgment or estimation. In some cases,
the inputs used to measure an asset or liability may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair
value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level of input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Such determination requires significant management judgment. However, in accordance
with GAAP, the Company is not permitted to use management judgment to adjust quoted market prices in an active market.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Costs directly associated with the successful acquisition of business, principally commissions and certain premium taxes and
policy issuance costs, are deferred. Costs deferred on property and casualty insurance contracts and short duration health
insurance contracts are amortized over the period in which premiums are earned. Costs deferred on traditional life insurance
products and other long-duration insurance contracts are primarily amortized over the anticipated premium-paying period of the
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)

related policies in proportion to the ratio of the annual premiums to the total premiums anticipated, which is estimated using the
same assumptions used in calculating policy reserves.

Goodwill

The cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of net assets acquired is reported as Goodwill. Goodwill is not amortized, but
rather is tested annually for recoverability or when certain triggering events require testing.

Insurance Reserves

Reserves for losses and LAE on property and casualty insurance coverage and health insurance coverage represent the
estimated claim cost and loss adjustment expense necessary to cover the ultimate net cost of investigating and settling all losses
incurred and unpaid. Such estimates are based on individual case estimates for reported claims and estimates for incurred but
not reported (“IBNR”) losses. These estimates are adjusted in the aggregate for ultimate loss expectations based on historical
experience patterns and current economic trends, with any change in the estimated ultimate liabilities being reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period of change. Changes in such estimates may be material.

For traditional life insurance products, the reserves for future policy benefits are estimated on the net level premium method
using assumptions as of the issue date for mortality, interest, policy lapses and expenses, including provisions for adverse
mortality. These assumptions vary by such characteristics as plan, age at issue and policy duration. Mortality assumptions are
based on the Company’s historical experience and industry standards. Interest rate assumptions principally range from 3% to
7%. Lapse rate assumptions are based on actual and industry experience. Insurance Reserves for life insurance products also
includes an estimate of the Company’s liability for unpaid life insurance claims and claims adjustment expenses, which
includes an estimate for IBNR life insurance claims. Except when required by applicable law, the Company does not utilize a
database of reported deaths maintained by the Social Security Administration or a comparable database (a “Death Master File”)
in its operations, including to determine its IBNR liability for life insurance products. Instead of using such a database, the
Company calculates its IBNR liability for life insurance products using Company-specific historical information, which
includes analyzing average paid claims and the average lag between date of death and the date reported to the Company for
claims that due proof of death has been provided.

Other Receivables
Other Receivables primarily include reinsurance recoverables and accrued investment income.
Other Assets

Other Assets primarily include property and equipment, internal use software, insurance licenses acquired in business
combinations, the value of other intangible assets acquired, corporate-owned life insurance and prepaid expenses. Property and
equipment is depreciated over the useful lives of the assets, generally using the straight-line or double declining balance
methods of depreciation depending on the asset involved. Internal use software is primarily amortized over the useful life of the
asset using the straight-line method of amortization. Write-off of Long-lived Asset for the year ended December 31, 2014 was a
charge of $54.6 million to write off certain software that the Company determined that it was no longer probable that the
software would be fully implemented. Insurance licenses acquired in business combinations and other indefinite life intangibles
are not amortized, but rather tested periodically for recoverability. Insurance Expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013
includes a charge of $1.4 million to write down the value of insurance licenses acquired for one of Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries to its estimated fair value. Corporate-owned life insurance is reported at cash surrender value with changes due to
cost of insurance and investment experience reported in Other Income in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in life insurance in force acquired (“Life VIF”)
based on actuarial estimates of the present value of estimated net cash flows. Life VIF was $36.5 million and $41.2 million at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Life VIF is amortized using the effective interest method using interest rates
consistent with the rates in the underlying insurance contracts. The Company estimates that it will record Life VIF amortization,
net of interest, of $4.2 million in 2015, $3.7 million in 2016, $3.2 million in 2017, $2.9 million in 2018 and $2.4 million in
2019. The Company evaluates the Life VIF for recoverability annually.

The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in Property and Casualty Insurance Customer
Relationships Acquired (“P&C Customer Relationships™) based on the present value of estimated future cash flows from the
customer relationships acquired. P&C Customer Relationships was $13.3 million and $15.8 million at December 31, 2014 and
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2013, respectively. P&C Customer Relationships is amortized using the effective interest method. P&C Customer Relationships
is tested for recoverability using undiscounted projections of future cash flows and written down to estimated fair value if the
carrying value exceeds the sum of such projections of undiscounted cash flows.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities primarily include accrued salaries and commissions, pension benefits, postretirement
medical benefits and accrued taxes, licenses and fees.

Recognition of Earned Premiums and Related Expenses

Property and casualty insurance and short duration health insurance premiums are deferred when written and recognized and
earned ratably over the periods to which the premiums relate. Unearned Premiums represent the portion of the premiums
written related to the unexpired portion of policies in force which has been deferred and is reported as a liability. A premium
deficiency reserve is established if the sum of expected claim costs, claim adjustment expenses, unamortized deferred policy
acquisition costs and maintenance costs exceeds the related unearned premiums. For each business segment, the analysis is
performed at a product line level, namely automobile insurance, homeowners insurance and other insurance, which is consistent
with the manner in which the Company acquires, services and measures profitability. Anticipated investment income is
excluded from such analysis.

Traditional life insurance premiums are recognized as revenue when due. Policyholders’ benefits are associated with related
premiums to result in recognition of profits over the periods for which the benefits are provided using the net level premium
method.

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses include provisions for future policy benefits under
life and certain accident and health insurance contracts and provisions for reported claims, estimates for claims incurred but not
reported and loss adjustment expenses. Benefit payments in excess of policy account balances are expensed.

Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries reinsure certain risks above certain retention levels with
other insurance enterprises. These reinsurance agreements do not relieve Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries of their legal
obligations to the policyholder. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are included in Other Receivables.

Gains related to long-duration reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortized over the life of the underlying reinsured
policies. Losses related to long-duration reinsurance contracts are recognized immediately. Any gain or loss associated with
reinsurance agreements for which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries have been legally relieved of their obligations to the
policyholder is recognized in the period of relief.

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is maintained for the portion of deferred income tax assets that
the Company does not expect to recover. Increases in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets are recognized as
income tax expense. Decreases in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets are recognized as income tax benefit.
The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period in which
the change is enacted.

The Company reports a liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax positions taken, or expected to be
taken, in an income tax return. The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in
income tax expense.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

All recently issued accounting pronouncements with effective dates prior to January 1, 2015 have been adopted by the
Company. There were no adoptions in 2014 that had a material impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements. All other
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recently issued accounting pronouncements with effective dates after December 31, 2014 are not expected to have a material
impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

NOTE 3. INVESTMENTS

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2014 were:

Amortized Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.............cccceouee.e. $ 3152 § 323 § (2.0) $ 3455
States and Political SubAiViSIONS ..........c.cocuiiiiieiiieciceeeeeeeee e 1,352.5 126.4 1.8) 14771
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOTES ......cviieiuiiiiiieeiie e e 2,599.3 294.3 (as.1) 2,878.5
Redeemable Preferred StOCKS .......oevveriiiieieieiiciceeceeee e 5.9 0.8 — 6.7
Collateralized Loan ObBligations ...........ceceeverieriieierieneeieienieneeeeieseesieennens 64.9 0.3 (0.8) 64.4
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed..........ccooeiiereniriiineiiceeceeee 3.9 1.5 — 5.4
Investments in Fixed Maturities...........cocvevvievuieiieiiieie e $4341.7 $§ 4556 $ (19.7) $4,777.6

Included in the fair value of Mortgage and Asset-backed investments at December 31, 2014 are $3.9 million of collateralized
debt obligations, $1.3 million of non-governmental residential mortgage-backed securities and $0.2 million of other asset-
backed securities.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2013 were:

Gross Unrealized

Amortized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities............c..ccv...... $ 3511 $ 228 $§ (11.7) $§ 3622
States and Political SUDAIVISIONS ........c.cc.eviiieiiriiiiieieieieee e 1,327.4 53.8 (20.2) 1,361.0
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOTES .....ccuviiieeieieieecie ettt et e e e e e eenaea s 2,636.4 205.0 47.7)  2,793.7
Redeemable Preferred StOCKS .......ccovviiieieriiiieieiesieceeeeeeee e 6.6 0.8 — 7.4
Collateralized Loan Obligations ..........cceceevverireeienieneeieienienieeeeeesiesieennens 44.2 0.5 — 44.7
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed...........coeoiiireieiiineeieeeceee e 4.8 1.3 0.1) 6.0
Investments in Fixed Maturities. ...........cooveeveieieeeieiceeeeeeeee e eeneeeneas $43705 $ 2842 $ (79.7) $4,575.0

Included in the fair value of Mortgage and Asset-backed investments at December 31, 2013 are $4.6 million of collateralized
debt obligations, $1.2 million of non-governmental residential mortgage-backed securities and $0.2 million of other asset-
backed securities.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2014 by
contractual maturity were:

Amortized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Fair Value
DUE 1N ONE Y AT OF LLESS....ooeiiieieeeeeeee ettt ettt et e e e e e et e e ae e e e et e eeseeeseeeneeeneeeneeenneans $ 510 $§ 527
Due after One Year t0 FIVE YEAIS.......cc.voouiiiiiiieiiceiieeiccee ettt et ees 769.6 820.2
Due after FIVe Years t0 TN Y aIS.......ccuiiiiuieiitiieetie ettt ettt et e et e e e e etae et eeetaeeeeaeeeeraaeeeaeeeennee s 1,340.7 1,398.0
DI Y (1S Gl = (R 2 TR 1,979.4 2,294.3
Mortgage- and Asset-backed Securities Not Due at a Single Maturity Date...........ccceveverircienieneneennnne 201.0 2124
Investments 1IN FIXEA IMATUITTIES .......veviiiiieiee ettt e ettt e e et e e e et e e e e eaaaeeeseenaaeeeseenaaeeeeeneneeeeas $ 4,341.7 $ 4,777.6
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The expected maturities of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities may differ from the contractual maturities because
issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Investments in Mortgage-
and Asset-backed Securities Not Due at a Single Maturity Date at December 31, 2014 consisted of securities issued by the
Government National Mortgage Association with a fair value of $133.1 million, securities issued by the Federal National
Mortgage Association with a fair value of $9.2 million, securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation with
a fair value of $0.3 million and securities of other non-governmental issuers with a fair value of $69.8 million.

There were no unsettled purchases or sales of Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2014. There were no unsettled
purchases of Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2013. Other Receivables at December 31, 2013 includes a
receivable of $2.5 million primarily from sales of Investments in Fixed Maturities that settled in January 2014,

Gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities at December 31, 2014
were:

Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real EState............cccoovvieeiiiieiiiiiieceic e $ 85 § 52 § (1.0) $ 89.7
Other INAUSIIICS ....eevvveiieeeieeiie ettt ettt e st e st saeseaeesaeenseenneas 16.3 3.5 — 19.8
Common Stocks:
MANUTACTUTINZ ..ottt ettt ettt sttt eneas 43.4 14.9 (1.1) 57.2
Other INAUSIIIES .....ovveeeeeeeee ettt ee s 60.8 16.2 0.4) 76.6
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded FUnds..........cccoeouieiieiieiieieee e 195.2 8.2 0.7) 202.7
Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships.........c.cccccevevvennnne. 160.3 27.7 (1.8) 186.2
Investments in EQUIty SECUTTIES. .....c.cccvvuirieiiiriirieieiiiceieeeeeeeee e $ 5615 $ 757 $§ (5.0) § 632.2

Gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities at December 31, 2013
were:

Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate...........ccccoovevieiiniinininiienenceieencen $§ 854 § 29 § 25) $ 858
Other INAUSITIES ..vvevvevieeieieieeieeeeierte ettt saesre e nsesbesneennens 20.1 4.4 0.1) 24.4
Common Stocks:
MANUTACTUTINE ..ottt et e enb e et eebeeseenns 83.4 21.3 (0.1) 104.6
Other INAUSIIIES ...vvevvevieeieieie ettt st eneens 68.8 17.0 (0.9) 84.9
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........ccoeveiiiieieinieecee e 122.0 3.9 (1.0) 124.9
Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships.........c.cccccevcervennne. 150.3 25.2 (1.6) 173.9
Investments in EQUItY SECUTTEIES........cvevveriiieierieeieieiee et $ 5300 $§ 747 $ (6.2) $ 5985

71



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 3. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities at December 31, 2014 is
presented below.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUhOTTIEIES ... $ 249 § 0.7 $ 555 § 13) $ 804 $ (2.0)
States and Political Subdivisions ...........cccccueeunnee. 1.0 — 126.3 (1.8) 127.3 (1.8)
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOtes .........c.cccveeieeieeiciiceieeeen 250.4 5.1) 360.5 (10.0) 610.9 (15.1)
Collateralized Loan Obligations ....................... 51.2 0.7) 34 0.1) 54.6 (0.8)
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed................... — — 0.4 — 0.4 —
Total Fixed Maturities..........ccocveveeeeeereneneeieneeennes 327.5 (6.5) 546.1 (13.2) 873.6 (19.7)
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate................... 7.5 0.1) 12.1 0.9 19.6 (1.0)
Other IndUSHIES .....oovveieieiicieieecceee — — 0.5 — 0.5 —
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing.........cceeveevvereeeeieneneeieieneeeens 15.1 1.1 — — 15.1 1.1)
Other IndUStries.........coeeveeieieiecieceeeeeee e 4.2 0.4) 1.0 — 5.2 0.4)
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........cccoocevvvieninninnnnne. 14.9 0.1) 14.4 (0.6) 29.3 0.7)
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships........cccevveveneeieieneieeieeeeeen 54.4 (1.5) 6.6 0.3) 61.0 (1.8)
Total Equity SeCUrities.........ccocvevreereeierienrieieieereerene 96.1 3.2) 34.6 (1.8) 130.7 (5.0)
TOtAl ..o $ 4236 $ 9.7 $ 580.7 $ (15.0) $1,0043 $ (24.7)

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment
is other than temporary. The portions of the declines in the fair values of investments that are determined to be other than temporary
are reported as losses in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the periods when such determinations are made.
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Unrealized losses on fixed maturities, which the Company has determined to be temporary at December 31, 2014, were $19.7
million, of which $13.2 million was related to fixed maturities that were in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer.
There were no unrealized losses at December 31, 2014 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses
in earnings in the preceding table under the headings “Less Than 12 Months” or “12 Months or Longer.” Investment-grade
fixed maturity investments comprised $14.1 million and below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $5.6
million of the unrealized losses on investments in fixed maturities at December 31, 2014. For below-investment-grade fixed
maturity investments in an unrealized loss position, the unrealized loss amount, on average, was less than 4% of the amortized
cost basis of the investment. At December 31, 2014, the Company did not have the intent to sell these investments and it was
not more likely than not that the Company would be required to sell these investments before recovery of its amortized cost
basis, which may be at maturity. Based on the Company’s evaluation at December 31, 2014 of the prospects of the issuers,
including, but not limited to, the credit ratings of the issuers of the investments in the fixed maturities, and the Company’s
intention to not sell and its determination that it would not be required to sell before recovery of the amortized cost of such
investments, the Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Company’s investments in fixed maturities
presented in the preceding table were temporary at the evaluation date.

For equity securities, the Company considers various factors when determining whether a decline in the fair value is other than
temporary, including, but not limited to:

» The financial condition and prospects of the issuer;

* The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

* The volatility of the investment;

* Analyst recommendations and near term price targets;

* Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

*  Market liquidity;

* Debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks and issuer ratings; and

*  The Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the investments until recovery.

With respect to Investments in Equity Securities, the Company concluded that the unrealized losses on its investments in
preferred and common stocks at December 31, 2014 were temporary based on various factors, including the relative short
length and magnitude of the losses and overall market volatility. The Company’s investments in other equity interests include
investments in limited liability companies and limited partnerships that primarily invest in mezzanine debt, distressed debt, and
secondary transactions. By the nature of their underlying investments, the Company believes that some of its investments in the
limited liability companies and limited partnerships exhibit debt-like characteristics which, among other factors, the Company
also considers when evaluating these investments for impairment. Based on evaluations of the factors in the preceding
paragraph, the Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Company’s investments in equity securities
presented in the preceding table were temporary at December 31, 2014.
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An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities at December 31, 2013 is
presented below:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUhOTILIES. ..ot $§ 958 $ (109) § 44 % (0.8) $ 1002 $ (11.7)
States and Political Subdivisions...........ccccceevevuenenn 222.9 (20.1) 2.0 0.1) 224.9 (20.2)
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOtes.........ccooveveierienieieieiecie e 699.8 (39.4) 103.2 (8.3) 803.0 47.7)
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed................... 13.9 0.1 1.1 — 15.0 0.1)
Total Fixed Maturities..........ccoceveeeeveerieneeieieereeeeee 1,032.4 (70.5) 110.7 9.2) 1,143.1 (79.7)
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate ................... 22.5 (2.5) 2.5 — 25.0 (2.5)
Other INdUSHIIes .......c.eeevveevieeiieciieeieceeeeie e 4.3 0.1) 0.7 — 5.0 (0.1)
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing .........cceeeeeeeeveerieneeeeeeiesreeeeenns 5.0 0.1) 0.2 — 5.2 0.1)
Other INAUSHIIES .....oovveviiieiieieieeeeeeee e 14.2 0.9) 0.5 — 14.7 0.9)
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds .........ccccocovveieiennrnnne. 67.6 (1.0) — — 67.6 (1.0)
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.......ccoeveeeeeecienecieieiee e 53.1 0.9) 5.0 0.7) 58.1 (1.6)
Total Equity SeCUrities........coevverrerieieienieeieienie e 166.7 (5.5) 8.9 0.7) 175.6 (6.2)
TOtAL et $1,199.1 § (76.0) § 1196 § 9.9) $1,318.7 $ (85.9)

Unrealized losses on fixed maturities, which the Company determined to be temporary at December 31, 2013, were $79.7
million, of which $9.2 million was related to fixed maturities that were in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer.
There were no unrealized losses at December 31, 2013 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses
in earnings in the preceding table under the heading “Less Than 12 Months.” Included in the preceding table under the heading
“12 Months or Longer” there were unrealized losses of $0.3 million at December 31, 2013 related to securities for which the
Company has recognized credit losses in earnings. Investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $74.2 million and
below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $5.5 million of the unrealized losses on investments in fixed
maturities at December 31, 2013. For below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments in an unrealized loss position, the
unrealized loss amount, on average, was less than 5% of the amortized cost basis of the investment. At December 31, 2013, the
Company did not have the intent to sell these investments and it was not more likely than not that the Company would be
required to sell these investments before recovery of its amortized cost basis, which may be at maturity. Based on the
Company’s evaluation at December 31, 2013 of the prospects of the issuers, including, but not limited to, the credit ratings of
the issuers of the investments in the fixed maturities, and the Company’s intention to not sell and its determination that it would
not be required to sell before recovery of the amortized cost of such investments, the Company concluded that the declines in
the fair values of the Company’s investments in fixed maturities presented in the preceding table were temporary at the
evaluation date.

The Company concluded that the unrealized losses on its investments in preferred and common stocks at December 31, 2013
were temporary based on the relative short length and magnitude of the losses and overall market volatility. The Company’s
investments in other equity interests include investments in limited liability companies and limited liability partnerships that
primarily invest in distressed debt, mezzanine debt and secondary transactions. By the nature of their underlying investments,
the Company believes that some of its investments in the limited liability companies and limited liability partnerships also
exhibit debt-like characteristics which, among other factors, the Company considers when evaluating these investments for
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impairment. Based on Company’s evaluations, the Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Company’s
investments in equity securities presented in the preceding table were temporary at December 31, 2013.

The following table sets forth the pre-tax amount of OTTI credit losses, recognized in Retained Earnings for Investments in
Fixed Maturities held by the Company as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, for which a portion of the OTTI loss related to
factors other than credit has been recognized in AOCI, and the corresponding changes in such amounts.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Balance at Beginning Of Yeali..........ccoviveioveiiieieeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 929 §$ 46 $ 3.9
Additions for Previously Unrecognized OTTI Credit LOSSES.......cccceverieerininieininiiennaens 24 1.8 1.1
Increases to Previously Recognized OTTI Credit LOSSES........ccveveviiereeieieeieeiieieieeveeveenins 0.6 7.3 —
Reductions to Previously Recognized OTTI Credit LOSSES .....cccevvevverreeierienieeeieieiesie i — (0.1)
Reductions for Change in Impairment Status:

From Status of Credit Loss to Status of Intent-to-sell or Required-to-sell ....................... 2.4) 3.2)
Reductions for Investments Sold During Period ............cccooeviiieniiniinieiieieeeceiee e (5.2) (0.6) (0.3)
Balance at ENd 0f YEaL.........ccocoiiiiiiiiiiieieiiieeteteee ettt $ 53 $ 99 $ 4.6

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments include investments in limited liability investment companies and limited
partnerships in which the Company’s interests are not deemed minor and are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. The Company’s investments in Equity Method Limited Liability Investments are generally of a passive nature in
that the Company does not take an active role in the management of the investment entity. The Company’s maximum exposure
to loss at December 31, 2014 is limited to the total carrying value of $184.8 million. In addition, the Company had outstanding
commitments totaling approximately $37.7 million to fund Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at December 31,
2014.

The carrying values of the Company’s Other Investments at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013
Loans to Policyholders at Unpaid Principal...........cccooieriiriiieniiniiieieieceeeeie e $ 2834 § 2754
Real Estate at Depreciated COSt ....uuiiiiiiiiiieiieiieie ettt ettt e sttt e eae st e ettesaaessaeenseeaseasseeseenseesseenseennes 160.9 167.1
Trading Securities at Fair VAIUC..........cccoiiiiiieiicieieeeeeee sttt s 4.9 5.0
OTROT ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt h ettt bttt ettt a e e 0.4 0.5
Total

........................................................................................................................................................... $ 449.6 $ 448.0

NOTE 4. GOODWILL

Goodwill balances by business segment at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE............coriiieiiiiiiieieiete ettt esesbe e eneenes 92.4 92.4
Life & Health INSUTANCE ......cc.oiuiieieieciieiieieieetee ettt ettt et e teesa e s e seeseessessesseessessessesssensens 219.4 219.4
TOTALL .ttt ekttt s ks st s b bt st n ettt b s n et es $ 311.8 $ 3118

The Company tests goodwill for recoverability on an annual basis at the beginning of the first quarter and, if circumstances or
events indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit may have declined below its carrying value, such tests are performed at
intervening interim periods. The Company principally used projections of discounted future cash flows to estimate the fair
values of the reporting units tested. For each reporting unit tested, the estimated fair value exceeded the carrying value of the
reporting unit, and the Company concluded that the associated goodwill was recoverable at the aforementioned dates tested.
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Property and Casualty Insurance Reserve activity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Beginning Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves:
Gross of Reinsurance at Beginning of Year.........c.ccvevvevieviirieieiecieeecieieee e $ 8435 § 970.6 $ 1,029.1
Less Reinsurance Recoverables at Beginning of Year........cccoecvevievieieiienininieeneeeennen 63.4 66.2 74.5
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of at Beginning of Year...........cccoccoeenenn. 780.1 904.4 954.6

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

CONtINUING OPCTATIONS ....evvieuiieeieiiestiestestieeteeteeteeteeseesseesseesseesseesseessaesssesnsesseassens 965.4 1,056.5 1,253.1
Prior Years:
CONtINUING OPETALIONS ...veevrenreiieiieieteeteeitet ettt ettt sttt ettt et e e esbesaesseentenbesbeennens (53.5) (59.8) (25.2)
DiScONtINUEd OPETAtIONS.......ccvirvierieierieerieieienteeteertetesteeeessesseeseeseessessessesseesessesseessens 3.6) (4.8) (6.3)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE related to Prior Years.........ccoccvvvveeiieiieieecieeieeieeeee (57.1) (64.6) (31.5)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ..........oooo oo 908.3 991.9 1,221.6

Paid Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

CONtINUING OPETALIONS ....vvevvenritietieienteeteeietesteeteestesesteeseessessesseeseensessessesssensessesseessens 639.8 682.2 801.4

Prior Years:
CONtINUING OPCTALIONS ....evveeueieeieiiestiesitestieeeeeteeteeseeseesseesseesseesseesseesseessseanseanseensens 360.4 421.7 451.2
DiscontinUed OPETatiOnS.........ecveeeeerieriereieieierieeteertete st eteessesteeseeseensessessesseensessesseennens 9.2 12.3 19.2
Total Paid Losses and LAE related to Prior Years........cocceveverieieneninieienicnceenie e 369.6 434.0 470.4
Total Paid LoSses and LAE .........ooooiiiioiie et eae e 1,009.4 1,116.2 1,271.8
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of Reinsurance at End of Year................... 679.0 780.1 904.4
Plus Reinsurance Recoverables at End of Year.......c.cocovveiiiiiiiiiiininiiccceec e 54.9 63.4 66.2
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Gross of Reinsurance at End of Year............... $ 7339 $ 8435 $ 9706

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are estimated based on historical experience patterns and current economic trends.
Actual loss experience and loss trends are likely to differ from these historical experience patterns and economic conditions.
Loss experience and loss trends emerge over several years from the dates of loss inception. The Company monitors such
emerging loss trends on a quarterly basis. Changes in such estimates are included in the Consolidated Statements of Income in
the period of change.

In 2014, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $57.1 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably
by $50.9 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $6.2 million. Personal
automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $31.6 million, homeowners insurance loss and LAE
reserves developed favorably by $14.8 million, and other personal lines loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $4.5
million. The personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily to the emergence of more
favorable loss patterns than expected for the three most recent prior accident years. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE
reserves included favorable development of $2.6 million from continuing operations and $3.6 million from discontinued
operations. Commercial lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably from continuing operations due primarily
to the emergence of more favorable loss patterns than expected for the 2013, 2011 and 2010 accident years.
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In 2013, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $64.6 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably
by $56.8 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $7.8 million. Personal
automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $30.1 million, homeowners insurance loss and LAE
reserves developed favorably by $20.1 million and other personal lines loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $6.6
million. The personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily to the emergence of more
favorable loss patterns than expected for the four most recent prior accident years. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE
reserves included favorable development of $3.0 million from continuing operations and $4.8 million from discontinued
operations. Commercial lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably from continuing operations due primarily
to the emergence of more favorable loss patterns than expected for the 2011, 2010 and 2009 accident years, partially offset by
less favorable loss patterns than expected for the 2012 accident year.

In 2012, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $31.5 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably
by $12.6 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $18.9 million. Personal
automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves developed adversely by $2.2 million, homeowners insurance loss and LAE
reserves developed favorably by $11.7 million and other personal lines loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $3.1
million. Personal automobile loss and LAE reserves developed adversely for the 2011 accident year and developed favorably
for the 2010, 2009 and 2008 accident years. Homeowners insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily
to the emergence of more favorable loss patterns than expected for the three most recent prior accident years and favorable
development on certain catastrophes. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves included favorable development of
$12.6 million from continuing operations and $6.3 million from discontinued operations. Commercial lines insurance losses
and LAE reserves developed favorably from continuing operations due primarily to the emergence of more favorable loss
patterns than expected for the four most recent prior accident years. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves
developed favorably from discontinued operations due primarily to the commutation of certain insurance liabilities that had
been previously assumed.

The Company cannot predict whether loss and LAE reserves will develop favorably or unfavorably from the amounts reported
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company believes that any such development will not have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial position, but could have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial results
for a given period.

Reinsurance recoverables on property and casualty insurance reserves were $54.9 million and $63.4 million at December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively. These recoverables are concentrated with several reinsurers, the vast majority of which are highly
rated by one or more of the principal investor and/or insurance company rating agencies. While most of these recoverables were
unsecured at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the agreements with the reinsurers generally provide for some form of
collateralization upon the occurrence of certain events.
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Total amortized cost of debt outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013
Senior Notes:
6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015, ... ..ccoiiiiiiiiiecie ettt $ 2495 $ 249.0
6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ...ccovoiiiieieieieeeeieieee ettt ettt 358.5 357.9
7.375% Subordinated Debentures due February 27, 2054 ........c.oooiiiiioiiiiieieeie et 144.1 —
Total Debt OULSTANAING. .........cveviveeieeeeeeieeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt ae et ee e seesesean et eneenenennanas $ 7521 $ 606.9

Interest Expense, including facility fees, accretion of discount and amortization of issuance costs, for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Notes Payable under Revolving Credit AGreement...........cceeveeveerierieeeeeesiesieereeiesiesreeseennens $ 0.8 $ 14 3 1.9
Senior Notes Payable:

6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015 .......ooiiiiiiiiiiieeeee et 15.5 15.4 15.4

6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ....ccooieiiriiiiiieiecieeeeeeee e 22.2 222 22.1
7.375% Subordinated Debentures due February 27, 2054 .......cocoeviirieierieneneeeeere e 9.4 — —
Mortgage NOte Payable.........ccociiiiiiiiiieiieicieeieceetet ettt et sbe e — 0.2 0.4
Interest Expense before Capitalization of INterest...........ccooevieieriinieieieieseeecieese e 47.9 39.2 39.8
Capitalization OF INTEIEST.......c..iiiiiiiiiiieii ettt ettt eveeeteeeaeeetaeease e (1.0) (0.9) (1.8)
Total INTErest EXPEIISE. .....veviuievietiteeieeietieteee ettt ettt ettt et s ettt es s ereese s e s s $ 469 $ 383 $ 380

Interest Paid, including facility fees, for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Notes Payable under Revolving Credit AGreement..............cocveeveveeieveuieereieiereeieieseeveenaas $ 0.6 $ 08 $ 2.3
Senior Notes Payable:
6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015........cooviiiiiiiiieieeieeeeeeeeeeee e 15.0 15.0 15.0
6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ....ccooiriiriiiiiieiesieeeeeee et 21.6 21.6 21.6
7.375% Subordinated Debentures due February 27, 2054 ........ccooeiiiiirieieieeeeeeenes 8.5 — —
Mortgage NOte Payable.........ccooveiiiiiiiieieieiecieeteee ettt naens — 0.3 0.4

Total INEEreSt PAId .........ooviiiiiiieiieieeee ettt ettt eae e $ 457 $ 377 $ 393

Kemper has a four-year, $225.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement, expiring March 7, 2016, with a group of
financial institutions. The credit agreement provides for fixed and floating rate advances for periods up to six months at various
interest rates. The credit agreement contains various financial covenants, including limits on total debt to total capitalization,
consolidated net worth and minimum risk-based capital ratios for Kemper’s largest insurance subsidiaries, United Insurance and
Trinity. Proceeds from advances under the credit agreement may be used for general corporate purposes, including repayment
of existing indebtedness. There were no outstanding borrowings under the credit agreement at either December 31, 2014 or
December 31, 2013.

United Insurance and Trinity are members of the FHLB of Chicago and Dallas, respectively. The FHLB memberships provide
United Insurance and Trinity with access to additional sources of liquidity. Effective December 31, 2013, Trinity and the FHLB
of Dallas entered into agreements pursuant to which Trinity may obtain advances from the FHLB of Dallas. Effective March
18, 2014, United Insurance and the FHLB of Chicago entered into agreements pursuant to which United Insurance may obtain
advances from the FHLB of Chicago. Advances from the FHLB of Dallas and Chicago are subject to collateral requirements as
specified in the respective agreements with Trinity and United Insurance. There were no advances from the FHLB of Dallas or
Chicago outstanding at either December 31, 2014 or December 31, 2013.
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On February 27, 2014, Kemper issued $150.0 million of its 7.375% subordinated debentures due February 27, 2054 . The net
proceeds of the issuance were $144.0 million, net of discount and transaction costs, for an effective yield of 7.69%. The
subordinated debentures are unsecured and are subordinated and junior to the senior indebtedness of Kemper. Interest on the
subordinated debentures is payable quarterly. As long as no event of default has occurred, Kemper may defer interest payments
on the subordinated debentures for up to five consecutive years without giving rise to an event of default. During a deferral
period, interest will continue to accrue at the stated interest rate compounded quarterly. Kemper is permitted to redeem some or
all of the subordinated debentures on or after February 27, 2019, at a redemption price that is equal to their principal amount
plus accrued and unpaid interest. Kemper is permitted to redeem the subordinated debentures in whole, but not in part, at any
time prior to February 27, 2019, within 90 days of the occurrence of certain tax events or rating agency events, at specified
redemption prices.

In 2010, Kemper issued $250 million of its 6.00% senior notes due November 30, 2015. The notes are unsecured and may be
redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. Kemper issued
the notes for proceeds of $247.8 million, net of transaction costs, for an effective yield of 6.21%.

In 2007, Kemper issued $360 million of its 6.00% senior notes due May 15, 2017. The notes are unsecured and may be
redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. Kemper issued
the notes for proceeds of $354.8 million, net of transaction costs, for an effective yield of 6.19%.

NOTE 7. LEASES

The Company leases certain office space under non-cancelable operating leases, with initial terms typically ranging from one to
ten years, along with options that permit renewals for additional periods. The Company also leases certain equipment under
non-cancelable operating leases, with initial terms typically ranging from one to five years. Minimum rent is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Net rental expense for operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Minimum Rental EXPENSE ....ccvivvieuieieiiitieiieieete ettt ettt et stesteeaesesseeseessessesseessesseseeessensas $ 215 § 283 § 332
Less Sublease Rental INCOME ..........ccoeoiiiiiiiiiiieiiccieeee e e (1.3) (1.8) 2.5)
Net RENAl EXPEISE ....cuveviiiiiieiieiesieieiieie ettt ettt sttt et et seesesseseeseesesseneenens $ 202 $ 265 § 307

Future minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases at December 31, 2014 were:

Capital Operating

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Leases Leases
SOOI $ 1.9 § 165
2016ttt h bt h et h e bt bttt e b et b et b et et enes 1.9 14.1
0 SRS 0.6 12.9
2018 ettt h e a et R bt bt R Rt h et n Rkttt e h e bttt n ettt n bttt eneenes 0.1 9.0
2079 etttk h ettt sttt ettt ettt b et enes — 7.7
2020 ANA TRETEATTET .....viieeieieeii ettt ettt ettt e te et essaesaeeeseeeneesseeenseenseenseenseenseeseenseennes — 19.1
TOtal FULUIE PAYIMENLS. .....cvieviivieieiietiiteieeete ettt ettt st se ettt se b e s e s eseese s esseseesessenseseesessenseseenas $ 45 8§ 793
Less Imputed Interest 0.4) -
Present Value of Minimum Capital Lease Payments...........cccocvevieriiieienienieieieieeeeeese e $ 4.1

The total of minimum rentals to be received in the future under non-cancelable subleases was $5.9 million at December 31,
2014.

79



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 8. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Kemper is authorized to issue 20 million shares of $0.10 par value preferred stock and 100 million shares of $0.10 par value
common stock. No preferred shares were issued or outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013. There were 52,418,246 shares
and 55,653,437 shares of common stock outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Common stock outstanding
included 163,720 shares and 278,427 shares at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, that have been issued, subject to
certain vesting and other requirements, in connection with the Company’s long-term equity compensation plans. See Note 9,
“Long-Term Equity-based Compensation,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the restrictions and
vesting provisions.

Kemper repurchased and retired 3.2 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions at an aggregate cost of
$115.5 million in 2014. Kemper repurchased and retired 3.0 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions at
an aggregate cost of $100.4 million in 2013. Kemper repurchased and retired 2.0 million shares of its common stock in open
market transactions at an aggregate cost of $60.7 million in 2012.

Various state insurance laws restrict the amount that an insurance subsidiary may pay in the form of dividends, loans or
advances without the prior approval of regulatory authorities. Also, that portion of an insurance subsidiary’s net equity which
results from differences between statutory insurance accounting practices and GAAP would not be available for cash dividends,
loans or advances. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries paid dividends of $217.5 million to Kemper in 2014. In 2015, Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries would be able to pay $218 million in dividends to Kemper without prior regulatory approval. Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries had net assets of $2.4 billion, determined in accordance with GAAP, that were restricted from payment to
Kemper without prior regulatory approval at December 31, 2014.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are required to file financial statements prepared on the basis of statutory insurance accounting
practices, a comprehensive basis of accounting other than GAAP. Statutory capital and surplus for the Company’s life and
health insurance subsidiaries was $437.3 million and $430.2 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Statutory net
income for the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries was $100.7 million, $81.5 million and $102.0 million for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus for the Company’s property and
casualty insurance subsidiaries was $947.5 million and $989.7 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Statutory
net income for the Company’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries was $85.7 million, $138.8 million and $40.6 million
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus and statutory net income
exclude parent company operations.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are also required to hold minimum levels of statutory capital and surplus to satisfy regulatory
requirements. The minimum statutory capital and surplus, or company action level RBC, necessary to satisfy regulatory
requirements for the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries collectively was $125.4 million at December 31, 2014.
The minimum statutory capital and surplus necessary to satisfy regulatory requirements for the Company’s property and
casualty insurance subsidiaries collectively was $288.7 million at December 31, 2014. Company action level RBC is the level
at which a company is required to file a corrective action plan with its regulators and is equal to 200% of the authorized control
level RBC.

In 2014, Kemper paid dividends of $51.8 million to its shareholders. Except for certain financial covenants under the 2016
Credit Agreement, there are no restrictions on Kemper’s ability to pay dividends to its shareholders. Certain financial
covenants, namely minimum net worth and a maximum debt to total capitalization ratio, under the 2016 Credit Agreement
could limit the amount of dividends that Kemper may pay to shareholders at December 31, 2014. Kemper had the ability to pay
without restrictions $268 million in dividends to its shareholders and still be in compliance with all financial covenants under
the 2016 Credit Agreement at December 31, 2014.

80



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 9. LONG-TERM EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION

On May 4, 2011, Kemper’s shareholders approved the 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan (“Omnibus Plan). The Omnibus Plan
replaced the Company’s previous employee stock option plans, director stock option plan and restricted stock plan (collectively,
the “Prior Plans”). Awards previously granted under the Prior Plans remain outstanding in accordance with their original terms.
Beginning May 4, 2011, equity-based compensation awards may only be granted under the Omnibus Plan. A maximum number
of 10,000,000 shares of Kemper common stock may be issued under the Omnibus Plan (the “Share Authorization”). As of
December 31, 2014, there were 8,243,636 common shares available for future grants under the Omnibus Plan, of which
517,500 shares were reserved for future grants based on the achievement of performance goals under the terms of outstanding
performance-based restricted stock and performance-based restricted stock unit (“RSU”’) awards.

The design of the Omnibus Plan provides for fungible use of shares to determine the number of shares available for future
grants, with a fungible conversion factor of three to one, such that the Share Authorization will be reduced at two different rates,
depending on the type of award granted. Each share of Kemper common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options or
stock appreciation rights will reduce the number of shares available for future grant under the Share Authorization by one share,
while each share of Kemper common stock issued pursuant to “full value awards” will reduce the number of shares available
for future grant under the Share Authorization by three shares. “Full value awards” are awards, other than stock options or stock
appreciation rights, that are settled by the issuance of shares of Kemper common stock and include restricted stock, RSUs and
deferred stock units (“DSUs”), if settled with stock, and other stock-based awards.

Outstanding equity-based compensation awards at December 31, 2014 consisted of tandem stock option and stock appreciation
rights (“Tandem Awards”), time-vested restricted stock, time-vested RSUs, performance-based restricted stock, performance-
based RSUs and DSUs. Effective February 4, 2014, the Company began issuing time-based and performance-based RSUs.
Recipients of restricted stock receive full dividend and voting rights on the same basis by as all other outstanding shares of
Kemper common stock. RSUs and DSUs give the recipient the right to receive one share of Kemper common stock for each
RSU or DSU issued. Holders of RSUs and DSUs receive full dividend equivalents on the same basis as dividends are received
by holders of all other outstanding shares of Kemper common stock, but do not receive voting rights until such shares are
issued. Except as described below for equity-based compensation awards granted on or after May 1, 2013 to each member of
the Board of Directors who is not employed by the Company (“Non-employee Directors”), all outstanding awards are subject to
forfeiture until certain restrictions have lapsed.

For equity-based compensation awards with a graded vesting schedule, the Company recognizes compensation expense on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately-vesting portion of the awards as if each award were, in
substance, multiple awards. Compensation expense is recognized only for those awards expected to vest, with forfeitures
estimated at the date of grant based on the Company’s historical experience and future expectations. Equity-based
compensation expense was $6.4 million, $5.5 million and $5.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Total unamortized compensation expense related to nonvested awards at December 31, 2014 was $4.4 million,
which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.8 years.

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, or the Board’s authorized designee, has sole discretion to determine
the persons to whom awards under the Omnibus Plan are granted, and the material terms of the awards. For Tandem Awards,
material terms include the number of shares covered by such awards and the exercise price, vesting and expiration dates of such
awards. Tandem Awards are non-transferable. The exercise price of Tandem Awards is the fair value of Kemper’s common
stock on the date of grant. Employee Tandem Awards, time-based restricted stock awards and time-based RSU awards generally
vest, beginning six months after date of grant, in four equal annual installments over a period of three and one-half years, with
the Tandem Awards expiring ten years from the date of grant. Employee performance-based restricted stock and RSU awards
generally vest over a period of three years, subject to achievement of performance goals and other restrictions.

Each Non-employee Director receives an initial option to purchase 4,000 shares of Kemper common stock immediately upon
becoming a director. In addition, on the date of each annual meeting of Kemper’s shareholders, eligible Non-employee
Directors automatically receive annual grants of options to purchase 4,000 shares of common stock. Prior to May 1, 2013, such
options granted to Non-employee Directors were exercisable one year from the date of grant at an exercise price equal to the
fair market value of Kemper’s common stock on the date of grant and expire ten years from the date of grant. Effective May 1,
2013, new grants of such options are fully vested and exercisable on the date of grant at an exercise price equal to the fair
market value of Kemper’s common stock on the date of grant. In addition to the option awards, effective May 1, 2013, annual
awards to each Non-employee Director include 500 DSUs. The DSUs granted to Non-employee Directors are fully vested on
the date of grant. Conversion of the DSUs into shares of Kemper’s common stock is deferred until the date a director’s board
service terminates.
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All of the Company’s prior stock option plans included provisions, subject to certain limitations, to automatically grant
restorative, or reload stock options (“Restorative Options™), to replace shares of previously owned Kemper common stock that
an exercising option holder surrenders, either actually or constructively, to satisfy the exercise price and/or tax withholding
obligations relating to the exercise. The restorative feature was eliminated prospectively for original option awards granted on
or after February 3, 2009. Restorative Options may still be granted, subject to certain limitations, in connection with the
exercise of original options granted before February 3, 2009. Restorative Options are subject to the same terms and conditions
as the original options, including the expiration date, except that the exercise price is equal to the fair value of Kemper common
stock on the date of grant of a Restorative Option and cannot be exercised until six months after the date of grant. The grant of a
Restorative Option does not result in an increase in the total number of shares and options held by an employee, but changes the
mix of the two.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of each Tandem Award on the date of
grant. The expected terms of Tandem Awards are developed by considering the Company’s historical Tandem Award exercise
experience, demographic profiles, historical share retention practices of employees and assumptions about their propensity for
early exercise in the future. Further, the Company aggregates individual awards into relatively homogenous groups that exhibit
similar exercise behavior to obtain a more refined estimate of the expected term of options. Expected volatility is estimated
using weekly historical volatility. The Company believes that historical volatility is currently the best estimate of expected
volatility. The dividend yield in 2014, 2013 and 2012 was calculated by taking the natural logarithm of the annualized yield
divided by the Kemper common stock price on the date of grant. The risk-free interest rate was the yield on the grant date of
U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues with a maturity comparable to the expected term of the option.

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes pricing model for Tandem Awards granted during the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

2014 2013 2012

RANGE OF VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS

Expected Volatility.......ccooveeevierienieieieneceeiesie e 25.76% - 44.43%  39.10% - 4823% 29.36% - 53.84%
Risk-free Interest Rate...........ccoeeeieiiiieeiiciecieeee 1.07 - 2.14 0.62 - 1.38 0.16 - 1.26
Expected Dividend Yield........cccooevveieiiniiieieiene. 253 - 2.60 283 - 3.00 292 - 3.26
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE EXPECTED LIFE IN YEARS

Employee Grants..........ccceceeevveieenenereeneneneennenn 4 -7 4 -7 1 -7
Director Grants..........c.coeeeeeeueeeeeeeeeieeee e 6 6 6

Tandem Award activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 is presented below:

Weighted-

Weighted- average Aggregate
Shares average Remaining Intrinsic
Subject to Exercise Price Contractual Value
Awards Per Share ($) Life (in Years) ($ In Millions)
Outstanding at Beginning of the Year........cccoocovvveveninineennne. 2,543,673 $ 41.37
GIANLE....oviieieeeie ettt be et et ese e s e eeee e 289,000 36.59
EXEICISE....ooviioeiieee e (46,125) 29.04
Forfeited or EXpired.........ccccovivieienienieieieecceeeeeee e (520,837) 46.94
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 ........ccoooiiienieieiecieee 2,265,711 39.74 38 § 4.3
Vested and Expected to Vest at December 31, 2014................. 2,242,297 $ 39.80 38 § 4.2
Exercisable at December 31, 2014.......cocoiiiiiiiiiieiiieeeieeeeie 1,944,207 $ 40.59 30 $ 3.7

The weighted-average grant-date fair values of Tandem Awards granted during 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $10.49, $10.20 and
$9.40, respectively. Total intrinsic value of Tandem Awards exercised was $0.4 million, $4.1 million and $3.0 million for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Cash received from exercises of Tandem Awards was $0.5
million, $1.7 million and $1.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Total tax benefit
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realized for tax deductions from exercises of Tandem Awards was $0.1 million, $1.4 million and $1.0 million for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Information pertaining to Tandem Awards outstanding at December 31, 2014 is presented below:

Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted-
Weighted- average Weighted-
Shares average Remaining Shares average
Subject to Exercise Price Contractual Subject to Exercise Price
Range of Exercise Prices ($) Awards Per Share ($) Life (in Years) Awards Per Share ($)

$ 10.00 - $ 15.00 15,000 $ 13.55 2.26 15,000 $ 13.55
15.01 - 20.00 8,000 16.48 4.35 8,000 16.48
20.01 - 25.00 29,000 23.36 3.86 29,000 23.36
25.01 - 30.00 379,000 28.84 6.17 332,998 28.74
30.01 - 35.00 226,250 33.16 8.12 130,500 32.94
35.01 - 40.00 573,250 36.91 5.86 393,498 37.11
40.01 - 45.00 184,902 43.10 0.09 184,902 43.10
45.01 - 50.00 793,541 48.59 1.15 793,541 48.59
50.01 - 55.00 56,768 51.16 0.10 56,768 51.16
10.00 - 55.00 2,265,711 39.74 3.82 1,944,207 40.59

The grant-date fair values of time-based restricted stock and time-based RSU awards are determined using the closing price of
Kemper common stock on the date of grant. Activity related to nonvested time-based restricted stock and nonvested time-based
RSUs for the year ended December 31, 2014 was as follows:

Time-based Restricted Stock

Awards Time-based RSU Awards
Weighted- Weighted-
average average
Grant-date Grant-date
Number of Fair Value Number of Fair Value
Shares Per Share RSUs Per RSU
Nonvested Balance at Beginning of the Year..........ccccevvevieiecienieniennnnn. 101,627 $ 31.48 — 8 —
GIANEEA ..ottt ettt et e 2,000 38.59 41,925 36.56
VESTEA. ..ttt et e es (25,568) 30.56 (9,351) 36.47
FOTERILEM v e ee e (24,964) 30.96 (2,550) 36.47
Nonvested Balance at End of Period ............ccooovoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiice 53,095 $ 32.42 30,024 $ 36.60

Prior to February 3, 2009, only awards of time-vested restricted stock had been granted. Beginning on February 3, 2009, in
addition to time-vested restricted stock granted to certain employees and officers, the Company began making performance-
based restricted awards to certain officers and employees. The initial number of shares or RSUs awarded to each participant of
a performance-based award represents the shares that would vest, or, in the case of a RSU, that would vest and would be issued,
if the performance level attained were to be at the “target” performance level. For performance above the target level, each
participant would receive a grant of additional shares of stock up to a maximum of 100% of the initial number of shares or
RSUs awarded to the participant. The final payout of these awards, and any forfeitures of shares for performance below the
“target” performance level, will be determined based on Kemper’s total shareholder return over a three-year performance
period relative to a peer group comprised of all the companies in the S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index.
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If, at the end of the performance period, the Company’s relative performance:

»  exceeds the “target” performance level, additional shares of stock will be issued to the award recipient;

* is below the “target” performance level, but at or above a “minimum” performance level, only a portion of the shares
of performance-based restricted stock originally issued to the award recipient will vest; or

* is below a “minimum” performance level, none of the shares of performance-based restricted stock originally issued to
the award recipient will vest.

The grant date fair values of the performance-based restricted stock and performance-based RSU awards are determined using
the Monte Carlo simulation method. The Monte Carlo simulation model produces a risk-neutral simulation of the daily returns
on the common stock of Kemper and each of the other companies included in the peer group. Returns generated by the
simulation depend on the risk-free interest rate used and the volatilities of, and the correlation between, these stocks. The model
simulates stock prices and dividend payouts to the end of the three-year performance period. Total shareholder returns are
generated for each of these stocks based on the simulated prices and dividend payouts. The total shareholder returns are then
ranked, and Kemper’s simulated ranking is converted to a payout percentage based on the terms of the performance-based
restricted stock and performance-based RSU awards. The payout percentage is applied to the simulated stock price at the end of
the performance period, reinvested dividends are added back, and the total is discounted to the valuation date at the risk-free
rate. This process is repeated approximately ten thousand times, and the grant date fair value is equal to the average of the
results from these trials.

Activity related to nonvested performance-based restricted stock and nonvested performance-based RSU awards for the year
ended December 31, 2014 was as follows:

Performance-based Performance-based RSU
Restricted Stock Awards Awards
Weighted- Weighted-
average average
Grant-date Grant-date
Number of Fair Value Number of Fair Value
Shares Per Share RSUs Per RSU
Nonvested Balance at Beginning of the Year..........cccccevvevieiecienieneennnnn. 176,800 $ 39.54 — 8 —
GIANTEA ..o ettt — — 66,575 40.50
VESEEA. ..ottt et ettt (54,934) 39.83 — —
FOTTRIIE™. v s e ee e s eee e (11,241) 40.75 (4,700) 40.50
Nonvested Balance at End of Period ..........cccccooovieeviieiiiiciecieecee e 110,625 $ 39.28 61,875 $ 40.50

The number of additional shares that would be granted if the Company were to meet or exceed the maximum performance
levels related to the outstanding performance-based awards for the 2014 and 2013 three-year performance periods was 61,875
common shares and 52,850 common shares, respectively, (as “full value awards,” the equivalent of 185,625 shares and 158,550
shares, respectively, under the Share Authorization) at December 31, 2014. For the 2012 three-year performance period, the
Company was below the minimum performance level, and all of the related 57,775 shares of performance-based restricted
shares were forfeited on January 31, 2015, the three-year anniversary of their grant date. For the 2011 three-year performance
period, the Company exceeded target performance levels with a payout percentage of 118%. Accordingly, an additional 9,014
shares of stock were issued to award recipients on February 1, 2014 (the “2011 Additional Shares™). For the 2010 three-year
performance period, the Company exceeded target performance levels with a payout percentage of 114%. Accordingly, an
additional 6,996 shares of stock were issued to award recipients on February 2, 2013 (the “2010 Additional Shares”). For the
2009 three-year performance period, the Company exceeded target performance levels with a payout percentage of 183%.
Accordingly, an additional 40,727 shares of stock were issued to award recipients on February 3, 2012 (the “2009 Additional
Shares”).

The total fair value of time-vested and performance-based restricted stock and RSUs that vested during the year ended
December 31, 2014 and the 2011 Additional Shares that were issued was $3.6 million and the tax benefits for tax deductions
realized from such shares was $1.2 million. The total fair value of the shares of time-vested and performance-based restricted
stock that vested during the year ended December 31, 2013 and the 2010 Additional Shares was $4.1 million and the tax
benefits for tax deductions realized from such shares was $1.4 million. The total fair value of the shares of time-vested and
performance-based restricted stock that vested during the year ended December 31, 2012 and the 2009 Additional Shares was
$4.0 million and the tax benefits for tax deductions realized from such shares was $1.4 million.
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The grant-date fair values of DSU awards granted to Non-employee Directors are determined using the closing price of Kemper
common stock on the date of grant. DSU awards granted to Non-employee Directors are fully vested on the date of grant. The
total fair value of DSUs that vested during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $0.2 million and $0.1 million,
respectively.

Activity related to DSU awards for the year ended December 31, 2014 was as follows:

Weighted-
average
Grant-date
Number of Fair Value
DSUs Per DSU
Vested Balance at Beginning 0f the Year ..........cocveiiiriieiiieieeeeet e 4,000 $ 31.50
Granted and VESTEA.........c.oiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e ettt e e et e et e e et e e e eateesaeeeeaeeeeaeeeenaeas 4,000 37.53
Vested Balance at End 0f Period...........ooooviiiiiiiiiiiiie e 8,000 $ 34.52

NOTE 10. INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS PER UNRESTRICTED SHARE

The Company’s awards of restricted stock contain rights to receive non-forfeitable dividends and participate in the
undistributed earnings with common shareholders. The Company’s awards of RSUs and DSUs contain rights to receive non-
forfeitable dividend equivalents and participate in the undistributed earnings with common shareholders. Accordingly, the
Company is required to apply the two-class method of computing basic and diluted earnings per share. A reconciliation of the
numerator and denominator used in the calculation of Basic Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share and
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 is
as follows:

2014 2013 2012

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
Income from Continuing OPEIatiONS .......cc.evverrieuierieriiriieienieeteeeeeestesteeeeeesse e eeesessesreennens $ 1126 $ 2145 $ 918
Less Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Participating Awards..................... 0.5 1.1 0.5
Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Unrestricted Shares ...........c.ccoeevvvrerennnn. 112.1 213.4 91.3
Dilutive Effect on Income of Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares..................... — — —
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Unrestricted Shares................... $ 1121 $§ 2134 $ 913
SHARES IN THOUSANDS
Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares Outstanding.............coccveeeveerieneecierienesieieneseeeenen 53,762.5 56,856.9  58,857.3
Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares ............occeviririenieneneeieieneseeiee e 105.4 126.7 141.7
Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares and Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming

DIIULION. ¢ttt ekttt s ettt ne e 53,867.9 56,983.6 58,999.0
PER UNRESTRICTED SHARE IN WHOLE DOLLARS
Basic Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share............cccooceeeeeeiiieiennn. $ 208 $ 375 $§ 155
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share.................cccovvvenennnnen. $ 208 $ 374 § 154

The number of shares of Kemper common stock that were excluded from the calculations of Equity-based Compensation
Equivalent Shares and Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares and Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming Dilution for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 because the exercise prices for the options exceeded the average market price
is presented below.

SHARES IN THOUSANDS 2014 2013 2012
Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares ...........c.cccoviiirierieneneeieieseeeeiee s 1,605.1 2,080.9 2,756.1
Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares and Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming

DIIULION. ...ttt sttt 1,605.1 2,080.9 2,756.1
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The components of Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013

and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes:

Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During the Year Before Reclassification
AQJUSTIMIEIIE ..ttt ettt sttt sttt

Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income............cccecvevinvrnnnne.
Unrealized Holding Gains (LOSSES).....cvecveriirieierieriieiieiesieeieeeeiesreeseeeessesresseesesseeseennas

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments Arising During the Year Before
Reclassification AdJUSTMENL..........ccccveruiriieieieie ettt eeaeneas

Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income...........c.ccceenincnnnns
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments..........c..ceevverievieeeeeerieeieeieieie e
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year......................
Amortization of Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs ..........ccccoeeererincnnncns
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS .........ccevvevvieieieriiiieieieicceeeeie e

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes.........ocoocerveirinenennenenecenenn,

2014 2013 2012

$ 2597 S (3249) $ 1579

(25.1) (37.9) (61.2)
2346  (362.8) 96.7
(1.0) 0.2 1.6
(1.0) 0.2 1.6
(106.4) 61.6 (29.4)
7.9 25.0 16.2
(98.5) 86.6 (13.2)

1351 $ (276.0) $  85.1

The components of Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (Expense) for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and

2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

Income Tax Benefit (Expense):

Unrealized Holding Gains and Losses Arising During the Year Before Reclassification
AJUSEIMENE ..ottt ettt ettt et e b e eteese et e s seeseesaensesseeseessensesneeneenes

Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.........cccccceecververiinnnnnnn.
Unrealized Holding Gains and LOSSES ..........cccecueriiiieieiiiiieieeiesieeie et eveesnens

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments Arising During the Year Before
Reclassification AdJUSIMENT..........ccueviiiuiiieieieeti ettt eaeeanens

Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income............coccceveninenncn.
Foreign Currency Translation AdjuStment..........ccevuirierierienieienieneeeeeie e
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year.......................
Amortization of Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs.........cccceveireninennncne
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS ........covevererierienieniiieieieceeiee e

Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (EXpense) .........cccoevevveviirieieiienenicieese e,

The components of AOCI at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

Unrealized Gains on Investments, Net of Income Taxes:

Available for Sale Fixed Maturities with Portion of OTTI Recognized in Earnings............
Other Net Unrealized Gains on INVESIMENTS..........ccooerieiririieiierieeeereeiee e
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments, Net of Income Taxes.........cccevveveeieneneneeneniene.
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs, Net of Income Taxes..........ccoceveereieenrnenne

Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME ..........oceeieiiriiiieiiiecicieee e

86

2014 2013 2012
(91.6) $ 1159 $ (55.9)
8.8 13.2 215
(82.8)  129.1 (34.4)
0.4 (0.1) (0.6)
0.4 (0.1) (0.6)
375 (21.6) 10.3
2.8) (8.8) (5.7)
34.7 (30.4) 4.6
@77) $ 986 S (30.4)

2014 2013

$ 28 8§ 0.3

............... 324.8 175.5
............... 0.2 0.8
............... (105.1) (41.3)

$ 2227 $§ 1353
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Components of AOCI were reclassified to the following lines of the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended

December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Reclassification of AOCI from Unrealized Gains and Losses on Available For Sale
Securities to:
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS.........c.ecveriiieienienieieieieeeeeee e $ 379 § 518 $ 650
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ...........cccccoeveveeeeiecieceeeeieeie e (12.8) (13.9) (3.8)
Total Before INCOME TaXES.......cc.eriirieiiriiiiieieieeieeiete sttt sresreesaeseseeeseennes 25.1 37.9 61.2
INCOME TaX EXPEIISE ...cuviivviiiiiiiiciie ettt ettt ettt e enaeas (8.8) (13.2) (21.5)
Reclassification from AOCI, Net of Income TaXeS........cooovvvieieiiiieiiieeiieeeieeceeeene 16.3 24.7 39.7
Reclassification of AOCI from Amortization of Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit
Costs to:
Interest and Other EXPENSES......c.cvviuieieriiiieieiesieeiet ettt ee et sresteesaeseseeeseennas (7.9) (25.0) (16.2)
Income Tax BeNefit.....c.oouivuieiiiiiiiieiee e 2.8 8.8 5.7
Reclassification from AOCI, Net of Income Taxes.........ccevvevveviieierieniinieieiesie e, (5.1) (16.2) (10.5)
Total Reclassification from AOCI to Net INCOME...........cocoveveviveriiiieiicieeeeceeeeee e $ 112 $ 85 $§ 292
NOTE 12. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Investment Income (Loss):
Interest and Dividends on FiXed Maturiti€s .......ccoueveieiiuiiiiiiiieiiee e eeeeee e $ 2274 $ 2355 $ 246.1
Dividends on EQUILY SECUTITHIES .....eoveevieieriieiieieieeiteieiesie et see et seeenees 59.9 38.0 25.7
Equity Method Limited Liability INVeStMENts ..........cccevvrieienenieieieiereeceeie e 9.0 26.4 9.3
Fair Value Option INVEStMENtS..........ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicciicccc 0.7) — —
Short-term INVESTMENLS .......eeveieiieiiciieieie ettt sbeeeeenees 0.6 0.1 0.2
REAL ESTALE ..ottt ettt ettt ettt bt enee 12.1 20.8 27.4
L0ans to POICYNOIACTS ......ccveeuieiieiiiiceieiecie ettt 20.5 19.8 18.9
ORI ..ttt sttt ettt et e b e ae et e te et et reeneenee 0.1 — 0.1
Total INVeStMENt INCOME .......eeiuiieiiiiiieiiieie ettt e e e eebeeaeesseensaens 328.9 340.6 327.7
Investment Expenses:
REAL ESTALE ...ueeutetieeieiiete ettt ettt ettt a et et be st et et s beeneenee 11.3 18.3 26.1
Other INVEStMENt EXPENSES .....veivieiiiiieiiieiieieerieestiesieeseteeiteeteeeteeaeeseesseesseessaessaesseeens 8.5 7.6 5.7
Total INVEStMENT EXPENSES....viiuiiiieieiieiieiieieite ettt ettt ettt sae et ebessesseensessesreenaens 19.8 25.9 31.8
Net INVESTMENT INCOMIE. ... e e e e e e e e e e eenes $ 3091 $ 3147 $ 2959

Other Receivables includes accrued investment income of $65.5 million and $66.7 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013,

respectively.
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NOTE 12. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The components of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Fixed Maturities:

GAINS 0N SALES....c.eeiiiiieicii ettt $ 70 $ 309 $ 569

LL0SSES ON SIS ....eieiieiiieiieieee ettt ettt et et e ettt neenes 0.2) 0.4) (0.1)
Equity Securities:

GAINS ON SALES.....eieuiieiiieiieiieie ettt et et e et e e b e esbeeseessaesseessaessaesssenssessseesseenseensean 33.1 21.8 8.3

LLOSSES ON SALES ....cvvivietieiieieeieetet ettt ettt sttt e be e teesa et e sseeseesaessensesseensebesreeneenes 2.0) (0.5) (0.2)
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments:

GAINS ON SALES.....eieuvitieiieieieeie ettt ettt e ete et e b e st e eteessesbesseese et esseesseseesesseeseessesesseassens — 2.5 —
Real Estate:

GAINS ON SALES.....eieuiieiiieiieieeie ettt e et e et e b e ebe e st eseesseessaessaessseessessseesseenseensenn — 44.2 0.2

LLOSSES ON SAIES .....oviieviieieie ettt ettt e et et ae et e et e et eeae s 0.2) — —
Other Investments:

Gain on Sale Of SUDSIAIATY ....c.eeieiiiiicieieeceee ettt eneens 1.6 — —

Gains 0N OthEr SALES ......ccveriiiiieieieieeeee ettt ettt sttt esbesbeeneens — 0.1 —

LLOSSES ON SIS ....eieuiieeiieiieiiete sttt ettt ettt et et e s e eeebe b e enbeenbeebeeseenes 0.1) (0.1) —

Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SECUTTHES .......eevververiieierierieeeeteieeieerteeeee e eeeese e ereennes 0.1) 0.6 0.3
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESIMENTS .........cooveveirieriiiieiieieiieiee et $ 391 $ 991 § 654
GT0SS GAINS ON SAICS ......ovivieviitietieeeeecet ettt ettt ettt et es et et eae s eteere s e s $ 417 § 995 $ 654
GTOSS LOSSES ON SAIES ....vivieiiiiieiieiieieeieeiteie sttt ettt sttt ebeesa et e sseeseestensessesseensensesreensens 2.5 (1.0) (0.3)
Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SECUTTLIES .......ccvivvieieriiriieieierieeeeieieeeeeeete e 0.1) 0.6 0.3
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS ..........ccuerviiieieriiriieieieieeeeeee e $ 391 § 991 § 654

The components of Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the

years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012

FIXEA MALULIEIES. ......vcvieieeeeecceeeeeeet ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt te et et eneere et eaeene s $ GB7 $ (103)$ (1.9
EQUILY SECUITEIES....eeuveviitieeieieiteeteeiete ettt et ettt et et e sbeste e s e b e sseesaessesseeseessessessesssensesesseessens (7.1) (3.6) (1.9)
REAI ESTALC .....ivviiiiieieieeeteeeee ettt et ettt ettt e te e e aae et e eabeeabe et e enbeeteeereeeneens 2.4 — 3.1)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............occeovevierieieieenienieieeseceeeeseenne $ (152 $§ (139 $ (6.9)
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NOTE 13. INSURANCE EXPENSES

Insurance Expenses for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
COMIMISSIONS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e b et e sttt s b b esesenens $ 3246 $ 3457 § 366.1
GENETAL EXPEIISES ..euvieueieiieiieiiieeiteeiie ettt ettt et et et et esteesaeesttesaaessseenseenseenseenseenseenseenseenes 258.1 257.1 262.9
Taxes, LiCenSES And FEES........oooviiiiiiiiiiiie et eenee e 38.9 42.8 447
Total COSES INCUITE .....veeeieiieciieeiie ettt ettt e sb e erae e e esbeensaeseensaens 621.6 645.6 673.7
Policy Acquisition Costs:
DIETRITEA ...ttt ettt (235.8) (253.4) (266.4)
Amortized 2354 253.9 257.0
Net Policy Acquisition Costs Amortized (Deferred)..........cccevivievieniinieieiienecieieeceneen 0.4) 0.5 9.4)
Life VIF and P&C Customer Relationships AmMOTtized. ..........ccoevevievieriniienenenieieneieeens 7.2 8.3 8.0
INSUTANCE EXPEINSES ..enviiiiieiieiiie ettt ettt et ettt e s e s aeeenteente e b e enbeeseenes $ 6284 $ 6544 $§ 6723
Commissions for servicing policies are expensed as incurred, rather than deferred and amortized.
NOTE 14. INCOME TAXES
The components of Liabilities for Income Taxes at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013
Current INCOmMe TaxX LIBDIITIES ....veveveuiuiiririeieieieici ettt eaes $ 78 $ 1.5
Deferred INCOme TaxX LIabIlItIS ....ccueeruieruieiiiieie ettt e ettt e eseeenneenns 21.5 —
Unrecognized TaX BeneTitS........coiiiiiiiiiiiieieie ettt ettt sttt eneennens 7.2 6.8
Liabilities fOr INCOME TaAXES.....uiiiuieitieeiieeiieeieeie ettt ettt ettt este e teesteeseeeesaeesseesseenseesseanseenseensaesseenssennes $ 365 § 8.3

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the Company’s Net Deferred Income Tax Assets

and Deferred Income Tax Liabilities at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

Deferred Income Tax Assets:
INSUTANCE RESEIVES ..ottt et e ettt e ettt e et e e nteeenbeeesnneeenns
Unearned Premium RESEIVES .......c.iiiiriiiieiiieieeieeteieste ettt ettt steesaensesbesnaennens
Tax Capitalization of Policy Acquisition CoOSES.........cueiririeieiiiinieiitieeieeee et
Payroll and Employee Benefit ACCIUALS........c.ccieieieiiirieiieieie sttt

Deferred Income Tax Liabilities:
IIIVESTMEIIES. ...ttt et e ettt e s et e ettt e st e e st e e st e e e ab e e e bt e e nateeenees
Deferred Policy ACqUISItION COSES ....ueuiitirieierienieeieiente sttt eteete sttt et etesse et estenaesbesseensesbesreennens
Life VIF and P&C Customer RelationShips........c.cocuviiieiiiiieiieieieese e
GOOAWIIL ANA LACEISES -..veveenieiietieiiete ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e besbe e st e sesseeseessenbeeseeneensesesneensenes
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2014 2013
$ 787 $§ 764
35.5 40.2
73.0 73.3
74.0 38.8
31.7 533
9.8 12.6
302.7 294.6
160.1 80.0
106.1 106.0
17.7 20.2
28.4 26.8
7.4 26.0
4.5 3.8
324.2 262.8
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NOTE 14. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The expiration of federal net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards and their related deferred income tax assets is presented
below by year of expiration.

Cljl?rLy- Deferred
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS forwards Tax Asset
Expiring in:
2020 .t bttt ekttt h e a ekt b ettt a et et es et et $ 81 § 2.8
2021 through 2025 ..ottt ettt ettt n et et ene e 30.6 10.8
2026 through 2030 .......c.ccuiuiiiiiiiiiiiei e 29.8 10.4
2031 through 2032 ......ieieeeeee ettt s et n e ne bt n e e eaeneene e 22.0 1.7
TOtAl ALL YIS, ettt $ 905 $ 317

Except for the NOL carryforwards scheduled to expire in 2031 through 2032, all of the NOL carryforwards were acquired in
connection with business acquisitions made in prior years and are subject to annual usage limitations under the Internal
Revenue Code. The Company expects to fully utilize these federal NOL carryforwards.

The Company has not provided for Federal income taxes on $14.7 million of Mutual Savings Life’s income earned prior to
1984 which is not subject to income taxes under certain circumstances. Federal income taxes of $5.1 million would be paid on
such income if it is distributed to shareholders in the future or if it does not continue to meet certain limitations.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of Unrecognized Tax Benefits for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 is as follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012

Balance at BeZinning 0f YAl .........ccocvoiiiviviieiiiiitiecieteeet ettt $ 68 $ 64 $ 6.2
Additions for Tax Positions of Current Period...........ccoecueeviiiieeiieriieieeieseeseeseeeee e 0.1 0.1 —
Additions for Tax Positions 0f Prior YEars.........c.eceviririerieneeieiesiesieeeeieie e 0.3 0.3 0.2
Balance at ENd 0f YEaT........ccoivviiiiiieiiieiieieeetctete ettt $ 72 % 6.8 $ 6.4

The statute of limitations related to Kemper and its eligible subsidiaries’ consolidated Federal income tax returns is closed for
all tax years up to and including 2006. The expiration of the statute of limitations related to the various state income tax returns
that Kemper and its subsidiaries file varies by state.

In July 2014, the Company extended the federal statute of limitations related to its 2007 through 2010 tax years to July 31,
2015. The extension was requested by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) to provide them with additional time to prepare the
necessary documentation for the Joint Committee of Taxation’s (“JCT”) review required by statute. The Company does not
anticipate a material modification to the filed returns or the related refunds that have been received. It is reasonably possible
that the amount of Unrecognized Tax Benefits could decrease by $3.5 million within the next 12 months of the reporting date
because of the JCT finishing its review of the IRS’s report without change or the expiration of the statute of limitations referred
to above.

During the second quarter of 2014, the Illinois Department of Revenue finalized its examinations of the Company’s 2009 and
2010 tax returns with no material change in the Company’s tax liability.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 include $3.4 million, $3.4 million and $3.5 million,
respectively, for tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the
timing of such deductibility. Because of the impact of deferred income tax accounting, other than for interest and penalties, the
disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would not affect the effective income tax rate but would accelerate the payment
of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. The liability
for Unrecognized Tax Benefits included accrued interest of $3.8 million, $3.4 million and $2.9 million at December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively. Tax expense includes interest expense of $0.4 million related to unrecognized tax benefits for each
of the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
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NOTE 14. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The components of Income Tax Expense from Continuing Operations for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Current INCOME TaX EXPENSE ....covvviiiiiiiiieiieieeie ettt sttt es $ @17y § 494 § (433
Deferred Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSEe).......ccevirieriiiiirierierieiieeiesiesieeeeteie st (5.5) (50.1) 12.9
Increase Unrecognized Tax Benefits........cooeririiieiiiiiieiieseeeeieeeeee e 0.4) 0.4) 0.2)
INCOME TAX EXPOINSE....iviiiieiiitiiiieiesie ettt sttt sttt a e et et e s e b st ensebeseeeneenes $ @476) $ (999 § (30.6)

Net income taxes paid were $37.2 million, $42.4 million and $52.2 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

A reconciliation of the Statutory Federal Income Tax Expense and Rate to the Company’s Effective Income Tax Expense and
Rate from Continuing Operations for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was:

2014 2013 2012

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Statutory Federal Income Tax Expense..........c.cc..c..... $ (56.1) 35.0% $ (110.0) 35.0% $ (42.8) 35.0%
Tax-exempt Income and Dividends Received

DedUCHION ...t 9.0 (5.6) 10.6 34 13.9 (11.4)
State INCOME TaXES.....covervieieierieeieieiene e 0.6) 0.4 (0.2) 0.1 (0.8) 0.7
Other, Net.....ooveeriiieiieieireecee e 0.1 0.1) 0.3) 0.1 (0.9) 0.7
Effective Income Tax Expense from Continuing

OPEIALIONS ...ttt $ (47.6) 29.7% $  (99.9) 31.8% $ (30.6) 25.0%

Comprehensive Income Tax Expense included in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Income Tax Expense:

CONINUING OPETATIONS ....vvevietierieiesieeteeteteeteestetesseeseessessesseeseesesseeseessessessesssessessesseesens $ @7.6) $ (999 $ (30.6)

DiscontinUed OPETatiONS ........c.cecveruerierieierieitieieie st ettetesie st et eeeste et eeetesbeeneensesseeseennas 1.1) (1.7) (7.3)
Unrealized Depreciation (Appreciation) on SECUTTLIES.......ueeveeiieriieriieriieriesie e eie e (82.8) 129.1 (34.4)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments on INVestments ...........cocceeveveerenenienienieneennnn 0.4 (0.1) (0.6)
Tax Effects from Postretirement Benefit P1ans ..........c.coooeviiiiiiiiiiniiiieiece 34.7 (30.4) 4.6
Tax Effects from Long-term Equity-based Compensation included in Paid-in Capital........ (1.0) 0.2 0.1)
Comprehensive INCOme TaX EXPENSE.......cveiieiiririiiiiieiiiereiieteeeieteet et $ (974 $ (28) $ (684)

NOTE 15. PENSION BENEFITS

The Company sponsors a qualified defined benefit pension plan (the “Pension Plan). The Pension Plan covers approximately
9,500 participants and beneficiaries, of which 2,200 are active employees. The Pension Plan is closed to new employees hired
after January 1, 2006. The Pension Plan is generally non-contributory, but participation requires or required some employees to
contribute 3% of pay, as defined, per year. Benefits for participants who are or were required to contribute to the Pension Plan
are based on compensation during plan participation and the number of years of participation. Benefits for the vast majority of
participants who are not required to contribute to the Pension Plan are based on years of service and final average pay, as
defined. The Company funds the Pension Plan in accordance with the requirements of ERISA.
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NOTE 15. PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets and Changes in Projected Benefit Obligation for the Pension Plan for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013
Fair Value of Plan Assets at BEZINNING Of YEaL.....ccocouiiiiiriiieiiiiieieieseeeeee e $ 5245 $ 4576
Actual Return 0N PIan ASSELS.......coirieiiiiieieiieiteteeete ettt ettt sttt 41.7 34.5
EMPIOYEr CONITDULIONS .....eveeiieiiitieiieiieie sttt sttt ettt et ettt b ettt e b e b et et e aesaeeneensenbeseeeneenee — 55.0
BENETItS P ...ttt n et neene e 23.2) (22.6)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at ENd Of Year.......ccociviiieieiieiceeecee e 543.0 524.5
Projected Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year..........ccccoiviiiiiiiiniiiiiinieniciceecceceeeeeee e 515.5 553.9
SEIVICE COSE -ttt ettt ettt ettt ittt e e s e bt e b e e st eb e e b e e st eb e et et e st e bt ea et e st eb e et et eneeneatenaeneeneas 8.7 10.8
INEETEST COSE ..ttt ettt ettt et h ettt h ettt b ettt e be bttt et b eseenes 24.8 224
BENETItS PAId ...ttt ettt n et n et et neenes 23.2) (22.6)
PIan AMENAMENTS .....ocviiiiiiiiii ittt ettt e et e e st e te e ae e eaeeetseeaseeaseenseeaseeateeseeseesseeeneeees (0.6) —
ACtUATIA] LOSSES (GAINS) ..cuveuviiieiietieieeiteste sttt ettt ettt ettt et et b e it et be bt et et e bt est et enbesbeeseentenbesneeneens 108.8 (49.0)
Projected Benefit Obligation at End of Year........cccociviiieiiiiiiieiesceeeeeeeee e 634.0 515.5
Funded Status—Plan Assets in Excess (Deficit) of Projected Benefit Obligation...........ccccceceevierivriennnns $ (91.0) § 9.0
Unamortized Amount Reported in AOCT at End of Year: -
Accumulated ACtUArial LLOSS ......c.oocuiiiiiiiiiieiii ettt ettt et ere et es $ (178.6) $ (86.3)
PriOr SETVICE CTEAIT. .. eeuvitiiiieiiiiiitiet ettt bttt ettt be et e st b bt et e nbesbeennens 0.5 —
Unamortized Amount Reported in AOCI at End of Year........cccceviiieieniinieieieeceeeee e $ (178.1) $ (86.3)
Accumulated Benefit Obligation at End of Year............ccocvoveviiovieioiiiiicieeieeceeeeeeeeee s $ 6082 $ 496.2

The measurement dates of the assets and liabilities at end of year presented in the preceding table under the headings, “2014”
and “2013” were December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

The weighted-average discount rate and rate of increase in future compensation levels used to estimate the components of the
Projected Benefit Obligation for the Pension Plan at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were:

2014 2013
DISCOUNT RALE ...ttt ettt ettt e e e st ettt et e st b et e e e st et et e e e st e s e s e e eseeseeseneeneenes 4.10% 4.90%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation LeVelS .........ccevieieiieriiiiiieieie e 3.31 3.05

Weighted-average asset allocations for the Pension Plan at December 31, 2014 and 2013 by asset category were:

ASSET CATEGORY 2014 2013
Cash and Short-term INVESLMENLS ..........cccuiiiieiieiieie ettt e e e e b e e seebeeseesaesseenseenees 4% 8%
Corporate Bonds and NOTES .......c.eeuieieriiriiiieierti sttt ettt sttt ettt esaensesseeseenaessesseeseensenseseeeneenes 29 27
Common and Preferred STOCKS ......oiuiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt et eeibe e beebeebeesaesseesseenes 43 34
EXChange Traded FUNAS.......c.ooviiiiiiiieiet ettt sttt sse e sesaeesa e e sbesneensenes 12 22
ONET ASSELS ...ttt ettt et ettt et h et et b e bt ettt b ettt ettt ettt bt enes 12 9
TOTAL .ttt ettt ettt ettt et et e st et e steebeesa e b e aeetteas e b e eheeRa e b e beeRe e st e b e eseetaens e teeneentensebeereeneenns 100% 100%

The investment objective of the Pension Plan is to produce current income and long-term capital growth through a combination
of equity and fixed income investments which, together with appropriate employer contributions and any required employee
contributions, is adequate to provide for the payment of the benefit obligations of the Pension Plan. The assets of the Pension
Plan may be invested in fixed income and equity investments or any other investment vehicle or financial instrument deemed
appropriate. Fixed income investments may include cash and short-term instruments, U.S. Government securities, corporate
bonds, mortgages and other fixed income investments. Equity investments may include various types of stock, such as large-
cap, mid-cap and small-cap stocks, and may also include investments in investment companies, collective investment funds and
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Kemper common stock (subject to Section 407 and other requirements of ERISA). The Pension Plan has not invested in
Kemper common stock.

The trust investment committee for the Pension Plan, along with its third party fiduciary advisor, periodically reviews the
performance of the Pension Plan’s investments and asset allocation. Several external investment managers, one of which is
Fayez Sarofim & Co. (see Note 23, “Related Parties,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements), manage the equity
investments of the trust for the Pension Plan. Each manager is allowed to exercise investment discretion, subject to limitations,
if any, established by the trust investment committee for the Pension Plan. All other investment decisions are made by the
Company, subject to general guidelines as set by the trust investment committee for the Pension Plan.

The Company determines its Expected Long Term Rate of Return on Plan Assets based primarily on the Company’s
expectations of future returns, with consideration to historical returns, for the Pension Plan’s investments, based on target
allocations of the Pension Plan’s investments.

Fair value measurements for the Pension Plan’s assets at December 31, 2014 are summarized below:

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUthOTIHIES ..o $ 184 $ — 3 — 3 18.4
States and Political Subdivisions ............cccceeveenne — 33 — 33
Corporate Bonds and Notes ..........cccceceveneieennene. — 136.6 — 136.6
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 6.4 — 6.4
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing ........coeceevvevveereeeerieneneeeenreseeenns 98.8 15.0 — 113.8
Other INdUSHIIES ....oveveeieieccceceee e 79.3 2.3 — 81.6
Other Equity Interests:
Collective Investment Funds..............ccoceuenee. — 30.0 — 30.0
Exchange Traded Funds 65.5 — — 65.5
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships........cccocevevconiicicniceee — — 64.5 64.5
Short-term Investments...........cccooeveeeieeieeieeeeeeene. 21.5 — — 21.5
Receivables and Other .........c.cooceveeviereniniiieneneee 1.0 — 0.4 14
TOtAL i $ 2845 $ 193.6 $ 649 $ 543.0

Additional information pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Pension Plan’s assets classified as Level 3 for the year
ended December 31, 2014 is presented below:

Other Equity Receivables

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Interests and Other Total

Balance at Beginning 0f YEar........ccvoeeeieiiiiieieiieesieeeeeee e $ 469 $ 05 § 47.4
Return on Plan Assets Held........c.ooooiiieiiniiiieieieeeeeeeeeeee e 34 — 34
Purchases, Sales and Settlements, Net.........cocuvieeieieiiieiiieeeree e 14.2 0.1) 14.1
Balance at ENd of Year......cccoocieieviiiiiieieicceeeeeee ettt $ 645 $ 04 $ 64.9
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Fair value measurements for the Pension Plan’s assets at December 31, 2013 are summarized below:

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AULNOTIHIES . $ 121 °$ — 3 — 3 12.1
States and Political Subdivisions ...............ccecveee. — 3.1 — 3.1
Corporate Bonds and Notes ...........cccevververvennnne — 127.0 — 127.0
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 4.0 — 4.0
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing ........cceeeveeeeeieeiieeeseeie e 97.5 7.8 — 105.3
Other INAUSEIIES ....cveevviieieeiecieceeceeeeeee e 67.2 1.8 — 69.0
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........cccccoovvveiennnnnnne. 111.7 — — 111.7
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.......cooceevevieneeeeciereceeieese s — — 46.9 46.9
Short-term Investments...........ccceeeveevievierieneeeieenens 42.6 — — 42.6
Receivables and Other ..........ccccoovieeiiieiiiciiceeees 2.3 — 0.5 2.8
TOtal o $ 3334 $ 143.7 § 474 $ 524.5

Additional information pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Pension Plan’s assets classified as Level 3 for the year
ended December 31, 2013 is presented below:

Other Equity Receivables

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Interests and Other Total

Balance at Beginning Of Year........c.ccvecveruiiiiieiieriecieiee ettt $ 269 $ 0.6 § 27.5
Return on Plan Assets Held.........oooviiieriiiiiiiinicieeieeeeeeeee e 3.5 — 3.5
Purchases, Sales and Settlements, NEt ........ccoecierieriierienieeie e 16.5 0.1 16.4
Balance at ENd Of YEAT........ccooviviiiieiiieiiiceeeceeeeeee e $ 469 § 05 $ 474

The components of Comprehensive Pension Expense (Income) for the Pension Plan for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Service Cost Earned DUring the Year...........ccooveviieveuiiciiieieiiceeeeeeeteeesetee et $ 87 $ 108 $ 108
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit Obligation............ccccveiviiericiininenieinineceeeeceeeenn 24.8 22.4 22.4
Expected Return 0n PIan ASSELS.......cceeieievieriirieieiesiieiieeeste et ste et esesreseeensesse e ennens (34.9) (29.7) (29.8)
Amortization of Actuarial LoSS .....c.coeciiiririiiiiiiiiieicceee e 9.7 26.2 18.8
SETIETIIETILS ...ttt ettt sb et b et nae b — — 0.3
Pension Expense Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income...........cccceeeninccnncnn 83 29.7 22.5
Unrecognized Pension Loss (Gain) Arising During the Year........ccccocevevvieneniniencncneenn. 102.0 (53.8) 34.8
Prior Service Credit Arising DUring the Year........ccoccvvivvevierieeieiesiesieeeeeeieee e (0.6) — —
Amortization of Accumulated Unrecognized Pension Loss.........ccceoveveirierieneninienenenieennen 9.7 (26.2) (18.8)
Comprehensive Pension Expense (INCOME) .......occuveruierienieiieeieeie e $ 1000 $ (503) § 385
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The Company estimates that Pension Expense for the Pension Plan for the year ended December 31, 2015 will include expense
of $23.0 million resulting from the amortization of the related accumulated actuarial loss included in AOCI at December 31,
2014.

Total Pension Expense Recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income as presented in the preceding table includes
service cost benefits earned and reported in discontinued operations of $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The weighted-average discount rate, rate of increase in future compensation levels and expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets used to develop the components of Pension Expense for the Pension Plan for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 were:

2014 2013 2012
DiISCOUNE RALE ...ttt e 4.90% 4.05% 4.60%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation LeVels..........cocveveriririenieneninieiecceceiec e 3.05 3.08 3.27
Expected Long Term Rate of Return on Plan ASSetS........ccevvieeevierierieieieieseeieiesie e 7.00 7.00 7.00

On September 3, 2013, the Company made a voluntary cash contribution of $55.0 million to the Pension Plan. The Company
did not contribute to the Pension Plan in 2014 or 2012. The Company does not expect that it will be required to contribute to the
Pension Plan in 2015, but could make a voluntary contribution pursuant to the maximum funding limits under ERISA.

The following benefit payments (net of participant contributions), which consider expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid from the Pension Plan:

Years Ending December 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020-2024
Estimated Pension Benefit Payments ......................... § 252 % 265 % 278 § 292 § 304 § 169.6

The Company also sponsors a non-qualified supplemental defined benefit pension plan (the “Supplemental Plan”). The
unfunded liability related to the Supplemental Plan was $31.0 million and $23.3 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Pension expense for the Supplemental Plan was $1.8 million, $1.8 million and $1.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. An actuarial loss of $7.0 million before taxes, an actuarial gain of $1.5
million before taxes and an actuarial loss of $1.3 million before taxes are included in Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) for
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Company also sponsors several defined contribution benefit plans covering most of its employees. The Company made
contributions to those plans of $7.3 million, $7.3 million and $7.8 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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NOTE 16. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The Company sponsors an other than pension postretirement employee benefit plan (“OPEB”) that provides medical, dental
and/or life insurance benefits to approximately 500 retired and 300 active employees (the “OPEB Plan”). The Company
generally is self-insured for the benefits under the OPEB Plan. The medical plan generally provides for a limited number of
years of medical insurance benefits at retirement based on the participant’s attained age at retirement and number of years of
service until specified dates and generally requires participant contributions, with most contributions adjusted annually.

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets and Changes in Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013
Fair Value of Plan Assets at BeZiNning 0f YeaL........ccceoieiieiieeieiie ettt $ — 3 —
EMPIOYEr CONIIDULIONS ....vevieiieiieiieiieieie ettt sttt ettt ettt ettt et et esbeeteessebesaeeseensensesseeseensensesseeneenes 34 2.9
Plan Participants’ CONtIIDULIONS. ........c.oeuiiiiieiiiiinieieiiterte ettt 1.2 1.2
BeNETItS Pl ...c.viiiieieieieciceteeee ettt ettt ettt ettt et e aeese et e b e eae st et et eaeeneenes (4.6) 4.1
Fair Value of Plan Assets at End of Year......c.ccoocoiiiiiniiiiiiiciccscceeeeeeeseee e — —
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year...........ccccoeveeiieniinienieeie e 351 42.8
SEIVICE COST .ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt e bt bbbt bt es et a et s e e bt et et eseeb et et et ebeebeneeeteben 0.2 0.2
IIEETEST COSE ..ttt ettt b b et ettt h et e bbbt et e bt e bt e st et e eb e e st ea s et e eaeebtente bt sbeeneenee 1.1 1.2
Plan Participants’ CONtIIDULIONS. .........ecveriiiieieriestieieiesteeteeteeteste st eseetestesteesaensesseeseessensessesseessensesseessenes 1.2 1.2
BENEfItS PAIA ..o.vviiiiiiiieiicieeee ettt ettt ettt ettt e b et e et e e beeteeetaeetteenaeeraeenseen (4.6) 4.1)
Medicare Part D Subsidy RECEIVEA .......ooueiiiiieiiiiiieie ettt 0.1 —
ACTUATIAL GAINS ...vviiiiiciiieie ettt ettt ettt et e e aeeeteeeaseeaeeetseesseeaseesseeabeesssesbeeseesssessseessessseanseans (2.0) (6.2)
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at End of Year.........ccccoviviiiivininiiiininiecceens 31.1 35.1
Funded Status—Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation in Excess of Plan Assets.................... $ @LD) $ (350D
Unamortized Actuarial Gain Reported in AOCI at End of Year.........ccoccovvvievieniinieieeececieec s $ 186 $ 184

The measurement dates of the assets and liabilities at end of year in the preceding table under the headings “2014” and “2013”
were December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

The weighted-average discount rate and rate of increase in future compensation levels used to develop the components of the
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were:

2014 2013
DISCOUNT RALE ...ttt ettt sttt e et e st ettt e e st b et e e st e s e e e e e st e s e e e e eseeseeseneeneenes 3.40% 4.00%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation LeVels .........ccevieieiieriiieiieieiicieeieseeee e 2.68 2.10

The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31,
2014 was 8.0% for 2015, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2023 and remaining at that level thereafter for medical
benefits and 7.5% for 2015, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2023 and remaining at that level thereafter for prescription
drug benefits. The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at
December 31, 2013 was 8.5% for 2014, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2021 and remaining at that level thereafter for
medical benefits and 8.0% for 2014, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2022 and remaining at that level thereafter for
prescription drug benefits.

A one-percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would have increased the Accumulated
Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2014 by $1.7 million and 2014 OPEB expense by $0.1 million. A one-
percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would have increased the Accumulated
Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2013 by $2.1 million and 2013 OPEB expense by $0.1 million.
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The components of Comprehensive OPEB Income for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Service Cost Earned DUring the Year..........coovvveviieiiuiriiiiiieiieteeeeeieeieieiee et $ 02 $ 02 $ 0.2
Interest Cost on Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation ...........ccccoecvevierierieennnnne. 1.1 1.2 1.6
Amortization of Actuarial GaiN............ccoovviiiiiiieiiieiecieeee ettt ens (1.8) (1.2) (1.2)
OPEB Expense (Income) Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income..................... 0.5) 0.2 0.6
Unrecognized OPEB Gain Arising During the Year..........ccoccvevevierieneeieieieeeeeeiesie s 2.0) (6.2) (5.5)
Amortization of Accumulated Unrecognized OPEB Gain..........cccceovevvevieiieneninieeneneenee. 1.8 1.2 1.2
Comprehensive OPEB INCOME......c.couiiuieieieiiieiieieie ettt eteeseessesae e essesesressaensessesreesaens $ ©0.7) § “4.8) $ 3.7

The Company estimates that OPEB Expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 will include income of $1.5 million
resulting from the amortization of the related accumulated actuarial gain included in AOCI at December 31, 2014.

The weighted-average discount rate and rate of increase in future compensation levels used to develop OPEB Expense for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were:

2014 2013 2012
DISCOUNE RALE ...ttt ettt et 4.00% 3.15% 4.25%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation LeVelS.........cccveviriirieieiienieieieieseeeeiesie e 2.10 2.10 2.10

The Company expects to contribute $3.2 million, net of the expected Medicare Part D subsidy, to its OPEB Plan to fund benefit
payments in 2015.

The following benefit payments (net of participant contributions), which consider expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

Years Ending December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020-2024
Estimated Benefit Payments:
Excluding Medicare Part D Subsidy.........c.ccuc..... $ 36§ 37§ 36 § 35 8 34 § 138
Expected Medicare Part D Subsidy ..........cc......... (0.4) (0.4) (0.4) (0.4) (0.4) (1.6)
Net Estimated Benefit Payments ..............coccoevevenee. $ 32 % 33 $ 32 $ 31 % 30 § 122

NOTE 17. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property and casualty insurance and life and health insurance businesses.
The Company conducts its operations through two operating segments: Property & Casualty Insurance and Life & Health Insurance.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s principal products are personal automobile insurance, both standard and
nonstandard risks, homeowners insurance, other personal insurance and commercial automobile insurance. These products are
primarily distributed through independent agents, employer-sponsored voluntary benefit programs and other affinity
relationships. The Life & Health Insurance segment’s principal products are individual life, accident, health and property
insurance. These products are distributed by career agents employed by the Company as well as exclusive and non-exclusive
independent agents and brokers.

The Company’s earned premiums are derived in the United States. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as
those described in Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Capital expenditures for long-lived assets by operating segment are immaterial.

It is the Company’s management practice to allocate certain corporate expenses, primarily compensation costs for corporate
employees and related facility costs, included in Interest and Other Expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income to its
insurance operations. The amount of such allocated corporate expenses was $42.1 million, $39.7 million and $31.7 million for
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the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company does not allocate Net Realized Gains on Sales
of Investments, Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings, interest expense on debt or postretirement benefit plans, and

actuarial gains and losses on its postretirement benefit plans to its operating segments.

Segment Assets at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE ...........ocveviiiieiietiieietiieteiieietese ettt ettt esess s sesseseseseseseesesesseseseesesenas $2,486.1 $ 2,648.6
Life & HEalth INSUTANCE .........oiiiiiieieeeee ettt e e e e et e e et e e enteeeeteeeenteeeesaeeeneeeeenaeean 4,810.6 4,545.6
Corporate and Other, INET.......cc.eiiiieieieit ettt ettt sttt ettt e b e sae et et e aesaeeseensenbeseeeneenes 536.7 462.2
TOTAL ASSEES ...ttt ettt ettt et e et e et e e eaa e e e ta e e eaeeeeeaeeeeaeeeeaneeeenteeeenaeeeaaeeeneeesrteeenteeeeraeeeteeeanaeean $ 7,833.4 §$ 7,656.4

Earned Premiums by product line for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012

Personal AULOIMODILE .......c.ooiviiiiiie ettt ens $ 8314 $ 959.1 $ 1,050.1
HOMIGOWIIETS ... ittt ettt ettt et e bt e bt e saesae e e st e sabessseesseenseensaenseenseenseenseennes 3124 326.2 318.0
Other Personal Property and Casualty INSUIANCe ............ccevvervieeeienienieeieieieseeeeie e 127.4 134.1 136.9
Commercial AULOMODILE ........ocuiiuiiiiiiiiiieiee ettt 54.8 52.3 43.5
LT ettt ettt ettt e te s b e b e beera e b e eseereentenbeeteeteensebenreenaens 387.6 392.7 393.4
Accident and Health ..........ccooiiiiiiiiii et 148.6 161.4 165.2
Total EArned PIEMIUITIS . ...coouviiiieiiiieie ettt et ea e e e e et e eeaaeeeaeeeeaseeeaneeenseeenes $1,862.2 $2,025.8 $ 2,107.1

Segment Revenues, including a reconciliation to Total Revenues, for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Segment Revenues:
Property & Casualty Insurance:
Earned PrEmMIUITIS .....oouviiiiieieeeee ettt e ettt eeeeeaeeeteeeneesaeeeneeeneeenaeenneeneenean $1,249.5 $1,3929 $ 14672
Net Investment INCOME .......cccuiiiiiiiiiiieiiieee ettt e e e saee e 72.7 90.9 77.9
Oher INCOME ...ttt ettt et et e et et e sseeseestessesseeseensessesseeneans 0.5 0.5 0.7
Total Property & Casualty INSUTANCE.........ccevirierieriiiieieiesteeteeie et 1,322.7 1,484.3 1,545.8
Life & Health Insurance:
Earned Premitms..........cveieiiriieieieiecieteie sttt ettt st eneeneas 612.7 632.9 639.9
Net Investment INCOME .......cccuiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt e e eaee e 218.7 209.9 204.3
Oher INCOME ...ttt ettt ettt e e s e eseeseessesseeseensensesseeneans 0.9 0.2 0.1
Total Life & Health INSUTANCe..........ccovieieiiiiiiieieit e 832.3 843.0 844.3
Total SegMENt REVEINUES .......coiuiiiiiiiieiiieit ettt e e e eseeseensaens 2,155.0 2,327.3 2,390.1
Net Realized Gains on the Sales of INVEStMENLS ......cc.evvirierieriiiieieieeeceeeee e 39.1 99.1 65.4
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings..........c.ccecvevevevieiieneninieienienceiene e (15.2) (13.9) (6.9)
ORI .ttt ettt ettt ettt be st sa e b e et e e st et e teereentenbeereettensenbeereenaens 17.7 14.0 13.7
TOtAl REVEIUES .....veiivvieeteeeetee ettt ettt e e e e et e e e aeeeeaaeeeaeeeeaseeeneeennneeenes $2,196.6 $24265 $2462.3
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Segment Operating Profit (Loss), including a reconciliation to Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes, for
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Segment Operating Profit (Loss):

Property & Casualty INSULANCE .........c.eeevevirieieriieieiieieteeietetet ettt es e esees $ 271 $ 1396 § (35.6)

Life & Health INSUTANCE.......ccueiuiriieieieiiiieieee e 141.9 136.9 140.4
Total Segment Operating Profit........ccovieieiieiiiieieie et 169.0 276.5 104.8
Corporate and Other Operating LOSS......ccuevueriririerieiiiiieieresieetee ettt (32.7) (47.3) (40.9)
Total OPerating Profit........c.cccovieieiiiiicieieese ettt ettt sbe e ennens 136.3 229.2 63.9
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESTMENTS .......cc.cveciriirieieiniriiiiincreteceeeeceeee e 39.1 99.1 65.4
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.........c..cceevvieviienienienienienieeee e (15.2) (13.9) (6.9)
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes ........c.eceverveivireneiieneneceenn. $ 1602 $ 3144 §$§ 1224

Segment Net Operating Income (Loss), including a reconciliation to Income from Continuing Operations, for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012
Segment Net Operating Income (Loss):

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE .......c.ooiiviieiieiiieieiietieeee e $ 249 § 1006 $ (109

Life & Health INSUTANCE. .....coiuiiiiiiiiiiiieesee e 91.8 89.3 90.8
Total Segment Net Operating INCOME ........c.evuiririeriiiiiiieierie ettt 116.7 189.9 79.9
Corporate and Other Net Operating LOSS ......ccieiecieririiieieitieeeiesiesre et seeeaesseseesnens (19.6) (30.7) (26.1)
Consolidated Net Operating INCOME .......c.cerveruiriirieriiriieiieieste ettt eneens 97.1 159.2 53.8
Net Income (Loss) From:

Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENLS .......ccvevviiviiieniiriieieieeeeeee e 25.4 64.4 425

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ..........ceceveveeieiienininienieneneeienie e 9.9 9.1 4.5)
Income from Continuing OPEIatioNS..........ecuerverreerierierteeiertesteeeeeessesseeseesessesseeseesessesseessens $ 1126 $§ 2145 § 918

Amortization of Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs by Operating Segment for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE........ccveeuieieiieriieiieieie ettt sbe e enaens $ 1875 §$ 2072 $ 2126
Life & Health INSUTANCE ......ouiiiiriieieieeieeiieiet ettt et ennens 47.9 46.7 44.4
TOtal AMOTTIZATION. .. .eviitieeieiete ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e b e beeteesae s e sseeseessessesseessensesbesseessans $ 2354 § 2539 § 2570
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NOTE 18. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Company accounts for its former consumer finance business and its former Unitrin Business Insurance operations as
discontinued operations.

Summary financial information included in Income from Discontinued Operations for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2014 2013 2012
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes:
RESUILS OF OPEIALIONS .......oovveviiviiieieeietieteeeeee ettt ettt ettt sere e s s eaeenes $ — 3 — 3 (0.2)
Gain on Sale of Loan Portfolio — — 12.9
Change in Estimate of Retained Liabilities Arising from Discontinued Operations.. 3.0 4.9 6.2
Income from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes..........ccocevveeirerienieirerieneennnne. 3.0 4.9 18.9
INCOME TaX EXPEINSE....cviivieeieiiiiieiieieieete ettt ettt ettt teese et e s e eseessessessesseessessesreesaans 1.1) (1.7) (7.3)
Income from Discontinued OPerations..........ccecieeerierierieierierieeeeiesteeeeeeeie e sreeseensesreennens $ 19 § 32 % 11.6

Income from Discontinued Operations Per Unrestricted Share:
$ 004 $ 006 § 020
$ 004 $ 006 $ 0.20

In 2012 the Company’s former consumer finance business sold its inactive loan portfolio at a gain of $12.9 million, net of
transaction, shutdown and other costs.

In 2008, the Company sold its Unitrin Business Insurance operations. The Company retained Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves for unpaid insured losses that occurred prior to the date of the sale. Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves reported
in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets include $69.3 million and $82.0 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, for the retained liabilities. In accordance with GAAP, changes in the Company’s estimate of such retained
liabilities after the sale are reported as a separate component of the results of discontinued operations. See Note 5, “Property
and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

NOTE 19. CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE

Catastrophes and natural disasters are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events
and natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and
winter storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and will continue to be, a material factor in the results of operations
and financial position of the Company’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of these insured
losses occurring in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses may contribute to material year-to-year
fluctuations in the results of operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are more
likely to occur at certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and casualty
insurance claims. The Company has adopted the industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events
promulgated by ISO to track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when the event
causes $25.0 million or more in direct insured losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers.
ISO-classified catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The discussions
that follow utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in certain regions, and reinsurance. To limit
its exposures to catastrophic events, the Company maintains various catastrophe reinsurance programs for its property and
casualty insurance businesses.
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Coverage for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2014
to December 31, 2014 is provided in various layers as presented below:

Catastrophe Losses and

LAE P
ercentage
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Property & Casualty Insurance Segment:
RELAINE ..c.ceiiieceie ettt ettt $ — 3 50.0 —%
1St Layer Of COVETAZE ....c.vieeieiietieiieieie et ete e ettt ettt et e st e s teesseeseteeneeenaeenseeneeens 50.0 100.0 95.0
20d Layer OFf COVETAZE ...cuvevieierieieiieiieiete sttt sttt ettt eae et ebeseeeneense e s 100.0 200.0 95.0
31d Layer Of COVETAZE ...ccuveuveviriieiieientieieee sttt ettt sttt bt 200.0 400.0 95.0

The Company’s catastrophe reinsurance in 2014 also included reinsurance coverage for both the Property & Casualty Insurance
and Life & Health Insurance segments from the FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described

above.

Coverage for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2013
to December 31, 2013 is provided in various layers as presented below:

Catastrophe Losses and
LAE

Percentage
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
RELAINEA ...ttt $ — 50.0 —%
1St Layer Of COVETAZE.....c.veveieeiieiieieeteeiteie sttt sttt sttt ettt et te b eneenee b e 50.0 100.0 65.0
2Nd LaYer OFf COVETAZE ....veevieeieiiieeiie e eiie et et eie et etee st eseaesaeeseeesseesnaeesseenseenseenseens 100.0 200.0 95.0
30d Layer Of COVETAZE ....cuveierieeieieieeieeeieie sttt sttt ettt ereentenbeseeeseense e 200.0 350.0 90.0
4th Layer 0f COVETAZE ......cevuiriiieiiiiiieieiieiertee ettt 350.0 450.0 50.0

The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment in 2013 also included reinsurance
coverage, under a policy that expired on June 1, 2013, for catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions lower than those
presented in the preceding table. The Company’s catastrophe reinsurance in 2013 also included reinsurance coverage for both
the Property & Casualty Insurance and Life & Health Insurance segments from the FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida at
retentions lower than those described above.

Coverage for the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 is
provided in various layers as presented below:

Catastrophe Losses and

Percentage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Property & Casualty Insurance Segment:

REEAINEM ...ttt ettt $ — $ 50.0 —%

1St LaYer Of COVETAZE. ... cueeuieiiriieiieiesie ettt sttt sttt s ae 50.0 100.0 65.0

20d LaYer OF COVETAZE ..eevveuvevieiieieieeiieieie sttt et et eteeeetesteeseesaebesseeseensessesseensensens 100.0 200.0 95.0

31d Layer Of COVETAZE ....cuveuveiiiieiieieeteeiieteste ettt sttt ettt ettt sttt st 200.0 350.0 90.0

4t Layer Of COVEIAZE ...vveveririieeieieiteeieeiete sttt et e ste e e e eaesseeseessesesseeseensessesseensensens 350.0 450.0 50.0
Life & Health Segment—Property Insurance Operations:

RELAINEA ..ottt ettt $ — 3 8.0 —%

1St Layer Of COVETAZE. ... eoveierieeiieiieiesie ettt ettt sttt eaestesseensenbesteeneensens 8.0 15.0 70.0

20d Layer Of COVETAZE ....cuveuveieiieieieiiteiieie sttt ettt ettt sttt st sbe e ae 15.0 40.0 70.0
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The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment in 2012 also included reinsurance
coverage for catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions lower than those presented in the preceding table. The
Company’s catastrophe reinsurance in 2012 also included reinsurance coverage for both the Property & Casualty Insurance and
Life & Health Insurance segments from the FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described
above.

In the event that the Company’s incurred catastrophe losses and LAE covered by any of its catastrophe reinsurance programs
presented in the three preceding tables exceed the retention for that particular layer, each of the programs required one
reinstatement of such coverage. In such an instance, the Company is required to pay a reinstatement premium to the reinsurers
to reinstate the full amount of reinsurance available under such layer. The reinstatement premium is a percentage of the original
premium based on the ratio of the losses in excess of the Company’s retention to the reinsurers’ coverage limit.

Reinsurance premiums for the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs, the NC Program and the FHCF Program
reduced earned premiums for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 by the following:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012

Property & Casualty Insurance $ 176 $ 236 $ 251
Life & Health INSUANCE .......c.eiuiiiieiiiiiiiiccicnectet ettt 0.1 — 2.0
Total Ceded Catastrophe Reinsurance Premitms...........ccveeverveeeeienienieeeeieieee e seeennens $ 177 § 236 $ 271

Catastrophe losses and LAE (including reserve development), net of reinsurance recoveries, for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012 by business segment are presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2013 2012

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE.........ccueeuieieiieiiieiieieie sttt e et beeta s e b reenaens $ 807 § 346 $ 1121
Life & Health INSUTANCE ......coviitiriieieieeiecieee ettt ettt enaens 3.1 1.6 6.1
Total Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........ccccoiiiieiiiiiiiieieieeteee ettt $ 838 § 362 §$§ 1182

Total catastrophe loss and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance recoverables, developed favorably by $14.7 million, $14.5 million
and $6.3 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Property & Casualty Insurance segment reported favorable
catastrophe reserve development of $15.8 million, $12.5 million and $6.4 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The
Life & Health Insurance segment reported adverse catastrophe reserve development of $1.1 million in 2014, favorable
catastrophe reserve development of $2.0 million in 2013 and adverse catastrophe reserve development of $0.1 million in 2012.

In late October 2012, Superstorm Sandy, at one point a level two hurricane while over the Atlantic Ocean, caused a significant
amount of damage in several northeastern states. Catastrophe losses and LAE for the year ended December 31, 2012 include $48.5
million related to Superstorm Sandy.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophe losses is inherently uncertain and the actual ultimate cost of
a claim, net of actual reinsurance recoveries, may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. The Company’s
estimates of direct catastrophe losses are generally based on inspections by claims adjusters and historical loss development
experience for areas that have not been inspected or for claims that have not yet been reported. The Company’s estimates of
direct catastrophe losses are based on the coverages provided by its insurance policies. The Company’s homeowners and
dwelling insurance policies do not provide coverage for losses caused by floods, but generally provide coverage for physical
damage caused by wind or wind-driven rain. Accordingly, the Company’s estimates of direct losses for homeowners and
dwelling insurance do not include losses caused by flood. Depending on the policy, automobile insurance may provide coverage
for losses caused by flood. Estimates of the number and severity of claims ultimately reported are influenced by many
variables, including, but not limited to, repair or reconstruction costs and determination of cause of loss that are difficult to
quantify and will influence the final amount of claim settlements. All these factors, coupled with the impact of the availability
of labor and material on costs, require significant judgment in the reserve setting process. A change in any one or more of these
factors is likely to result in an ultimate net claim cost different from the estimated reserve. The Company’s estimates of indirect
losses from wind pools and joint underwriting associations are based on a variety of factors, including, but not limited to, actual
or estimated assessments provided by or received from such entities, insurance industry estimates of losses, and estimates of the
Company’s market share in the assessable states. Actual assessments may differ materially from these estimated amounts.
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In addition to the reinsurance programs described in Note 19, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries utilize other reinsurance arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide
greater diversification of risk and to minimize exposures on larger risks. The ceding of insurance does not discharge the primary
liability of the original insurer. Accordingly, insurance reserve liabilities are reported gross of any estimated recovery from
reinsurers in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with
the insurance reserve liability and are included in Other Receivables in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Earned Premiums ceded on long-duration and short-duration policies were $26.0 million, $33.9 million and $42.5 million for
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, of which $17.7 million, $23.6 million and $27.1 million,
respectively, was related to catastrophe reinsurance. See Note 19, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information regarding the Company’s catastrophe reinsurance programs. Certain insurance
subsidiaries assume business from other insurance companies and involuntary pools. Earned Premiums assumed on long-
duration and short-duration policies were $57.1 million, $52.7 million and $44.0 million for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Trinity and Capitol are parties to a quota share reinsurance agreement whereby Trinity assumes 100% of the business written by
Capitol, subject to a cap, effective April 1, 2012, for ceded losses for dwelling coverage. Earned Premiums assumed by Trinity
from Capitol were $21.9 million, $22.4 million and $25.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Capitol is a mutual insurance company and, accordingly, is owned by its policyholders. Trinity and ORCC, a
subsidiary of Capitol, are parties to a quota share reinsurance agreement whereby Trinity assumes 100% of the business written
by ORCC, subject to a cap, effective January 1, 2013, for ceded losses for dwelling coverage. Earned Premiums assumed by
Trinity from ORCC were $6.7 million, $7.2 million and $8.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Five employees of the Company serve as directors of Capitol’s five member board of directors. Nine employees of the
Company also serve as directors of ORCC’s nine member board of directors. Kemper’s subsidiary, United Insurance, provides
claims and administrative services to Capitol and ORCC. In addition, agents appointed by Kemper’s subsidiary, The Reliable
Life Insurance Company, and who are employed by United Insurance, are also appointed by Capitol and ORCC to sell property
insurance products for the Company’s Life & Health Insurance segment. The Company also provides certain investment
services to Capitol and ORCC.
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The Company classifies its Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities as available for sale and reports these
investments at fair value. The Company classifies certain investments in mutual funds included in Other Investments as trading
securities and reports these investments at fair value. The Company has no material liabilities that are measured and reported at
fair value.

The valuation of assets measured at fair value in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2014 is
summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AULNOTIHES <. eee e $ 1292 $ 2163 $ — $ 345.5
States and Political Subdivisions ..........cc.ccccevene. — 1,477.1 — 1,477.1
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOtES......c.eevveveiiieiieciieee e — 2,517.9 360.6 2,878.5
Redeemable Preferred Stocks.........cccecvenennene. — — 6.7 6.7
Collateralized Loan Obligations....................... — — 64.4 64.4
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed.................. — 1.5 3.9 5.4
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities........................ 129.2 4,212.8 435.6 4,777.6
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 84.7 5.0 89.7
Other IndUStries .....cveevveieiieieieee e — 34 16.4 19.8
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing ........cceceeeeveerereeieeneneeeeneneene 50.9 5.7 0.6 57.2
Other IndUStIIES ....oveeveenieieeeieecceee e 59.0 0.8 16.8 76.6
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........cccccoovvveiennnnnnne. 202.7 — — 202.7
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships........oocveevevieeeeeeieneseeieese s — — 186.2 186.2
Total Investments in Equity Securities ...................... 312.6 94.6 225.0 632.2
Fair Value Option Investments:
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships ..........ooeveveueeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenenennas — — 53.3 53.3
Other Investments:
Trading SECUTTtIes .....c.cccevviveureirieieieereieiecane 4.9 — — 4.9
TOtal o $ 446.7 $ 43074 $ 7139 $ 5,468.0

At December 31, 2014, the Company had unfunded commitments to invest an additional $97.9 million in certain limited
liability investment companies and limited partnerships that will be included in Other Equity Interests when funded.
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The valuation of assets measured at fair value in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2013 is
summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUThOTIHIES ..o $ 1212 $ 241.0 $ — 3 362.2
States and Political Subdivisions ...............ccoccveen. — 1,361.0 — 1,361.0
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOeS.........ccceeevverivieiieiieeeieeeeeeens — 2,429.6 364.1 2,793.7
Redeemable Preferred Stocks.........ccceveeeeenen. — — 7.4 7.4
Collateralized Loan Obligations....................... — — 44.7 44.7
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed.................. — 1.5 4.5 6.0
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities........................ 121.2 4,033.1 420.7 4,575.0
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 80.8 5.0 85.8
Other IndUStIIes ....oveeveeieiiiicicieccee e — 10.5 13.9 24.4
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing .........ceceevvereereeienienieneeeenieseeenes 95.1 7.3 2.2 104.6
Other INAUSHIIES ...covveeereeeieeieeieeieeeeee e 71.7 2.2 11.0 84.9
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.......c.cccccovivinienennnne. 124.9 — — 124.9
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships........ccecvevcoivcncnccnincccne, — — 173.9 173.9
Total Investments in Equity Securities ...................... 291.7 100.8 206.0 598.5
Other Investments:
Trading SECUTTtIeS .....c.cccevueveuireniiieieiieecieeaene 5.0 — — 5.0
TOtAl .o $ 4179 $ 4,1339 § 626.7 $ 5,178.5

The Company’s investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 1 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of
U.S. Treasury Bonds and Notes. The Company’s investments in Equity Securities that are classified as Level 1 in the two
preceding tables consist of either investments in publicly-traded common stocks or exchange traded funds. The Company’s
investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 2 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of investments in
corporate bonds, obligations of states and political subdivisions, and bonds and mortgage-backed securities of U.S. government
agencies. The Company’s investments in Equity Securities that are classified as Level 2 in the two preceding tables primarily
consist of investments in preferred stocks. The Company uses a leading, nationally recognized provider of market data and
analytics to price the vast majority of the Company’s Level 2 measurements. The provider utilizes evaluated pricing models that
vary by asset class and incorporate available trade, bid and other market information. Because many fixed maturity securities
do not trade on a daily basis, the provider’s evaluated pricing applications apply available information through processes such
as benchmark curves, benchmarking of like securities, sector groupings, and matrix pricing to prepare evaluations. In addition,
the provider uses model processes to develop prepayment and interest rate scenarios. The pricing provider’s models and
processes also take into account market convention. For each asset class, teams of its evaluators gather information from market
sources and integrate relevant credit information, perceived market movements and sector news into the evaluated pricing
applications and models. The Company generally validates the measurements obtained from its primary pricing provider by
comparing them with measurements obtained from one additional pricing provider that provides either prices from recent
market transactions or quotes in inactive markets or evaluations based on its own proprietary models.
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The Company investigates significant differences related to the values provided. On completion of its investigation,
management exercises judgment to determine the price selected and whether adjustments, if any, to the price obtained from the
Company’s primary pricing provider would warrant classification of the price as Level 3. In instances where a measurement
cannot be obtained from either pricing provider, the Company generally will evaluate bid prices from one or more binding
quotes obtained from market makers to value investments in inactive markets and classified by the Company as Level 2. The
Company generally classifies securities when it receives non-binding quotes or indications as Level 3 securities unless the
Company can validate the quote or indication against recent transactions in the market.

The Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 3 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of
privately placed securities not rated by a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization and are priced primarily using a
market yield approach. A market yield approach uses a risk-free rate plus a credit spread depending on the underlying credit
profile of the security. For floating rate securities, the risk-free rate used in the market yield is the contractual floating rate of
the security. For each individual security, the Company or the Company’s third party appraiser gathers information from market
sources, relevant credit information, perceived market movements and sector news and determines an appropriate market yield
for each security. The market yield selected is then used to discount the estimated future cash flows of the security to determine
the fair value. The Company separately evaluates market yields based upon asset class to assess the reasonableness of the
recorded fair value. For non-investment-grade Investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 3, the two primary
asset classes are senior debt and junior debt. Senior debt includes those securities that receive first priority in a liquidation and
junior debt includes any fixed maturity security with other than first priority in a liquidation.

The table below presents quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs utilized by the Company in
determining fair values for fixed maturity investments in corporate securities classified as Level 3 at December 31, 2014.

‘Weighted
Unobservable Total Range of Unobservable Average
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Input Fair Value Inputs Yield
INVeStMENt-Zrade ......c.coveveriieiieieiecieeeee e Market Yield $§ 107.0 2.8% - 6.9% 3.9%
Non-investment-grade:
SeNIOr DEDE ..o Market Yield 92.7 38 - 145 10.6
JUnior Debt......co.cooiiiiiiiic e Market Yield 149.9 82 - 210 13.4
Collateralized Loan Obligations.............cceeeeveeeevievieereeeeieneae Market Yield 64.4 277 - 8.1 5.2
OhET ..ttt be e Various 21.6
Total Fixed Maturity Investments in Corporate Securities......... $ 435.6

The table below presents quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs utilized by the Company in
determining fair values for fixed maturity investments in corporate securities classified as Level 3 at December 31, 2013.

Unobservable Total Range of Unobservable ‘Xsiegrl:lgg

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Input Fair Value Inputs Yield
Investment-grade ............ccoocvveviieiiieniieiecieeeeeee e Market Yield $ 108.5 1.0% - 6.0% 4.3%
Non-investment-grade:

Senior DEbt .....cvieieiieieiicieeect e Market Yield 93.9 42 - 15.6 8.6

JUNIOT DEDL....oeiiiiiiciicicc e Market Yield 153.5 88 - 266 14.2
Collateralized Loan Obligations..........cccevveeeeeerieniesreeeeriennenns Market Yield 447 32 - 6.8 43
OhET .ttt e Various 20.1
Total Fixed Maturity Investments in Corporate Securities......... $ 420.7

For an investment in a fixed maturity security, an increase in the yield used to determine the fair value of the security will
decrease the fair value of the security. A decrease in the yield used to determine fair value will increase the fair value of the
security, but the fair value increase is generally limited to par if the security is currently callable.

The Company’s other investments that are classified as Level 3 primarily consist of Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships, but also certain Preferred Stocks and Common Stocks. The Company either uses valuations provided by third
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party fund managers, third party appraisers, or that are generated internally. These valuations typically employ various
valuation techniques commonly used in the industry, including earnings multiples based on comparable public securities,
industry-specific non-earnings based multiples, market yields based on comparable public securities and discounted cash flow
models.

Information by security type pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments classified as Level 3 for
the year ended December 31, 2014 is presented below:

Fixed Maturities Equity Securities
Corporate Other Preferred
Bonds Redeemable Collateralized Mortgage- and Other Fair
and Preferred Loan and Asset- Common Equity Value
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Notes Stocks Obligations backed Stocks Interests Option Total

Balance at Beginning of
Year. oo $ 3641 § 74 $ 447 $ 45 $ 321 $ 1739 $§ — $ 6206.7

Total Gains (Losses):
Included in Consolidated

Statement of Income.... 3.4) — 0.2 0.1 1.1 2.7 0.7) —
Included in Other
Comprehensive Income.. 5.1 0.1) (1.0) 0.1 0.5 2.2 — 6.8
Purchases.........ccccoeveeveninnnne 201.4 — 26.1 — 8.9 53.0 58.0 347.4
Settlements..........ccccceevennenne. (126.4) (0.6) — (0.8) 4.5) (39.8) — (172.1)
Sales ..o (79.0) — (5.6) — 2.2) (5.8) 4.0) (96.6)
Transfers into Level 3 ......... — — — — 3.6 — — 3.6
Transfers out of Level 3....... 1.2) — — — 0.7) — — 1.9)
Balance at End of Year........ $ 3606 $ 6.7 $§ 644 $ 39 $§ 388 §$ 1862 $ 533 $ 7139

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels as of the end of the reporting period. There were no transfers
between Levels 1 and 2 or Levels 1 and 3 for the year ended December 31, 2014. The transfers into Level 3 and out of Level 3
for the year ended December 31, 2014 were due to changes in the availability of market observable inputs.

Information by security type pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments classified as Level 3 for
the year ended December 31, 2013 is presented below:

Fixed Maturities Equity Securities
Corporate Other Preferred
Bonds Redeemable  Collateralized Mortgage- and Other
and Preferred Loan and Asset- Common Equity
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Notes Stocks Obligations backed Stocks Interests Total
Balance at Beginning of Year........... § 3610 $ 47 $ — 3 01 $ 133 § 1413 § 5204
Total Gains (Losses):
Included in Consolidated
Statement of Income................. (7.9) 0.2 0.2 0.1 (1.0) (1.6) (10.0)
Included in Other
Comprehensive Income ............... (7.8) (1.3) 0.4 0.5) 4.6 5.6 1.0
Purchases .........ccoceveeeeeevieneccenne, 145.1 5.1 44.1 4.5 159 55.4 270.1
Settlements.........ccceceeveririeneneneenne. (123.2) (1.3) — (0.1) — (26.8) (151.4)
SaleS..ciiiiieiieieeeee e 0.1) — — (2.0) 0.7) — (2.8)
Transfers into Level 3............c.......... 5.8 — — 2.4 — — 8.2
Transfers out of Level 3................... (8.8) — — — — — (8.8)
Balance at End of Year...................... $ 3641 $ 74 % 447 $ 45 $ 321 § 1739 $ 626.7
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The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels as of the end of the reporting period. There were no transfers
between Levels 1 and 2 or Levels 1 and 3 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The transfers into Level 3 and out of Level 3
for the year ended December 31, 2013 were due to changes in the availability of market observable inputs.

The fair value of Debt is estimated using quoted prices for similar liabilities in markets that are not active. The inputs used in
the valuation are considered Level 2 measurements. The fair value of Short-term Investments is estimated using inputs that are
considered Level 1 or Level 2 measurements.

NOTE 22. CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of its businesses, the Company is involved in legal proceedings, including lawsuits, regulatory
examinations and inquiries. Except with regard to the matters discussed below, based on currently available information, the
Company does not believe that it is reasonably possible that any of its pending legal proceedings will have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Over the last several years, certain state insurance regulators, legislators, treasurers/controllers, and their respective agents have
been involved in an array of initiatives that seek, in various ways, to impose new duties on life insurance companies to
proactively search for deaths of their insureds and contact the insureds’ beneficiaries even though such beneficiaries may not
have submitted claims, including due proof of death, as required under the terms of state-approved life insurance policy forms.
These initiatives together comprise a set of circumstances involving potential changes in the law or changes in the interpretation
of existing laws that could have the effect of altering the terms of Kemper’s life insurance subsidiaries’ (the “Life Companies’)
existing life insurance contracts by imposing new requirements that did not exist and were not contemplated at the time the Life
Companies’ entered into such contracts.

Legislation. One type of initiative involves legislation. Legislation has been enacted in Indiana, Iowa, Kentucky, Maryland,
Montana, Nevada, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island and Vermont, with varying effective dates (the “DMF Statutes”), that
requires life insurance companies to compare on a regular basis their records for all in-force policies (including those policies
issued prior to the effective dates of the legislation) against the database of reported deaths maintained by the Social Security
Administration or a comparable database (a “Death Master File”). In contrast, New Mexico and Tennessee have enacted
legislation that also requires such comparisons, but exempts life insurance companies, like the Life Companies, that have not
previously utilized a Death Master File, and instead only requires that such companies conduct Death Master File comparisons
for life insurance policies issued and delivered in each of those states after the legislation’s effective date. Likewise, Alabama,
Georgia and Mississippi have enacted statutes that require such comparisons, but only with respect to policies issued on or after
their respective effective dates, without regard to prior Death Master File use. With respect to those DMF Statutes that apply
retroactively and which would likely have an adverse effect on the Company’s operations and financial position, the Life
Companies have filed declaratory judgment actions in applicable state courts challenging the application of such statutes to
policies issued prior to the subject DMF Statute’s effective date:

* In November 2012, certain of the Life Companies filed a declaratory judgment action in Kentucky state court, asking
the court to construe the Kentucky DMF Statute to apply only prospectively, i.e., only with respect to those life
insurance policies issued in Kentucky on or after the effective date of the Kentucky DMF Statute, consistent with what
the Life Companies believe are the requirements of applicable Kentucky statutory law, the Kentucky Constitution and
the Contract Clause of the United States Constitution. In April 2013, the trial court denied the subject Life Companies’
motion for summary judgment and held that the requirements of the Kentucky DMF Statute apply to life insurance
policies issued before the statute’s January 1, 2013 effective date. The subject Life Companies appealed the trial
court’s decision and in August 2014, in a unanimous opinion, the Kentucky Court of Appeals reversed the trial court
and held that the Kentucky DMF statute fell within Kentucky’s statutory presumption against retroactive legislation.
Therefore, the Court ruled, the Kentucky DMF Statute can only apply to policies issued on and after January 1, 2013.
In September 2014, the Kentucky Department of Insurance filed a motion asking for the Kentucky Supreme Court to
undertake a discretionary review of the Court of Appeal’s ruling. A decision by the Kentucky Supreme Court on
whether to review the Court of Appeals’ decision is expected by the third quarter of 2015.

* InJuly 2013, certain of the Life Companies filed a declaratory judgment action in state court in Maryland, asking the
court to construe the Maryland DMF Statute to apply only prospectively, i.e., only to policies issued in Maryland after
the effective date of the Maryland DMF Statute, consistent with what the Life Companies believe are the requirements
of the Maryland Constitution and the Contract Clause of the United States Constitution. The Maryland Insurance
Administration filed a motion to dismiss the action, contending that the subject Life Companies were required to
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exhaust their administrative remedies before filing their action in the trial court. In March 2014, the trial court granted
the Maryland Insurance Administration’s motion. The Life Companies appealed the trial court’s ruling. The Maryland
appellate courts have declined to stay enforcement of the Maryland DMF Statute pending the appeal, and the Life
Companies are complying with the Maryland DMF Statute while they continue to pursue their appeal. The Life
Companies’ appeal was heard by the Maryland Court of Special Appeals in December 2014. The parties are awaiting
the court’s decision.

* In August 2014, certain of the Life Companies filed a declaratory judgment action in Indiana state court, asking the
court to construe the Indiana DMF Statute to apply only prospectively, i.e., only with respect to those life insurance
policies issued in Indiana on or after the effective date of the Indiana DMF Statute, consistent with what the Life
Companies believe are the requirements of applicable Indiana statutory law, the Indiana Constitution and the Contract
Clause of the United States Constitution. The Indiana Department of Insurance filed an answer in response to the
subject Life Companies’ complaint in October 2014, and the Life Companies filed a motion for summary judgment in
January 2015. A hearing on that motion is scheduled for May 2015.

Unclaimed property compliance audits/litigation. A second type of initiative involves an unclaimed property compliance audit
of the Life Companies (the “Treasurers’ Audit”) being conducted by a private audit firm retained by the treasurers/controllers of
38 states (the “Audit Firm”) and related litigation. In July 2013, the California State Controller (the “CA Controller”) filed a
complaint for injunctive relief against the Life Companies in state court in California, seeking an order requiring the Life
Companies to produce all of their in-force policy records to the Audit Firm to enable the firm to perform a comparison of such
records against a Death Master File and to ascertain whether any of the insureds under such policies may be deceased. In
December 2013, the CA Controller filed a motion for preliminary injunction seeking the same injunctive relief. A hearing on
that motion has been continued by the court until the California Court of Appeals rules on a preliminary injunction order issued
in a related case involving an unaffiliated life insurance company, entitled Chiang v. American National Insurance Company
(the “ANICO Appeal”). In July 2014, the court granted a motion by the CA Controller to stay the Life Companies’ litigation in
its entirety, including all discovery, pending a decision in the ANICO Appeal. As described below, the Life Companies have
filed a counterclaim in this case against the CA Controller. The current stay of the Controller’s case against the Life Companies
means that no substantive ruling is likely to occur before late 2015. Pending the outcome of this litigation, the Life Companies
have not produced any of their in-force policy records to the CA Controller.

Examinations/enforcement actions by regulators. A third type of initiative involves examinations and other actions by state
insurance regulators. The Life Companies are the subject of a multi-state market conduct examination by five state insurance
regulators that is focused on the Life Companies’ claim settlement and policy administration practices, and specifically their
compliance with state unclaimed property statutes (the “Multi-State Exam”). The Multi-State Exam was originated in June
2012 as a single-state examination by the Illinois Director of Insurance. Insurance regulators from five additional states -
California, Florida, Pennsylvania, New Hampshire and North Dakota - joined the examination in May 2013. In August 2014,
New Hampshire withdrew from participation in the Multi-State Exam. In July 2013, the Life Companies received requests from
the Illinois Department of Insurance, as the managing lead state for the Multi-State Exam, for a significant volume of
information beyond that which the Life Companies had already produced, including their records of all in-force policies and
other information of the type previously requested by the Audit Firm as part of the Treasurers’ Audit and which is the subject of
the CA Controller’s complaint. This request prompted the Illinois litigation noted below. In August 2014, the Illinois
Department of Insurance appointed a law firm to act as an additional examiner in the Multi-State Exam, which remains
ongoing.

Pending related litigation. In September 2013, certain of the Life Companies filed declaratory judgment actions against the
insurance regulators in the states of California, Florida, Illinois and Pennsylvania, asking the courts in those states to declare
that applicable law does not require life insurers to search a Death Master File to ascertain whether insureds are deceased. The
subject Life Companies are also asking the courts to declare that regulators in those states do not have the legal authority to (i)
obtain life insurers’ policy records for the purpose of comparing those records against a Death Master File, and/or (ii) impose
payment obligations on life insurers before a claim and due proof of death have been submitted by policy beneficiaries. The
declaratory judgment action in California referenced above was filed as a cross-complaint to the CA Controller’s complaint,
joining the California Insurance Commissioner and the Audit Firm as parties to the cross-complaint. The CA Controller has
filed a motion to dismiss the Life Companies’ cross-complaint, contending that the Life Companies’ request for a declaratory
judgment is premature and not ripe for adjudication. A hearing on that motion has been continued until the Court of Appeals
issues its decision in the ANICO Appeal. Oral argument in the ANICO Appeal has been set for February 2015. In related
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activity, the CA Controller’s petition for coordination of the five unclaimed property lawsuits pending in California to have
them all heard by the same court was denied in January 2015.

In response to the Illinois declaratory judgment action, the Illinois Department of Insurance and its Director (collectively, the
“IDOI”) filed a motion to dismiss, and in July 2014, the court in Illinois denied, in part, such motion. Specifically, the court
denied the IDOI’s motion to dismiss the Life Companies’ claim seeking a declaration that the IDOI cannot compel the Life
Companies to provide their policy records to the IDOI or persons acting on the IDOI’s behalf so as to permit a comparison
against the DMF for purposes of identifying deceased insureds, as well as the Life Companies’ associated claim for injunctive
relief. The court dismissed with prejudice the other counts in the complaint. In August 2014, the IDOI filed its answer to the
counts of the complaint that the Illinois court allowed to stand, and in October 2014, the Life Companies filed a motion for
summary judgment with respect to those remaining counts. The IDOI filed a cross motion for summary judgment in
December 2014. Formal briefing and a hearing schedule on the summary judgment motions are expected to be set by the
court at a May 2015 status conference. The actions against the insurance regulators in the states of Florida and Pennsylvania
have been stayed by agreement of the parties pending the outcome of the Illinois action.

Conclusion. The results of the aforementioned legislative actions, Treasurers’ Audit, Multi-State Exam and the related litigation
cannot currently be predicted. The Life Companies continue to maintain that states lack the legal authority to establish new
requirements that could have the effect of changing the terms of existing life insurance contracts with regard to basic claims
handling obligations and processes. If state officials are able to apply such new requirements retroactively to the Life
Companies’ existing life insurance policies, it will fundamentally alter the nature and timing of their responsibilities under such
policies by effectively eliminating contractual terms that condition claim settlement and payment on the receipt of a claim,
including “due proof of death” of an insured. The outcomes of the various state initiatives and related litigation could result in
changes in the law that could have the effect of altering the terms of the Life Companies’ existing life insurance contracts by
imposing new requirements that have a significant effect on, including acceleration of, the Life Companies’ payment and/or
escheatment of policy benefits, and significantly increase their claims handling costs. Any attempt to predict the ultimate
outcomes (including any estimate of the resulting effect on claim liabilities and reserves for future policy benefits) of these
various efforts to change the law would entail predicting on a state-by-state-basis the ultimate outcomes of numerous
uncertainties including, but not limited to: how many states might eventually enact laws or interpret existing laws to require the
use of a Death Master File or may exact such usage through regulation, examinations or audits; the matching criteria to be used
in comparing records of the Life Companies against a Death Master File; the universe of policies affected; whether and to what
extent any such laws would be applied retroactively; and the results of unclaimed property audits, examinations and other
actions by state insurance regulators and litigation, including challenges to the constitutionality of laws purporting to have
retroactive application. Due to the complexity and multi-jurisdictional nature of this issue, as well as the indeterminate number
of potential outcomes and their uncertain effects on the Life Companies’ business, Kemper cannot reasonably estimate the
amount of loss that it would recognize if the Life Companies were subjected to requirements of the types described in this Note
on a retroactive basis.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 23. RELATED PARTIES

Mr. Christopher B. Sarofim, a director of Kemper, is Vice Chairman and a member of the board of directors of Fayez Sarofim
& Co. (“FS&C”), a registered investment advisory firm. Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity had $85.8 million, $154.7 million and
$125.2 million in assets managed by FS&C at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, under an agreement with
FS&C whereby FS&C provides investment management services with respect to certain assets of Trinity. In the fourth quarter
of 2014, Trinity reduced the amount of assets under management with FS&C by $80.0 million. Investment Expenses incurred in
connection with such agreement were $0.3 million, $0.4 million and $0.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013
and 2012, respectively.

FS&C also provides investment management services with respect to certain funds of the Company’s Pension Plan. The
Company’s Pension Plan had $159.2 million, $148.6 million and $120.7 million in assets managed by FS&C at December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, under an agreement with FS&C whereby FS&C provides investment management services.
Investment Expenses incurred in connection with such agreement were $0.4 million, $0.3 million and $0.3 million for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

With respect to the Company’s defined contribution plans, until November 4, 2014, one of the alternative investment choices
afforded to participating employees was the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund, an open-end, diversified managed investment fund.
FS&C provides investment management services to the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund as a sub-investment advisor. The Company
does not compensate FS&C for services provided to the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund. Participants in the Company’s defined
contribution plans had allocated $22.8 million and $20.4 million for investment in the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, representing 6% and 7% of the total amount invested in the Company’s defined
contribution plans at such dates.

The Company believes that the transactions described above have been provided on terms no less favorable to the Company
than could have been negotiated with non-affiliated third parties.

As described in Note 20, “Other Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company also has certain
relationships with Capitol, a mutual insurance company which is owned by its policyholders, and its subsidiary, ORCC.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 24. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

Revenues:

Earned Premiums............coooviiveiiiiiieiiccee e
Net Investment INCOME............ooooiviiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee
Other INCOME .......vviiieiiieeeeeceeeee e

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments.............cccoeevveeennnn.

Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:

Total Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses.....................

Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive

INCOME ..o
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.............c.co......

Total REVEINUES .......vviiieiiiieiieceeeeeeee et

Expenses:

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss

Adjustment EXPenses..........ccocvvvieieienieneeieieneeeeiene e
Insurance EXPenses .........coeevieriirienieniieiieenecieceecsee e
Write-off of Long-lived ASSet........cccecveviiviieieieieeieieiesie s
Interest and Other EXPenses ........coeeeverierieeieienienieieienie s

TOtal EXPENSES.....viiuiuieeieeiiiietieiieieete ettt ettt sre e
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes.............
Income Tax Benefit (EXPense)..........cccvevveevvievieeiuieeieeiecieeie e
Income from Continuing Operations..............cceevverveeeeeerienresreeeenn
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations............ceceeevereerveeniene.

NEt INCOME ...ovieiiciiiec e

Year

Three Months Ended (Unaudited) Ended

Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014

$ 4776 $ 4703 $ 4628 $ 4515 $1,862.2

71.1 72.6 72.3 93.1 309.1
0.1 0.2 0.5 0.6 1.4

6.6 3.5 8.0 21.0 39.1
(0.8) @.1) (3.8) 65  (15.2)
(0.8) @.1) (3.8) 65  (15.2)
554.6 542.5 539.8 559.7  2,196.6
327.9 347.5 300.5 2858  1,261.7
152.1 161.3 158.6 156.4 628.4
— — 54.6 — 54.6
22.7 225 22.1 24.4 91.7
502.7 531.3 535.8 466.6  2,036.4
51.9 11.2 4.0 93.1 160.2
(16.7) (1.9) 0.8 (29.8)  (47.6)
35.2 9.3 4.8 63.3 112.6
(0.1) — (0.1) 2.1 1.9

$ 351 $ 93 $ 47 $ 654 $ 1145
$ 063 $ 017 $ 009 $ 120 $ 2.08
$ 063 $ 017 $ 009 $ 120 $ 2.08
$ 063 $ 017 $ 009 $ 124 $ 212
$  0.63 017 $ 0.09 1.24 2.12
$ 024 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.96

The sum of quarterly per share amounts does not equal per share amounts for the year due to differences in weighted-average shares and/or equivalent shares

outstanding for each of the periods presented.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 24. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited) (Continued)

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

Revenues:
Earned Premiums..........cooovvivieienienieieieieeeeiesie e
Net Investment Income............ccoooeieiiiiiiiiiiiii e,
Other INCOME ......oviiviiiiiiiiicieee e e
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments..............ccccveeneennen.
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses.....................

Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive
INCOME ..o

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings..............cc......
Total REVENUES .....o.eiiieiiiiieieiieee e
Expenses:

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss
Adjustment EXPenses..........ccoovvrieieienieneeieieneeeeiene e

Insurance EXPenses ........cooeevieriiiieiieniieiieeniecseesee e

Interest and Other EXPEenses ..........ccvevevvevieeeeienieneeieiesie e
Total EXPENSES......eviuieiiiiiienieiiiieieieit ettt
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes.............
Income TaxX EXPense ........cccueveiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeese e
Income from Continuing Operations.............cocceveeeereneecereneneennne
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations..............ccccecervereenenne.

INEEINCOME ...

Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share:

Year
Three Months Ended (Unaudited) Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
$§ 5099 §$§ 5128 § 5075 $§ 4956 $2,025.8
80.8 74.6 82.4 76.9 314.7
0.2 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.8
26.9 2.3 49.1 20.8 99.1
(2.4) (2.3) (3.5) (7.6) (15.8)
0.5 1.3 0.1 — 1.9
(1.9) (1.0) (3.4) (7.6) (13.9)
615.9 588.9 635.7 586.0 2,426.5
349.2 354.2 338.3 315.5 1,357.2
158.3 163.1 170.1 162.9 654.4
23.8 25.2 25.3 26.2 100.5
531.3 542.5 533.7 504.6 2,112.1
84.6 46.4 102.0 81.4 314.4
(26.0) (13.9) (33.4) (26.6) (99.9)
58.6 325 68.6 54.8 214.5
0.2) 1.5 15 0.4 3.2
§ 584 $ 340 § 701 $ 552 § 2177
$ 100 § 056 $ 121 $ 098 § 374
§ 100 $ 059 § 124 § 099 § 381
$ 100 $ 0359 $ 123 $ 099 $ 3.80
$ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 096

The sum of quarterly per share amounts does not equal per share amounts for the year due to differences in weighted-average shares and/or equivalent shares

outstanding for each of the periods presented.
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KEMPER CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014. Our audits also included the financial
statement schedules listed in Item 15. We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for these financial
statements and financial statement schedules, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and
financial statement schedules and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s
board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 12, 2015
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
Not Applicable

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with participation of Kemper’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) as of the end of the period covered
by this report. Based on such evaluation, Kemper’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as
of the end of such period, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that information required
to be disclosed by Kemper in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported, within the time periods specified by the SEC’s rules and forms, and accumulated and communicated to the Company’s
management, including Kemper’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2014 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We, as management of the Company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC, internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or
under the supervision of, a company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar
functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

»  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

»  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

*  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on
the control criteria established in a report entitled Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued in 2013 by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on such evaluation, we have concluded that the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2014.

The independent registered public accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP, as auditors of the consolidated financial
statements of Kemper and its subsidiaries, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of management’s internal control
over financial reporting based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued in 2013 by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/S/" DONALD G. SOUTHWELL /S/" FRANK J. SODARO

Donald G. Southwell Frank J. Sodaro

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Kemper Corporation Kemper Corporation

February 12, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The attestation report of the independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is included in Item 8 under the heading “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm,” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Election of Directors,”
“Executive Officers,” “Ownership of Kemper Common Stock™ and “Corporate Governance” in the Proxy Statement for
Kemper’s 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Kemper plans to file such proxy statement within 120 days after
December 31, 2014, the end of Kemper’s fiscal year.

Kemper’s code of ethics applicable to its chief executive officer, chief financial officer and principal accounting officer (“Code
of Ethics for Senior Financial Executives”) is posted in the “Governance” section of Kemper’s website, kemper.com. Kemper
also intends to disclose any future amendments to, and any waivers from (though none are anticipated), the Code of Ethics for
Senior Financial Executives in the “Governance” section of its website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Executive Compensation,”
“Executive Officer Compensation and Benefits,” “Director Compensation,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation,” and “Compensation Committee Report™ in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2015 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. The Compensation Committee Report to be included in such Proxy Statement shall be deemed to be furnished in
this report and shall not be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act as a
result of such furnishing in this Item 11.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this Item is set forth in the table below and incorporated herein by reference to the section
captioned “Ownership of Kemper Common Stock” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Available
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average for Future Issuance
Exercise of Exercise Price of Under Equity
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Compensation Plans
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights or Programs (1)
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by
Security Holders........ccovveeieienienieieieniccieeens 2,265,711 $ 39.74 8,243,636
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by
Security Holders — — —
Total.oooiicici e 2,265,711 § 39.74 8,243,636

(1) Includes 517,500 shares reserved for future grants based on the achievement of performance goals under the terms of
outstanding performance-based restricted stock and performance-based RSU awards.

Kemper’s Omnibus Plan permits various stock-based awards including, but not limited to, stock options, stock appreciation
rights, DSUs, time-vested restricted stock and RSUs, and performance-based restricted stock and RSUs.

The design of the Omnibus Plan provides for fungible use of shares to determine the number of shares available for future
grants, with a fungible conversion factor of three to one, such that the Share Authorization will be reduced at two different rates,
depending on the type of award granted. Each share of Kemper common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options or
stock appreciation rights will reduce the number of shares available for future grant under the Share Authorization by one share,
while each share of Kemper common stock issued pursuant to “full value awards” will reduce the number of shares available
for future grant under the Share Authorization by three shares. “Full value awards™ are awards, other than stock options or stock
appreciation rights, that are settled by the issuance of shares of Kemper common stock and include restricted stock, RSUs,
DSUs, if settled with stock, and other stock-based awards.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Related Person
Transactions” and “Director Independence” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the section captioned “Independent Registered Public
Accountant” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Documents filed as part of this Report

1.

3.

Financial Statements. The consolidated balance sheets of Kemper and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and
the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, cash flows and shareholders’ equity for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, together with the notes thereto and the report of Deloitte & Touche LLP thereon
appearing in Item 8 are included in this 2014 Annual Report.

Financial Statement Schedules. The following four financial statement schedules are included on the pages immediately
following the signature pages hereof. Schedules not listed here have been omitted because they are not applicable or not
material or the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Schedule I Investments Other Than Investments in Related Parties
Schedule II Parent Company Financial Statements

Schedule III Supplementary Insurance Information

Schedule IV Reinsurance Schedule

The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, with regards to the Financial
Statement Schedules listed above, is incorporated by reference to the Report of Independent Registered Public Accountant
included in Item 8.

Exhibits. An Exhibit Index has been filed as part of this report on pages E-1 through E-5.

(b) Exhibits. Included in Item 15(a)3 above

(c) Financial Statement Schedules. Included in Item 15(a)2 above
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below on the following page hereby appoints each of Donald G. Southwell, Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer, Frank J. Sodaro, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, and Richard Roeske,
Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer, so long as such individual remains an executive officer of Kemper Corporation,
his true and lawful attorney-in-fact with authority together or individually to execute in the name of each such signatory, and
with authority to file with the SEC, any and all amendments to this 2014 Annual Report of Kemper Corporation, together with
any and all exhibits thereto and other documents therewith, necessary or advisable to enable Kemper Corporation to comply
with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations, and requirements of the SEC in respect
thereof, which amendments may make such other changes in the 2014 Annual Report as the aforesaid attorney-in-fact executing
the same deems appropriate.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Kemper Corporation has duly caused this
2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, on February 12, 2015.

KEMPER CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /S/' DONALD G. SOUTHWELL
Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of Kemper Corporation in the capacities indicated on February 12, 2015.

Signature

/S/" DONALD G. SOUTHWELL

Donald G. Southwell

/S/" FRANK J. SODARO

Frank J. Sodaro

/S/" RICHARD ROESKE

Richard Roeske

/S/ JAMES E. ANNABLE

James E. Annable

/S/" DOUGLAS G. GEOGA

Douglas G. Geoga

/S/ JULIE M. HOWARD

Julie M. Howard

/S/ ROBERT J. JOYCE

Robert J. Joyce

/S WAYNE KAUTH

Wayne Kauth

/S/" CHRISTOPHER B. SAROFIM

Christopher B. Sarofim

/S/" DAVID P. STORCH

David P. Storch

/S/ RICHARD C. VIE

Richard C. Vie

Title

Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(principal executive officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal
financial officer)

Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (principal

accounting officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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SCHEDULE I

KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
INVESTMENTS OTHER THAN INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES
DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Dollars in Millions)

Amount
Amortized Carried in
Cost Fair Value Balance Sheet
Fixed Maturities:
Bonds and Notes:
United States Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.............. $ 3152 § 3455 § 345.5
States and Political SUDAIVISIONS .........coveiiiuieiiiiiiirieeciee ettt 1,352.5 1,477.1 1,477.1
Corporate Securities:
Other Bonds and NOLES ......c..eoeiuiiieiiieiee et 2,599.3 2,878.5 2,878.5
Redeemable Preferred StOCKS ......cvevviiieeiieiieieeeeeeeeeee e 5.9 6.7 6.7
Collateralized Loan Obligations ...........cccereririerienieniieieienieeeeeneeeeniesreennennes 64.9 64.4 64.4
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed...........cccceiviniiiiiiininiininiceccce, 3.9 5.4 5.4
Total Investments in FiXed Maturiti€S........c.ocovvriieuieioiieeeee e eeeeeeeeaee e 4,341.7 4,777.6 4,777.6
Equity Securities:
Preferred StOCKS . ...ooviiieie et 101.8 109.5 109.5
COMIMON STOCKS ....vveutietieiieieeteettetete sttt sttt ettt ettt et et entesbeere e enbesbeeneensas 104.2 133.8 133.8
Other EQUIty INEIeStS ... ..cc.oviiiriiiiiiiiiiiricieceeeec e 355.5 388.9 388.9
Total Investments in EQUILY SECUITHES ....cuveveriiriieieieriieieeiee et 561.5 632.2 632.2
Fair Value Option INVEStMENLS. .....cccceiueriiririeiiiiiiieiesieeiceieie ettt s 53.3 53.3 53.3
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus Cumulative
Undistributed Earnings ..........coecverieririeienieniesieeiese ittt 184.8 XXX.X 184.8
Loans, Real Estate and Other INnVEStMENtS ......cc.vvvviiiiiiieiicieieeeeeeee e 449.6 XXX.X 449.6
Short-term INVESTMENLS ......ccuevviiiieieieeiieieiee ettt sbeeeaenaens 342.2 XXX.X 342.2
TOtal INVESTMEITS. ......vviiieeieeeeiee ettt ettt e et e e e e et e e eaeeeeaaeeenaeeeeneeeas $ 5,933.1 $  6,439.7

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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SCHEDULE II

KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in Millions)

December 31,

2014 2013

ASSETS
INVEStMENTS 1N SUDSIAIATIES .....eiveiiieeie ittt et eaee e et e eeeeeeeaaeeenaeeeeseeeeaeeeeseeeeneeeeneeean $2,677.5 $2,614.0
Fixed Maturities at Fair Value (Amortized Cost: 2014 — $12.2)....cooiiriiirieieieeeeieeeieeee e 12.2 —
Equity Securities at Fair Value (Cost: 2014 — $21.9; 2013 — $4.7)cuecuveieiieieieieeeeeeeeie et 21.8 5.0
Fair Value Option INVESTMENTS. .......cciiieieriieieieieeeteiteieie ettt ete et sseesae e sseeseeneesesaeeseensessesseeneenss 53.3 —
SHOTt-tETM TNVESTMENLS ...iiviiiiiieiiieii ettt ettt et e et e e et e ebeebeesbeeesaessaeesseesseesseesseesseessaesseenssenns 225.1 130.8
L7 1§ OSSR 17.9 20.8
Oher RECEIVADICS........eouiiiiiiiiiiitiie ettt ettt sttt ettt s enes 6.9 4.9
Current and Deferred INCOME TaXES.......uecuierieririieeie ettt ettt e stteste et eeaeesaeebeeseesseesseesseesssessseens 4.7 35.0
OHET A SSEES. . .veteeuteiieteetteite ettt et e sttt et et e et e e st et e teeteest e beebeestensesseeseenseseeseensenseeseeseentenseeseentensenbeeneensens 5.6 7.3
TOTAL ASSEES. ..ottt et ettt e e e e et e e et e et e ettt e e r e e et et e et e eae et et e et e erteeneeeneeeteenneens $ 3,025.0 $2817.8
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY -
Senior Notes Payable, 6.00% due 2017 (Fair Value: 2014 — $390.2; 2013 — $395.5)...cveieeieirinieinene $ 3585 § 3579
Senior Notes Payable, 6.00% due 2015 (Fair Value: 2014 — $260.2; 2013 — $271.6)...ceeiveveerinenene 249.5 249.0
Subordinated Debentures due 2054 (Fair Value: 2014 — $154.0).....c.ccvivieiiirieieieisieieeeresieeeeeve e 144.1 —
Liabilities fOr INCOME TAXES......uieriieiieiieitieetieeteeie ettt et e et esteesteesteesaaestaeesseesseesseenseesaesseesssenssesssenssenns 14.5 90.5
Liabilities for BENe it PIANS........cc.cviiieieieieciieieieeie ettt sttt et ebesreessenseseesnaensans 160.2 63.9
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities ........cceviririeriiririeieiese sttt 7.5 5.0
T O]l LAADIIIEIES. ... eeeetetieee ettt ettt ettt st s ket e e st e e e e e en e e s et e e eneese s e e eneeneeeeneeneenen 934.3 766.3
Shareholders’ Equity:

COMIMON STOCK ..tietiieiieiee sttt ettt ettt et e et e st e e st e esbeesbaeteesaesssessseessessseesseenseensaenseenssenes 5.2 5.6

Additional Paid-1n Capital.........cceecierieiiiieierieceeeetee ettt sre et sseese e esesseeseessesesreesaennens 660.1 694.8

REtaiNed EaIMiNgS .....cc.oouiiuiiieiiiiieiietesie ettt sttt be st s et et sae et ebesbeeneennens 1,202.7 1,215.8

Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME........c..eviriiruieieiiieceeieeie ettt sae e eeaenaens 222.7 135.3
Total Shareholders’ EQUILY ........ceveriirieieieieetieieteete ettt ettt ettt et e ettt ebesbeentenbesbesneensens 2,090.7 2,051.5
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ EQUILY ........ccueoueriiirieriiiiieeieeieesesieeeest ettt $ 3,025.0 $2,817.8

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net INVEeStMENt INCOME. ......c..iieiieiiieeieiiete ettt ettt seese s e seeseneeneeneas $ 09 $§ 02 $ 0.2
Net Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of INVEStMENES .......cc.eeveeieierienieeieieieceeieeee e 0.2) 0.6 0.3
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............coeceveverieienieninienieniesceiene e 1.7) — —
TOtAl REVEIUES .....veiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e et e et e e et e e e aaeeeeaaeeeaaeeeeaseeensaeesareeanes (1.0) 0.8 0.5
INEEIEST EXPEIISE. .. viiuiiiiitieiieieite ettt sttt et et e be et be st e st e e st e eseensenbesreennens 47.9 39.0 39.5
Other Operating EXPENSES .........cc.cuiuiiiiriiiiiiienieieiete ettt 2.7 21.6 13.6
Total OPerating EXPENSES.......cceeieierieeiieieieiteeieeteie sttt et stesteeseessesseeseessessessesseensessesseeneens 50.6 60.6 53.1
Loss before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Income of Subsidiaries...........ccccecveveerireennee (51.6) (59.8) (52.6)
Income Tax BeNefIt......oouiiuiiiiiiiiiiiee et 18.9 20.8 18.2
Loss before Equity in Net Income of Subsidiaries..........c.ccevirieienieninieieieececeiesie s (32.7) (39.0) (34.4)
Equity in Net Income of SubSidiaries. ........ccueviririeriririeierieseeieeseeeet e 147.2 256.7 137.8
INEE TIICOIMIE -ttt s ettt b et b st e st a e s et et en e s s eneenene $ 1145 § 217.7 $ 1034

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Dollars in Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
INEE TICOIMIC .ttt ettt sttt a e e st et e es e s e st eseesesseneeseesenseneeneas $ 1145 § 217.7 $ 1034
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During the Year:
Securities Held by SUbSIAIATIES ......ccveeviieiieriieeiecieeie et 261.7 (324.9) 157.9
Securities Held Dy Parent..........coovieieiiiiiiieieeceeeieseeeee et (2.0) — —
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Securities Held by SUDSIAIATIES .....c.eevveviriiiiieieiieiieieiese et (26.8) (37.9) (61.2)
Securities Held By Parent.........c.ccoviiieiiiiiiieieieeeeeeeee e 1.7 — —
Unrealized Holding Gains (LOSSES).....ueiuieuieiieiieiiesieesiiesite et 234.6 (362.8) 96.7
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Yeart..........ccccccuevvveneenee. (106.4) 61.6 (29.4)
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COsts .......cccooceevievininievencnennne. 7.9 25.0 16.2
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS ........ccvevuererieierienieieieieseeeeie e (98.5) 86.6 (13.2)
Foreign Currency Translation AdjUStMENtS.........ccuevuirierierieriieieienieeiieieie e (1.0) 0.2 1.6
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.........ccccceeveverirnnnen. — — —
Foreign Currency Translation AdjuStments..........ceceeveriereneeierieneeieienee e (1.0) 0.2 1.6
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) before Income Taxes ........cccvecveeireieeiieeniierieeneenieenne 135.1 (276.0) 85.1
Income Tax Benefit (Expense):
Unrealized Holding Gains and Losses Arising During the Year:
Securities Held by SUDSIAIATIES .....c.eeveiiiiiiiieieiiciieieieeeeeee e 92.3) 115.9 (55.9)
Securities Held Dy Parent...........ccovivieiiiiiieierieceeieseeeee e 0.7 — —
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Securities Held by SUDSIAIATIES ....c.eevveiiriiiiieieiiciieieiesie et 9.4 13.2 21.5
Securities Held By Parent.........cccoviiieiiiiiieieieceeeeeeeseee e (0.6) — —
Unrealized Holding Gains and LOSSES.......cceiieierieriieieieriesieeeeieete et seeene e eveeneas (82.8) 129.1 (34.4)
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Yeart.........cccccocevvnneeee. 375 (21.6) 10.3
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs ..........ccceceeviieviieniieniiennnnne. (2.8) (8.8) (5.7)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS ........ooveviiieienieniiiieieieeeceeeie e 34.7 (30.4) 4.6
Foreign Currency Translation AdjUStMENTS. ........ccuevueriieierienienieieniesiteieie e 0.4 (0.1) (0.6)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.........ccccceeveriernrnnnnen. — — —
Foreign Currency Translation AdjuStmMents..........ceceeeerierieriieierienieeieieie e 0.4 (0.1) (0.6)
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE) .....c.eiueeiieiieiieiieiieieesie et stte et seeenae e e e e eseeeeenseens 47.7) 98.6 (30.4)
Other Comprehensive INCOME (LLOSS).....veuveieriirieieieriieiieeerie ettt enaens 87.4 (177.4) 54.7
Total Comprehensive INCOME. ........cueueuiuiiiririeieieieieit ettt $ 2019 $ 403 § 158.1

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Operating Activities:
INEE INCOIMIC. ...ttt ettt ettt s et s e ee s et s es e eseneeeenens $ 1145 $ 2177 $ 1034
Adjustment Required to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operations:
Equity in Net Income of SubSIAIaries ..........ccovieiieiieiiieiieieeeeee e (147.2) (256.7) (137.8)
Cash Dividends from SubSIAIAries. .......c.cecveieriiriirieiiiiiieierie e 159.1 95.0 95.0
Cash Contribution to Defined Benefit Plan ..........ccccocovirieiinininiininenciieenceene — (55.0) —
Net Realized (Gains) Losses on Sales of Investments..........cocceeeeveevierieneecienieseenennn. 0.2 (0.6) (0.3)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........cccecvevveveneeienieneneniencneenns 1.7 — —
L0 13 1T 00 A\ TSRS 10.5 67.3 8.5
Net Cash Provided by Operating ACHVILIES. .......cveveriirrieierienieeieieie et eeeeenie e eeee e seeenees 138.8 67.7 68.8
Investing Activities:
Capital Distribution from SUDSIAIArY.........ccccveieriirieieiienieeieieieee e 1.1 50.5 20.0
Sales, Paydowns and Maturities of Fixed Maturities ..........c..ccceceverveinencnecnineneceenn. 11.5 — 13.1
Sales Of EQUILY SECUITEIES ...eevvvereieiieeieeie ettt steestte et e ettt e steessaesseeseeeenaeenneennean 15.1 — —
Sales of Fair Value Option INVEStMENTS..........ccverueriiiieieiiniieieiesieeeeieienee e 6.9 — —
Purchases of Fair Value Option INVEStMENts..........c.cceveiereriirieienenieieiesesceie e (60.9) — —
Change in Short-term INVESTMENLS .........c.eoiviiierieiieieeeste ettt (94.3) 52.7 (106.3)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing ACHIVItIES.......ccververuerieriieieienieeieienie e (120.6) 103.2 (73.2)
Financing Activities:
Net Proceeds from Issuance of Subordinated Debentures............ccoceevveveeneririienienennennn. 144.0 — —
Cash Dividends Paid...........ccooiiiieieiiie e (51.8) (54.9) (56.9)
Common StoCK REPUICNASES .......ecvivuieiieieiiiieieiesie ettt enaens (114.0) (100.4) (60.7)
Cash Exercise of StOCK OPLIONS .....cc.evuieieriiriiiieieniieieeesieste ettt 0.5 1.7 1.3
Excess Tax Benefits on Share Based AWards...........ccoceoieirineiinineneeeceeceeseeeeeae 0.2 1.3 0.5
Net Cash Used by FINancing ACtIVITIES. ......cecuervirieierieriieiieienieeiteieie ettt sve s (21.1) (152.3) (115.8)
Increase (Decrease) N Cash .......ocviiiiiiieiiciiee et es (2.9) 18.6 (120.2)
Cash, Be@inning Of YEaI.........cccieieriiriieiieieiesie ettt sttt steseeennens 20.8 2.2 122.4
CaASH, BN OF Y BT ...ttt ettt et e eae e et eae e et e e e $ 179 $§ 208 § 2.2

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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SCHEDULE IV

KEMPER CORPORATION
REINSURANCE SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

(Dollars in Millions)

Percentage

Ceded to Assumed of Amount

Gross Other from Other Net Assumed to

Amount Companies Companies Amount Net
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Life Insurance in FOICE .....c.ooouvvviiviioiieieeeeeee e $20,565.9 $ 5415 $§ 217.8 $ 20,242.2 1.1%
Premiums: -
Life INSUTANCE .....vovivieeieiieieeieeeeieeie e $ 3875 § 15 § 1.6 $ 387.6 0.4%
Accident and Health Insurance...........cccccoeevvrverieninnncnne. 146.3 0.5 2.8 148.6 1.9%
Property and Liability Insurance ............ccccccveirevicrnnenne. 1,297.3 24.0 52.7 1,326.0 4.0%
Total PIEMIUITIS. .....vvivieieieeeieeeie et $ 1,831.1 $ 260 $ 571 $ 1,862.2 3.1%
Year Ended December 31, 2013 -
Life Insurance in FOICE ..uuvvviimmeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen $ 21,006.0 $ 5764 § 2295 $20,659.1 1.1%
Premiums: -
Life INSUTANCE .....eovviivievieiereeteeeeeete et $ 3924 § 1.5 $ 1.8 $ 3927 0.5%
Accident and Health Insurance...........cccccoeevvrvevieninnnnne. 161.9 0.6 0.1 161.4 0.1%
Property and Liability Insurance ...........cccccevervevienenncnne. 1,452.7 31.8 50.8 1,471.7 3.5%
TOtal PLOIMIUINS. c.eeveeeee ettt eeee e $ 2,007.0 $ 339 §$ 527 $ 2,025.8 2.6%
Year Ended December 31, 2012 -
Life Insurance in FOTCE .uuuuviiimeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen $ 21,3404 $ 6104 $ 2429 $20,972.9 1.2%
Premiums: -
Life INSUTance ........cooeveeieriiniieieiesecceeeseeecee e $ 3928 § 14 3 20 $ 3934 0.5%
Accident and Health Insurance...........cccccoevevveveiennennnne. 165.5 0.4 0.1 165.2 0.1%
Property and Liability Insurance ...........cccccevcervevienirnnnne. 1,547.3 40.7 41.9 1,548.5 2.7%
TOtal PLOIMIUINS. c.eeveeeeee ettt ee e e eeeeeeeeeeeeaens $ 2,1056 $ 425 $ 440 $ 2,107.1 2.1%

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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Exhibit Index

The following exhibits are either filed as a part hereof or are incorporated by reference. Exhibit numbers followed by an
asterisk (*) indicate exhibits that are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements.

Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File Number

Exhibit

Filed or
Furnished
Filing Date Herewith

3.1
32

4.2

43

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4*

10.5%

Restated Certificate of Incorporation

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Kemper
Corporation

Indenture dated as of June 26, 2002, by and
between Kemper and The Bank of New York
Trust Company, N.A., as successor trustee to
BNY Midwest Trust Company, as Trustee

Officers’ Certificate, including form of Senior
Note with respect to Kemper’s 6.00% Senior
Notes due May 15, 2017

Officers’ Certificate, including the form of
Senior Note with respect to Kemper’s 6.00%
Senior Notes due November 30, 2015

Indenture, dated as of February 27, 2014, by and
between Kemper Corporation and The Bank of
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as
Trustee

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of
February 27, 2014, to the Indenture dated as of
February 27, 2014, by and between Kemper and
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company,
N.A., as Trustee (including the form of 7.375%
Subordinated Debentures due 2054).

Form of Certificate Representing Shares of
Kemper Corporation Common Stock

Credit Agreement, dated as of March 7, 2012,
by and among Kemper, the lenders party
thereto, JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
administrative agent, swing line lender and
issuing bank, and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association and Fifth Third Bank, as co-
syndication agents, as amended by Amendment
No. 1 to Credit Agreement effective as of
December 31, 2013

Advances and Security Agreement and
Addendum to Advances and Security
Agreement, effective as of December 31, 2013,
between Trinity Universal Insurance Company
and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas

Advances, Collateral Pledge, and Security
Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2014,
between United Insurance Company of America
and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago

Kemper Pension Equalization Plan, as amended
and restated effective August 25, 2011, as
amended by Amendment No. 2 effective
September 16, 2013

Kemper Defined Contribution Supplemental
Retirement Plan, as amended and restated
effective August 25, 2011

8-K

8-K

10-Q

8-K

8-K

10-K

10-K

8-K

10-K

10-Q

E-1

001-18298
001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

32
33

4.1

43

4.2

4.1

4.2

4.1

10.1

10.2

10.1

10.3

10.15

August 8, 2014
August 8, 2014

May 14, 2012

May 7, 2012

November 24, 2010

February 27, 2014

February 27, 2014

August 8, 2014

February 14, 2014

February 14, 2014

March 21, 2014

February 14, 2014

November 2, 2011



Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File Number

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed or
Furnished
Herewith

10.6*

10.7*

10.8%*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15%

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22%*

10.23*

Kemper Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation
Plan, as amended and restated effective January
1,2014

Kemper Severance Plan, as amended and
restated effective August 25, 2011

Kemper 1995 Non-employee Director Stock
Option Plan, as amended and restated effective
February 3, 2009

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the
Kemper 1995 Non-employee Director Stock
Option Plan, as of February 1, 2006

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the
Kemper 1995 Non-employee Director Stock
Option Plan, as of February 3, 2009

Kemper 1997 Stock Option Plan, as amended
and restated effective February 1, 2006

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement
under the Kemper 1997 Stock Option Plan, as of
February 1, 2006

Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan, as amended
and restated effective February 3, 2009

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement
under the Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan, as of
February 1, 2006

Form of Stock Option Agreement (including
stock appreciation rights) under the Kemper
2002 Stock Option Plan, as of February 1, 2011

Kemper 2005 Restricted Stock and Restricted
Stock Unit Plan, as amended and restated
effective February 3, 2009

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Award
Agreement under the Kemper 2005 Restricted
Stock and Restricted Stock Unit Plan, as of
February 1, 2011

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Award Agreement under the Kemper 2005
Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Unit Plan,
as of February 1, 2011

Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as amended
and restated effective October 30, 2013

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement for
Non-employee Directors under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of August 25,
2011

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Award
Agreement under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus
Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Award Agreement under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement for
Non-employee Directors under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of May 1, 2013

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-Q
10-Q

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-Q

E-2

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

10.5

10.18

10.2

10.6

10.7

10.2

10.8

10.4

10.9

10.9

10.5

10.10

10.11

10.1

10.13

10.24

10.25

10.1

February 14, 2014

November 2, 2011

February 4, 2009

May 4, 2011

February 4, 2009

May 4, 2011

May 4, 2011

February 4, 2009

May 4, 2011

February 3, 2011

February 4, 2009

February 3, 2011

February 3, 2011

October 31, 2013

February 17, 2012

February 15, 2013

February 15,2013

May 2, 2013



Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File Number

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed or
Furnished
Herewith

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*

10.27*

10.28*

10.29*

10.30*

10.31%*

10.32*

10.33*

10.34*

10.35*

10.36*

10.37*

Form of Deferred Stock Unit Agreement for
Non-employee Directors under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of May 1, 2013

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement -
Installment-Vesting form under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4,
2014

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement -
Cliff-Vesting Form under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2014

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit
Award Agreement - Installment-Vesting Form
under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan,
as of February 4, 2014

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit
Award Agreement - Cliff- Vesting Form under
the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of
February 4, 2014

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Unit Award Agreement under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2014

Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as
amended and restated effective October 29,
2013 (for awards through February 3, 2014)

Form of Annual Incentive Award Agreement
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Form of Multi-Year Incentive Award Agreement
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as
amended and restated effective February 4,
2014

Form of Annual Incentive Award Agreement
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2014

Form of Multi-Year Incentive Award Agreement
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2014

Kemper Executive Performance Plan, effective
February 4, 2014

Kemper is a party to individual Indemnification
and Expense Advancement Agreements with
each of its directors, as amended and restated
effective February 1, 2012
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10.38*

10.39*

12
21
23
24

31.1

31.2

32.1

322

101.1

Kemper is a party to individual severance
agreements with the following officers:

Donald G. Southwell (Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer)

John M. Boschelli (Vice President and Chief
Investment Officer)

Diana J. Hickert-Hill (Vice President,
Investor Relations and Corporate Identity)

Shekar G. Jannah (Vice President, Chief Risk
Officer)

Lisa M. King (Vice President, Human
Resources)

Denise I. Lynch (Vice President)

Christopher L. Moses (Vice President and
Treasurer)

Scott Renwick (Of Counsel; Former Senior
Vice President and General Counsel)

Richard Roeske (Vice President and Chief
Accounting Officer)

Dennis J. Sandelski (Vice President, Tax and
Corporate Development)

Frank J. Sodaro (Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer)

Each of the foregoing agreements is identical
except that the severance compensation multiple
is 3.0 for Mr. Southwell and 2.0 for the other
officers.

Transition and Separation Agreement, effective
November 22, 2014 with Edward J. Konar,
former Vice President and Life & Health Group
Executive of the Company

Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Subsidiaries of Kemper Corporation
Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

Power of Attorney (included on the signature
page hereof)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to SEC Rule 13a-14(a)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant
to SEC Rule 13a-14(a)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (furnished pursuant to Item 601(b)
(32) of Regulation S-K)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (furnished pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of
Regulation S-K)

XBRL Instance

10-Q 001-18298

E-4

10.17

November 2, 2011

XK KX
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101.2 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document X
101.3 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation X
Linkbase Document
101.4 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase X
Document
101.5 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation X
Linkbase Document
101.6 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition X

Linkbase Document



EXHIBIT 10.39 - TRANSITION AND SEPARATION AGREEMENT- IS AVAILABLE IN THE INVESTOR SECTION
OF KEMPER’S WEBSITE, KEMPER.COM UNDER THE HEADING, SEC FILINGS



Exhibit 12

KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF CONSOLIDATED RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(Dollars in Millions)
Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes........... $ 1602 $ 3144 § 1224 $§ 683 $ 2263
Less Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability

INVESEMENLS ...ttt 9.0) (26.4) 9.3) (9.6) (48.8)
Plus Distribution of Accumulated Earnings in Equity Method

Limited Liability Investments............cccccoovveiieeiiieiiciecieeeenns 21.7 15.4 15.4 — —
Plus Fixed CRarges..........ccoecuevuieiieieiieiecieeeeeieeie e 52.9 443 45.1 45.1 39.7
Less Capitalized INtErest ........ccoevveeieriieieriieieseeie e (1.0) (0.9) (1.8) (2.6) (1.8)
Total BAIMINGS........cviivevieeeeeeeeieeeee ettt $ 2248 § 3468 § 171.8 § 1012 § 2154
INEEIESE ...veieiiieecieee ittt ebesees $ 503 § 417 $§ 414 $§ 406 $ 360
Rental FACtOr .....c.ooiiiiiiiiiiieccnccee e 1.6 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9
Capitalized INtErest.........cvevivvieiiiieiecieeeeee e 1.0 0.9 1.8 2.6 1.8
Total FiXed Charges.........ccooveeeveuiiveeiieeeieieecieeeveeeeeeeete e $ 529 § 443 § 451 § 451§ 397
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (a) ........cccceeevveverenencncnennenes 4.2 x 7.8 x 3.8x 2.2x 54x

(a)  Theratios of earnings to fixed charges have been computed on a consolidated basis by dividing (a) Income from Continuing
Operations before Income Taxes less Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, plus Distribution
of Accumulated Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, plus fixed charges, and less capitalized interest,
by (b) fixed charges. Fixed charges consist of interest on debt and a factor for interest included in rent expense. Income from
Continuing Operations before Income Taxes has the meaning as set forth in the Consolidated Statements of Income included
in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014. Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited
Liability Investments and Distribution of Accumulated Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments have the
meanings as set forth in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2014.



Exhibit 21
Subsidiaries of KEMPER CORPORATION

Subsidiaries of Kemper Corporation, with their states of incorporation in parentheses, are as follows:

1. 301 Oxford Valley Insurance Agency, Inc. (Pennsylvania)
2. Alpha Property & Casualty Insurance Company (Wisconsin)
3. Capitol County Mutual Fire Insurance Company (Texas)*
4. Charter Indemnity Company (Texas)

5. Connecticut Casualty Insurance Agency, Inc. (Connecticut)
6. Direct Response Corporation (Delaware)

7. Family Security Funerals Company (Texas)

8. Financial Indemnity Company (Illinois)

9. KAHG LLC (Illinois)

10. Kemper Corporate Services, Inc. (Illinois)

11. Kemper Direct General Agency, Inc. (Texas)

12. Kemper Financial Indemnity Company (Illinois)

13. Kemper General Agency, Inc. (Texas)

14. Kemper Independence Insurance Company (Illinois)

15. Merastar Industries LLC (Delaware)

16. Merastar Insurance Company (Illinois)

17. Mutual Savings Fire Insurance Company (Alabama)

18. Mutual Savings Life Insurance Company (Alabama)

19. NCM Management Corporation (Delaware)

20. Old Reliable Casualty Company (Missouri)*

21. The Reliable Life Insurance Company (Missouri)

22. Reserve National Insurance Company (Oklahoma)

23. Response General Agency of Texas, Inc. (Connecticut)
24. Response Insurance Company (Illinois)

25. Response Worldwide Direct Auto Insurance Company (Illinois)
26. Response Worldwide Insurance Company (Illinois)

27. Security One Agency LLC (Illinois)

28. Trinity Universal Insurance Company (Texas)

29. Union National Fire Insurance Company (Louisiana)

30. Union National Life Insurance Company (Louisiana)

31. United Casualty Insurance Company of America (Illinois)
32. United Insurance Company of America (Illinois)

33. Unitrin Advantage Insurance Company (New York)

34. Unitrin Auto and Home Insurance Company (New York)
35. Unitrin County Mutual Insurance Company (Texas)*

36. Unitrin Direct Insurance Company (Illinois)

37. Unitrin Direct Property & Casualty Company (Illinois)
38. Unitrin Preferred Insurance Company (New York)

39. Unitrin Safeguard Insurance Company (Wisconsin)

40. Valley Property & Casualty Insurance Company (Oregon)
41. Warner Insurance Company (Illinois)

* May be deemed to be an affiliate pursuant to Rule 1-02 of SEC Regulation S-X.



Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 33-58300, 333-4530, 333-38981, 333-86935,
333-76076, 333-87898, 333-127216 and 333-173877 on Form S-8 and Nos. 333-127215, 333-142722, 333-170297 and
333-194032 on Form S-3 of our report, dated February 12, 2015, relating to the consolidated financial statements and the
financial statement schedules of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”), and the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting (which report expresses an unqualified opinion), appearing in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2014.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 12, 2015



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Donald G. Southwell, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 12,2015

/S/" DONALD G. SOUTHWELL
Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Frank J. Sodaro, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 12,2015

/S/ FRANK J. SODARO
Frank J. Sodaro
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of CEO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation (the “Company”) for the year ended

December 31, 2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Donald G.
Southwell, as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/S/" DONALD G. SOUTHWELL
Name: Donald G. Southwell
Title: Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: February 12, 2015




Exhibit 32.2

Certification of CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation (the “Company”) for the year ended

December 31, 2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Frank J. Sodaro,
as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/S/" FRANK J. SODARO
Name:  Frank J. Sodaro
Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 12, 2015
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Kemper Corporation Board of Directors

Donald G. Southwell
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Kemper Corporation

James E. Annable
Retired Secretary to the Federal Advisory Council of
the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve

George N. Cochran

Retired Chairman

Global Financial Institutions Group
Macquarie Capital

Kathleen M. Cronin

Senior Managing Director, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

CME Group Inc.

Douglas G. Geoga
President and Chief Executive Officer
Salt Creek Hospitality, LLC

Julie M. Howard
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Navigant Consulting, Inc.

Robert J. Joyce

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Westfield Group

Wayne Kauth
Independent Financial Consultant

Christopher B. Sarofim
Vice Chairman
Fayez Sarofim & Co.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Richard C. Vie
Chairman Emeritus
Kemper Corporation



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries

Executives

Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Frank J. Sodaro
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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John M. Boschelli
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Kemper Corporation Information

Stock Listing

Kemper Corporation is traded on the
New York Stock Exchange under the symbol KMPR
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